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NOTICE OF 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 15thAnnual General Meeting of the members of WE WIN LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as Surevin BPO Services Limited) will be held on Friday, the 30th Day of September, 
2022 at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 
Mall, Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, Bhopal, M.P.-462047 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the following 
business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item No. 01: Adoption of Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements and 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor’s thereon; 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 

Item No. 02: Appointment of Director in place of Director who retires by Rotation; 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajiv Singh(DIN: 02245630), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

Item No. 03: Borrowing Powers of the company and creation of Charge/Providing of 
Security.  

To consider and, if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as 
Special Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolutions passed on the matter, the consent of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company under Section 
180(1)(c) and all other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Articles of 
Association of the Company, to borrow money for and on behalf of the Company from time to time as 
deemed by it to be requisite and proper for the business of the Company, but so that the moneys to 
be borrowed together with the moneys already borrowed by the Company shall not exceed Rs. 400 
Crores (Rupees Four hundred Crores Only) in excess of the aggregate of its paid share capital and 
free reserves  of the Company as per the latest annual audited financial statements, apart from 
temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business.  

Item No. 04: Approval to deliver document through a particular mode as may be sought by 
the member. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’), consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to the Board of Directors of the Company to serve document(s) on Member(s) of the Company by 
post or by registered post or by speed post or by courier or by delivering at their address, or by such 
electronic or other mode prescribed under the Act and desired by Member(s), from time to time. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon request of Member(s) for delivery of any document(s) through a 
particular mode, the Company do serve the same to the Member(s) through that particular mode 
and/ or charge such fees which shall not be more than the amount charged to the Company by the 
Department of Post or the Service Provider(s) including related handling charges, if any, to deliver 
the documents in a particular mode. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
do all such acts and take all such steps as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution. 

Item No. 05:Approve the Employee Stock Option Scheme i.e. “We Win Limited ESOP2022" 

To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014 (“the Rules”) made thereunder (including any amendment, modification, variation or re-
enactment thereof), the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to such 
other rules, regulations and guidelines as may be applicable from time to time and subject to the 
approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) and / or sanction(s) as may be required from appropriate 
regulatory authorities / institutions or bodies and subject to such terms and conditions as may be 
prescribed / imposed by such authorities while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and 
sanctions, and which may be agreed to and accepted by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred 
to as the "Board", which term shall be deemed to include the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
or any other Committee of the Company constituted / to be constituted by the Board to exercise its 
powers including the powers conferred by this resolution), consent of the shareholders of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to create, issue, offer and allot 6,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 
each of the Company, fully paid (or such adjusted numbers for any bonus, stock splits or 
consolidation or other re-organization of the capital structure of the Company as may be applicable 
including but not limited to by way of any corporate action, from time to time), to the present and 
future permanent employees of the Company (in the manner as may be permissible under the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder) (hereinafter referred to 
as “Eligible Employees” in this Notice), under the We Win Limited i.e. We Win Limited ESOP 2022 in 
terms of this resolution and on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board, in its sole 
and absolute discretion. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Nomination and Remuneration Committee be designated as the 
Compensation Committee in accordance with Regulation 5(1) and Regulation 5(2) of the SEBI (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021 for the purposes of administration of 
We Win Limited ESOP 2022. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the terms stated herein, the equity shares allotted pursuant 
to this resolution shall rank pari passu inter se with the then existing equity shares of the Company, 
in all respects. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, 
merger and sale of division and others, if any additional equity shares are issued by the Company on 
the recommendation of the Board to the employee stock option grantees for the purpose of making a 
fair and reasonable adjustment to the employee stock options granted earlier, the ceiling in terms 
specified above shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such additional equity shares issued. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the equity shares of the Company are either sub-divided or 
consolidated, then the number of equity shares to be issued and allotted and the price of acquisition 
payable by the employee stock option grantees under the We Win Limited ESOP 2022 shall 
automatically stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in the same proportion as the 
present face value of Rs. 10/- per equity share bears to their revised face value of the equity shares 
of the Company after such sub-division or consolidation, without affecting any other rights or 
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obligations of the employees who have been granted Stock Options under the We Win Limited ESOP 
2022. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above but subject to the 
terms mentioned in the explanatory statement to this resolution, which are hereby approved by the 
Members, the Board be and is hereby authorized to make modifications, changes, variations, 
alterations or revisions in the terms and conditions of We Win Limited ESOP 2022, from time to time, 
as it may in its sole and absolute discretion decide, subject to the conformity of the Companies Act, 
2013 and rules thereunder. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to settle all questions, difficulties 
or doubts that may arise in relation to the formulation and implementation of We Win Limited ESOP 
2022and to the shares (including to amend or modify any of the terms thereof) issued herein without 
being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members or otherwise to the end and 
intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the 
authority of this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall take necessary steps for listing of the Equity Shares 
allotted under the We Win Limited ESOP 2022on the Stock Exchanges, where the Shares of the 
Company are listed in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits 
and Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021, the SEBI LODR Regulations and other applicable laws and 
regulations. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any powers 
conferred herein to Compensation/Nomination and Remuneration Committee or such other 
Committees, with power to sub-delegate to any Officers or Company Secretary of the Company to 
update, maintain and preserve ‘The Register of Employee Stock Options’ in the prescribed format 
pursuant to Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(10) of The Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014” and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to 
execute such documents, writings etc., as may be necessary in this regard.” 

Place: Bhopal          By the order of the Board 
Dated: 02/09/2022 

 Sd/- 
   Ashish Soni 

      (PAN: HCOPS6623A) 
  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer    
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Notes: 

1. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special
Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

2. The Board has appointed Mr. S.M. Ashraf, Partner of M/s. ASA & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary, as the scrutinizer (“Scrutinizer”) for conducting the e-voting process in a
fair and transparent manner.

3. Brief details of the directors, who are being appointed / re-appointed, are annexed hereto as
per requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015/ Secretarial Standards.

4. Directors have not recommended any Dividend on equity shares of the company for the
financial year ended 31st March 2022.

5. As on 31st March 2022, there were no amount required to be transferred by the company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“”IEPF”).

6. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and to vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company.
The instrument appointing the proxy should, however, is deposited at the registered office of
the company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder. The holder of proxy shall prove his identity at the
time of attending the Meeting.

7. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect
the proxies lodged with the company, at any time during the business hours of the company,
provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the company.

8. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the Meeting
in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company a
certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote
on their behalf at the Meeting.

9. The register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding, maintained
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members
at the AGM.

10. The Register of members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Saturday, 24th day of September, 2022 to Friday, 30th day of September, 2022 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of this Meeting.

11. A person whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial
owners maintained by the RTA/Depositories as on Friday, 23rd September, 2022 only shall be
entitled to vote at the AGM.

12. Members may also note that the Notice of 15th AGM along with the Copy of Annual Report for
the financial year ended 31st March 2022is uploaded and available electronically at the following
links:

Company’s Website www.wewinlimited.com 
Website of Stock exchanges where equity www.nseindia.com 
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shares of the company are listed www.bseindia.com 
Website of Link Intime India Private Limited www.instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 

13. Members desiring any information on the Accounts are requested to write to the company at
least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting to enable the management to keep the
information ready.

14. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their
address or bank mandates to their DPs with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.
Members holding shares in physical mode (if any) are requested to advise any change in their
address or bank mandates to the Company.

15. Members can avail of the nomination facility by filing Form SH-13, as prescribed under Section
72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, with theCompany.

16. Members who still hold share in physical form are advised to dematerialise their shareholding to
avail the benefits of dematerialisation, which include easy liquidity, since trading is permitted in
dematerialised form only, electronic transfer, savings in stamp duty and elimination of any
possibility of loss of documents and baddeliveries.

17. With a view to serving the Members better and for administrative convenience, an attempt
would be made to consolidate multiple folios. Members who hold shares in identical names and
in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the companyto
consolidate their holdings in one folio.

18. Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and the Route Map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed
hereto.

19. Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting necessary
details of their shareholding, attendance slip(s) and copies of Annual Report. In case of joint
holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will
be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

20. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days (i.e. except Saturdays, Sundays and
Public Holidays) during business hours till the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
aforesaid documents will be also available for inspection by members at the Meeting.

21. The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the
Companies Act, 2013 requires the Company/Registrar and Transfer Agents to record additional
details of Members, including their Permanent Account Number details (PAN), e-mail address,
etc and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has also mandated the
submission of PAN by every participant in the market. Members holding shares in electronic
form are therefore requested to submit their PAN & e-mail address details to their Depository
Participants with whom they are maintaining their De-mat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form (if any) are requested to submit their PAN & e-mail address to the Company /
RTA.

22. The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) is Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., C-101, 1st

Floor, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli, West Mumbai, Mumbai, MH-400083.

23. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 22 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
and other applicable laws, and General Circular Nos. 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated 8th April 2020
and 13th April 2020, General Circular No. 19/2021 and General Circular No. 20/2021 dated 08th
December 2021 respectively issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) the Company is
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pleased to offer e-voting facility to its Members holding equity shares as on 23rd September, 
2022 being the cut-off date, to exercise their right to vote electronically on the above resolution. 

24. Due to non-availability of postal and courier services, on account of threat posed by COVID-19
pandemic situation, the Company is sending Notice in electronic form only and express its
inability to dispatch hard copy of Notice along with Annual Report to the members. To facilitate
such members to receive this notice electronically and cast their vote electronically, the
Company has made special arrangement for registration of email addresses in terms of the MCA
Circulars. The process for registration of email address is as under:

a) For voting in the resolution proposed in the Notice through remote e-voting, members who
have not registered their email address may get their email address registered by sending an
email to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent at enotices@linkintime.co.inMember(s) may also
intimate the same to the Company by writing an email at cs@wewinlimited.com. The
members shall provide the following information in the email–

Full Name
No of shares held:
Folio Number (if shares held in physical) and PAN
Share certificate number (if shares held in physical) and PAN
DP ID & Client ID (if shares are held in demat)
Email id to be registered and Mobile No.:

b) Post successful registration of the email, the member would get soft copy of the notice and
the procedure for e-voting along with the User ID and Password to enable e-voting for this
Annual General Meeting. In case of any queries, member may write to
enotices@linkintime.co.in or cs@wewinlimited.com

c) It is clarified that for permanent registration of email address, members are required to
register their email addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with their concerned
Depository Participants and in respect of physical holdings, with the Company’s Share Transfer
Agent i.e. enotices@linkintime.co.in

d) Those shareholders who have already registered their email address are requested to keep
their email addresses validated with their Depository Participants / the Company’s Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent to enable servicing of notices / documents / Annual Reports
electronically to their email address.

25. The voting rights for the Equity Shares of the Company are one vote per equity share,
registered in the name of the member. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion
to the percentage of paid-up share capital of the Company held by them, which will be
determined on the basis of the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of each member
as on 23rd September, 2022.

26. In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, the
Company has provided the facility to members to exercise their votes electronically and to vote
on all resolutions through the e-voting service facility arranged by Link Intime India Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “LIIPL”). The instructions for electronic voting are annexed
to this Notice. Members cannot exercise votes by proxy, though corporate and institutional
members shall be entitled to vote through their authorized representatives with proof of
their authorization.

27. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman or any other person authorized by the
Chairman after the completion of scrutiny, and the result of the voting will be announced by the
Chairman or any director of the Company duly authorized, on or before 03rdOctober, 2022 and
will also be displayed on the Company website https://wewinlimited.com/investor-relations/#
and will be intimated  to  the  Stock  Exchanges  where  the  shares  of  the  Company  are
listed  in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations.
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28. Members can also contact to Mr. Ashish Soni, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
company to resolve any grievances with regard to voting. Address: - We Win Limited, 206-207,
2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh
462047, India, Email Id:cs@wewinlimited.com, Phone number – +91 0755-4278897.

29. All the material documents referred to in the explanatory statement will be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during office hours on all working days from
the date of dispatch until the last date for receipt of votes by e-voting.

30. In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, the Company has provided the facility to the Members to exercise their votes
electronically and vote on all resolutions through the e-voting service facility arranged by Link
Intime India Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “LIIPL”). The instructions for electronic
voting are given in this Notice. E-Voting will commence on 27th September, 2022at 9:00
a.m. and will end on 29th September, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. E-Voting shall not be allowed
beyond the said time and date.

31. In accordance with Regulation 44 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Rule 22 of the Rules, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to
shareholders through such e-voting system. Notice of this meeting has been sent to all the
shareholders who have registered their e-mail id's with the Company or the Registrar and
Transfer Agent/ Depository Participants. Necessary arrangements have been made by the
Company with Link Intime India Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “LIIPL”)  to facilitate
e-voting.

32. The Voting results shall be declared not later than 48 (forty eight) hours from the conclusion
time of the meeting. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be placed on
the website of the company at https://wewinlimited.com/investor-relations/# andthe website
ofLink Intime India Private Limited atwww.instavote.linkintime.co.in immediately after the result
is declared by the Chairman or any other person authorized by the Board in this regard and will
simultaneously be forwardedto NSE & BSE, where equity shares of the company are listed.

33. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed
on the date of the Meeting i.e. Friday, 30th day of September, 2022.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS: 

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants only. Shareholders are advised to update their 
mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility.  

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is 
given below: 

Type of Shareholders Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz...
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a
mobile. On the e- Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner"
icon under "Login"" which is available under 'IDeAS' section, this will
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME
and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
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availableat https://eservices.nsdl.com Select "Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal" or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com  either on a
personal computer or on a mobile. Oncethe home page of e-Voting
system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which isavailable
under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You
will have toenter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat
account number hold with NSDL),Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After successfulauthentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name i.e.LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote”
website for casting your voteduring the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through
their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for
users to login to Easi / Easiest 
arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click onNew System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see
the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service
provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be
redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during
theremote e-Voting period.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
availableat
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat account number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) & login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME 
and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off date for e-
voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:  

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
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2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -

A. User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio
Number registered with the Company.
B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number
provided to you, if applicable.
C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your
DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)
D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with
your DP/Company.

*Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’,
shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

▶ Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least
one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 
capital letter).  
▶ Click t least one num password is now generated).

3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.
4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically 

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.
2. E-voting page will appear.
3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour

/ Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’
file link).

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote,
click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

General Guidelines for Institutional shareholders: 

 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to eVoting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register
themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a
scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc.
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized representative(s) in PDF
format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the
same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional 
shareholders: 

 In case the shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, please refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and Instavote e-Voting manual available at
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or write an email to
enotices@linkintime.co.in or Call us :- Tel : 022 – 49186000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for 
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
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holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 22- 23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:  

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login 
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the 
e- Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-
mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about 
the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four 
digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one 
special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital 
letter.  

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is 
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company   

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten 
the password:  

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.  

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have
voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Place: Bhopal          By the order of the Board 
Dated: 02/09/2022 

    Sd/- 
        Ashish Soni 

      (PAN: HCOPS6623A) 
    Company Secretary & Compliance Officer   
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Information required to be furnished/disclosed as per requirements of Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

Mr. Rajiv Singh 
(DIN: 02245630) 

Date of Birth 19/12/1957 

Age 65 years approx. 

Qualification MBA, Post Graduate in History and Post Graduate 
Diploma in Mass Communication from Banaras 

Hindu University 

Expertise in Functional Area Business 

Experience More than 35 years experience of the similar field 
/business in which the Company is engaged 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / Re-
appointment 

NA 

Remuneration sought to be paid NA 

Remuneration last drawn NA 

Date of first appointment on the Board 14/12/2020 

Shareholding in the Company NA 

Relationship with other Directors, Managers 
and other key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company 

No Relation 

No. of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the year 

02 

List of other Companies in which 
Directorships held 

1. Green Feuillage Private Limited
2. Texit Private Limited

List of Membership / Chairmanship in 
Committees of the Board of the Company 

Chairmanship Membership

Nil Nil

List of Membership / Chairmanship in 
Committees of the Board of Other 
Companies 

Chairmanship Membership

Nil Nil

Shareholding of Non-executive Directors of 
the Company 

Nil 
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Item No. 03: (Separate 180 1(c) 

Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not borrow 
money in excess of the company’s paid up share capital and free reserves apart from temporary loans 
obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, except with the consent of 
the company accorded by way of a special resolution. It is, therefore, necessary for the members to 
pass a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as set out at Item No.03 of the Notice, to enable to the Board of Directors to borrow 
money in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company.  

Approval of members is being sought to borrow money upto Rs. 400Crores (Rupees Four hundred 
crores ) in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves  of the Company 
and create mortgage or otherwise deal with the assets of the Company for the purpose to borrow 
funds. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned 
or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 03. 

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolutions set out as item no. 03 of the notice of AGM as 
special resolutions for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

Item No. 04: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made 
thereunder, a document may be served on a Member of the Company by sending the same to him by 
post or by registered post or by speed post or by courier or by delivering it at his office or address, or 
by such electronic or other mode as may be prescribed. However, proviso to sub-section (2) of 
Section 20 of the Act states that a Member may request for delivery of any document through a 
particular mode, for which he/she shall pay such fees as may be determined by the company at its 
Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’).  

Further, listed companies are required to send financial statements: 
(a) by electronic mode to such members whose shareholding is in Demat form and whose E-mail 

IDs are registered with Depository for communication purposes;  
(b) where Shareholding is held otherwise than by Demat form, to such members who have 

positively consented in writing for receiving by electronic mode; and  
(c) by dispatch of physical copies through any recognised mode of delivery as specified under 

section 20 of the Act, in all other cases. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing the Special Resolution as set out in Item 
No. 04 of the Notice relating to serving the documents including financial statements to the members 
of the Company in a requested mode. 

In view of this, the Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 04 of the 
Notice for approval by the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.  

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

Item No. 05: 

The objective of We Win Limited ESOP 2022 is to reward the employees for their association and 
performance, to motivate them to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company and to 
attract new talent. The Company views Employee Stock Options as an instrument that would enable 
the Employees to share the value he/she creates for the Company in the years to come. 

With the above objective and based on the recommendation of the Nomination Remuneration and 
Compensation Committee of the Company and subject to approval of the Shareholders of the 
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Company, the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 62 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and other applicable laws, at their meeting held on 02nd 
September 2022 approved the We Win Limited ESOP 2022 scheme. The We Win Limited ESOP 2022 
has been formulated in accordance with the applicable laws. 

The We Win Limited ESOP 2022 Scheme will be implemented directly and administered by the 
Nomination Remuneration and Compensation (“NRC”) Committee of the Company.  

The salient features of We Win Limited ESOP 2022 are set out as per SEBI Circular and are as under: 

(a) Brief description of the scheme: 

The proposed Scheme seeks to reward eligible employees by way of granting options, which when 
exercisable results in equivalent equity shares of the Company, with a view to reward the employees 
for their association and performance, to motivate them to contribute to the growth and profitability 
of the Company and to attract new talent. 

The Company shall issue options to the eligible employees, which may be accepted by them within 
the grant period. Upon acceptance of the offer, the eligible employees shall be required to satisfy the 
vesting conditions specified in the We Win Limited ESOP 2022 and make payment of the exercise 
price and applicable taxes within the exercise period. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
or any other empowered committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, as constituted or 
reconstituted, shall act as the Compensation Committee (“Committee”) for the superintendence and 
undertaking the general administration of the Scheme. All questions of interpretation of the Scheme 
shall be determined by the Board and such determination shall be final and binding upon all persons 
having an interest in the Scheme. 

(b) Total number of employee stock options to be granted: 

A total of 6,00,000 (Six Lakhs) employee stock options would be available for being granted to 
eligible employees of the Company under We Win Limited ESOP 2022 in one or more tranches, which 
in aggregate shall be exercisable into not more than 60,00,000 (Sixty Lakhs) equity shares of the 
Company. Each employee stock option when exercised would be converted into one equity share of 
the face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up. Employee stock options lapsed or cancelled due to any 
reason including the reason of lapse of exercise period or due to resignation of the eligible employees 
or otherwise, would be available for being re-granted at a future date. The Board is authorized to re-
grant such lapsed / cancelled options as per We Win Limited ESOP 2022.  

In case of any corporate action (s) including but not limited to rights issues, bonus issues, merger, 
de- merger, sale of division and others, a fair and reasonable adjustment will be made to the 
employee stock options granted, adjusting the number and price of the employee stock options such 
that the total value of the employee stock options in the hands of the employee stock option grantee 
remains the same after such corporate action, and allowing the vesting period and life of the 
employee stock options to be unaltered as far as possible to protect the rights of the employee who is 
granted such options. 

(c) Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate in the scheme:  

The following classes of employees are eligible to participate in We Win Limited ESOP 2022 as per 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021:  

a. an employee as designated by the company, who is exclusively working in India or
outside India; or

b. director of the company, whether a whole-time director or not, including a non-
executive director who is not a promoter or member of the promoter group, but
excluding an independent director; or

c. an employee as defined in sub-clauses (i) or (ii), of a group company including
subsidiary or associate company, in India or outside India, but does not include—
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(i)   an employee who is a promoter or a person belonging to the promoter group; or 
(ii) director who, either himself or through his relative or through anybody corporate, 

directly or indirectly, holds more than ten per cent of the outstanding equity shares 
of the company. 

(d) Requirements of vesting and period of vesting:  

The vesting period of employee stock options granted shall be a maximum of five years and shall not 
be less than one year. The exact proportion in which and the exact period over which the employee 
stock options would vest would be determined by the Board, subject to the minimum vesting period 
of one year from the date of grant of employee stock options. The specific vesting schedule and 
vesting conditions subject to which vesting will take place will be outlined in the grant letter issued to 
each employee stock option grantee.  

(e) The maximum period within which the options shall be vested: 

The employee stock options granted shall vest not later than five years from the date of grant of such 
employee stock options.  

(f) Exercise price or pricing formula:  

The exercise price per employee stock option shall be such as may be determined by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee which shall not be lesser than the face value of an equity share of the 
Company and not more than the ‘market price’ (that is, latest available closing price on a recognized 
stock exchange, having highest trading volume, on which the equity shares of the Company are 
listed) of the equity shares at the time of grant. 

The specific exercise price will be intimated to the employee stock option grantees in their respective 
grant letters. 

(g) Exercise period and the process of exercise:  

The vested options shall be exercisable by the employees by submitting an application to the 
Board/Committee expressing his/her desire to exercise such vested options in such manner and in 
such format as may be prescribed by the Committee. The employee can exercise stock options either 
in full or in tranches by making full payment of exercise price and applicable taxes (if any).The 
vested options shall lapse if not exercised within the specified exercise period. 

Eligible Employees will be permitted to exercise vested options on and from the date of vesting of the 
options for an exercise period as may be determined by the Committee and set out in the Grant 
letter. However, in no event shall the Exercise Period exceed a period of 3 (Three) years from the 
Vesting Date. 

(h) Appraisal process for determining the eligibility of the employees for the scheme:  

The options shall be granted to the specific employees and their eligibility criteria would be decided by 
the Board at its own discretion, based on the criteria such as role/designation of the employee, date 
of joining of the Eligible Employee with the Company, performance evaluation, current compensation, 
future potential and/or such other criteria that may be determined by the board at its sole discretion. 

(i) Maximum number of options to be issued per employee and in aggregate:  

The maximum number of Options that may be granted to each Employee shall vary depending upon 
the designation and the appraisal/assessment process, and shall be decided by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, however the maximum number of options that may be granted shall not 
exceed 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the time of grant of options unless otherwise 
approved by the shareholders. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reserves the right to 
decide the number of Options to be granted and the maximum number of options that can be 
granted to each employee within this ceiling. 
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(j)  Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under the scheme: 

The Scheme does not contemplate any benefit other than allowing eligible employee to receive equity 
Shares of the Company upon exercise of options. In this context, the maximum benefit shall be the 
maximum number of Shares that can be offered as stated above. 

(k) Whether the scheme is to be implemented and administered directly by the Company 
or through a Trust: 

We Win Limited ESOP 2022 shall be implemented directly by the Company through the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Company as permissible under the SEBI Regulations.  

(l) Whether the scheme involves new issue of shares by the Company or secondary 
acquisition by the Trust or both: 

We Win Limited ESOP 2022 involves new issue of the shares of the Company. 

(m) The amount of loan to be provided for implementation of the scheme by the 
Company to the Trust, its tenure, utilization, repayment terms, etc: 

Not Applicable as We Win Limited ESOP 2022 involves new issue of the shares of the Company. 

(n) Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject to limits specified under the 
regulations) that can be made by the Trust for the purposes of the scheme:  

Not applicable. 

(o) Accounting Policies and disclosures:  

As specified in Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations 2021, the Company shall conform with the requirements of the 'Guidance Note on 
Accounting for employee share-based Payments’ and shall follow the requirements including the 
disclosure requirements of the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Central Government in terms 
of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

(p) Method of option valuation: 

The Company shall adopt fair value method for valuation of the employee stock options as prescribed 
under guidance note or under any relevant accounting standard notified by appropriate authorities 
from time to time.  

(q) Lock-in period:  

The Shares arising out of exercise of vested options may be subject to a lock-in period, whichshall be 
determined by the Committee and set out in the Grant Letter.  

(r) Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified securities:  

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has the powers to specify the procedure and other terms 
and conditions for buy-back of Options granted, if to be undertaken at any time by the Company, in 
compliance with applicable laws. 

(s) The conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse:  

The vested options shall lapse in case of termination of employment due to the following: (i) 
convicted of an offence involving moral turpitude or that disentitles the eligible employee from being 
an employee in accordance with the Company’s policies and/or applicable law; or (ii) commission of 
fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement by an employee; (iii) wilful dishonesty, gross misconduct; 
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(iv) abandonment of employment by the employee; (v) termination of employment of the employee 
by the Company for reasons relating to performance of such employee; and/or (vi) any other 
action(s) that, in view of the Board is disruptive or detrimental to the functioning of the Company. 
Further, irrespective of employment status, in case vested options are not exercised within the 
prescribed exercise period, then such vested options shall lapse.  

Events Vested Options Unvested Options 
Termination of employment 
due to cause as specified 
above. 

All the Vested Options at the time 
of such termination shall stand 
cancelled with effect from the date 
of such termination. 

All Unvested Options on 
the date of termination 
shall stand cancelled with 
effect from the date of 
termination. 

Resignation or/ termination 
(other than due to cause as 
specified above) 

All Vested Options as on date of 
termination shall be exercisable by 
the Employee within the period of 
15 days from his/her termination. 

All Vested Options as on date of 
submission of resignation shall be 
exercisable by the Employee before 
his last working day with the 
Company, subject to the Employee 
signing a release letter issued by 
the Company (In a form acceptable 
to the Company). 

All Unvested Options on 
the date of submission of 
resignation/ termination, 
shall stand cancelled with 
effect from the date of 
resignation/ termination. 

Death All Vested Options may be 
exercised by the Option Grantee’s 
nominee or legal heirs within a 
period of three months from the 
date of death of the Employee. 

All the Unvested Options 
as on the date of death 
shall immediately vest with 
the deceased employee’s 
nominee or legal heirs, 
immediately on the date of 
death. 

Such options can be 
exercised by the Option 
Grantee’s nominee or legal 
heirs within a period of 
three months from the 
date of death of employee. 

Termination due to 
Permanent Disability 

All Vested Options may be 
Exercised by the Option Grantee 
within a period of three months 
from the date of such disability. 

All the Unvested Options 
as on the date of 
termination due to 
Permanent Disability of 
Option Grantee shall vest 
with the Option Grantee, 
immediately on the date of 
termination due to 
Permanent Disability.  

Such options can be 
exercised by the Option 
Grantee within a period of 
three months from the 
date of termination due to 
permanent disability. 
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(t) Listing:  

The shares allotted pursuant to the exercise of the stock options under ESOP 2022, shall be listed on 
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

Pursuant to Section 62 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 6 of the SEBI (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021, approval of the shareholders by way 
of special resolution is required for issue of employee stock options to the employees of the Company. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 05 of the 
Notice, except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any in the Company or the equity 
shares that may be offered to them under ESOP 2022.  

A copy of the Scheme is available for inspection electronically during official hours on all working days 
till the conclusion of voting. 

Place: Bhopal          By the order of the Board 
Dated: 02/09/2022 

Sd/- 
    Ashish Soni 

     (PAN: HCOPS6623A) 
  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer   
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Board’s Report 

To, 
The Members, 
We Win Limited 
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited) 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 15th Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 
Statement of your Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS:
 (Amount in Rupees) 

Standalone 
Particulars 31st March 2022 (Rs.) 31st March 2021(Rs.) 

Revenue From operation 41,60,86,810.00 36,13,86,931.00 
Other Income 66,15,805.00 36,01,270.00 
Total Revenue 42,27,02,615.00 36,49,88,201.00 
Profit before Depreciation & Amortization, 
Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax 

4,28,73,708.00 2,83,63,983.00 

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1,05,52,145.00 1,21,29,374.00 
Exceptional Items -- -- 
Profit (Loss) before tax 3,23,21,563.00 1,62,34,609.00 
Current Tax including Prior Period Tax 1,07,32,310.00 46,08,317.00 
Deferred Tax 5,92,600.00 1,75,100.00 
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 2,09,96,653.00 1,14,51,192.00 
Other Comprehensive income 15,44,020.00 11,63,158.00 
Total Comprehensive income for the 
period 

2,25,40,673.00 1,26,14,350.00 

Earnings per Share (Rs.):- 
Basic:  
Diluted: 

2.22 
2.08 

1.24 
1.24 

2. OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

During the financial year under review, total Standalone Income (including other income) of the
Company was Rs. 42,27,02,615.00/-as against Rs. 36,49,88,201.00/- in the previous year. The
Company has earned Profit after tax of Rs. 2,09,96,653.00/- compared to Rs.1,14,51,192.00/-
earned in the previous year.

Your Directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company.

3. DIVIDEND:

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(J) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has not proposed to carry any amount to
any Reserve.
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5. MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE BOARD’S
REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and on the date of
this report.

6. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year.

7. MIGRATION TO THE MAIN BOARD OF THE STOCK EXCHANGES:

The Company has migrated from SME- Emerge platform of NSE to Main Board of NSE (NSE Symbol: 
WEWIN) and listed on Main Board of BSE (BSE Scrip Code: 543535) w.e.f 15th June 2022.  

8. THE WEB ADDRESS, IF ANY, WHERE ANNUAL RETURN REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (3)
OF SECTION 92 HAS BEEN PLACED: www.wewinlimited.com 

9. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Following Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2021-22:

S. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 
1 05/04/2021 6 4
2 21/06/2021 6 5
3 27/08/2021 6 3
4 29/10/2021 6 5
5 31/12/2021 6 4
6 05/02/2022 6 5

10. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES:

As on 31st March, 2022, the Company has only one Associate Company:

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
Company 

Address CIN/GLN Subsidiary 
/Associate 

% of 
Shares held 

Applicable 
Section 

1 Surevin 
Weartech 
Private Limited 

40, Mandakini 
Housing 
Society, Behind 
Reliance Fresh, 
Kolar Road, 
Bhopal (M.P.) 
462042  

U72900MP
2018PTC04
5213 

Associate  40% 129(3) & 
2(6) 

Further complete details of aforesaid Associate Company are attached in Form AOC – 1 (Annexure 
I). 

Further no Company has become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Company, 
during the financial year under review. 
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11. PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY/ ASSOCIATES/ JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

Surevin Weartech Private Limited (Associate Company): During the financial year under review, the
Associate Company (Surevin Weartech Private Limited) has incurred a Loss after Tax of Rs.
(6,21,337.19)/-.

12. DIRECTORS:

(A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

During the financial year under review, following changes have occurred in the Constitution/ 
Composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 01260263), Managing Director was re-appointed as Managing
Director of the company in continuation of previous employment for a period of 5 years
commencing from 01st October 2021 to 30th September 2026.

 Mr. Rajiv Singh (DIN: 02245630), Director of the Company, who retire by rotation at the
forthcoming 15th Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-
appointment.

(B) Declaration by Independent Directors: 

Company has following three Independent Directors: 

S. No. Name & DIN Date of Original Appointment 
1 Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN:01582960) 15/03/2017 
2 Awdhesh Shah (DIN:00184656) 15/03/2017 
3 Vipin Mittal (DIN: 08298530) 31/07/2019 

All the above named Independent Directors have submitted to the company, declarations to the 
effect that they meet the criteria of Independence as specified/provided in Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was conducted on 10th February, 
2022 in terms of provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Except Mr. Vipin Mittal 
(DIN: 08298530), all the independent directors of the Company were present at the meeting. 

(C) Re-appointment of Independent Directors:  

Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN:00184656)and Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN:01582960) Independent 
Directors of the Company, were re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to 
hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years with effect from 15th March, 2022. 

(D) Opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience of the 
Independent Director appointed during the year: 

An Independent Director shall be a person of integrity and possess appropriate balance of skills, 
experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing 
and operations or any other discipline related to the Company’s business. The Company did not 
have any peculiar relationship or transactions with non-executive Directors during the year 
ended 31st March, 2022. 
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(E) Formal Annual Evaluation:  

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
evaluated the performance of every Director, Independent Directors, Board and its Committees 
and Chairperson based on the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. Rating sheets were circulated to the directors for the purpose of evaluation. A 
summary of performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual directors was 
prepared on the basis of rating sheets received from the individual directors and the same was 
placed before the Board. 

13. AUDITORS:

(A) Statutory Auditors:

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, members of the 
Company in the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30thSeptember, 2021 has 
appointed M/s Sethia Manoj & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 021080C), as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of five years i.e. up to the conclusion of the 19th AGM of 
the Company. The Company has already received the written consent and certificate pursuant 
to Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 from M/s Sethia Manoj & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(FRN: 021080C) confirming their consent and eligibility under Section 139 and 141 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors Report which required any 
clarification/explanation. The notes on financial statements are self-explanatory and needs no 
further explanation. 

Further the Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended, 31stMarch, 2022 is annexed herewith 
for your kind perusal and information. 

(B) Secretarial Auditors: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder, the Company has appointed M/s S. Anjum & Associates, Company Secretary in 
Practice, to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company. Secretarial Audit Report for the 
financial year 2021-22 in the prescribed Form MR-3 is annexed to this Report (Annexure- II). 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(3) and 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 
of Directors of the Company provide following clarification with regard to the qualifications/ 
observations made/raised by the Secretarial Auditor in Secretarial Audit Report: 

Company is in compliance with all the provisions of various acts applicable to the Company. 
However due to some unavoidable technical reasons/ practical difficulty, the Company has 
missed some point, of which the company taken note of and will ensure compliance in the 
future.  

(C) Cost Auditors: NA 

14. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:

The details of the investments made by the Company are given in the financial statements.
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15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All the contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with its related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and not
material, therefore no disclosure required. (ANNEXURE- III)

16. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

In compliance of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Company has reconstituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee consists of the following Directors:

S. No. Name & DIN Status (Chairman/ Member) 
1 Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 01260263) Chairman
2 Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN: 00184656) Member
3 Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN: 01582960) Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy was approved/ adopted by the Board of Directors after taking 
into account the recommendations made by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and said 
policy is placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.wewinlimited.comand 
said policy is also attached/ enclosed alongwith Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility.  

In accordance with provisions of sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in 
line with the CSR Policy of the Company, during the financial year under review (i.e. 2021-22), the 
Company has spent Rs. 8,90,000/- (Rupees Eight Lacs Ninety Thousand Only) towards CSR activities, 
which is in excess of the limits specified under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the companies Act, 
2013. 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is prepared and the same is enclosed to this Report. (Annexure-
IV) 

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

In terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, relevant
information about:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Nil
(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Nil
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Nil

18. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

In terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, relevant 
information about: 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption: Nil 
(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

import substitution: Nil 
(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year)-  
(a) the details of technology imported: Nil  
(b) the year of import: Nil 
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: Nil 
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(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons 
thereof: Nil 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil 

19. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

In terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under, relevant
information about:

(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year: Nil
(ii) The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows: Nil

20. RISK MANAGEMENT:

Risks are events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the
Company's businesses. Risk management is a structured approach to manage uncertainty. A formal
enterprise wide approach to Risk Management is being adopted by the Company and key risks will
now be managed within a unitary framework. As a formal roll-out, all business divisions and
corporate functions will embrace Risk Management Policy and Guidelines, and make use of these in
their decision making. Key business risks and their mitigation are considered in the annual/strategic
business plans and in periodic management reviews.

21. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

22. DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTABLE U/S 143(12):

During the year under review, there is no fraud being or has been committed in the Company or
against the Company by officers or employees of the Company, which are reportable by the Auditors
to the Central Government or to the Board or to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013; therefore, no disclosure required in this regard.

23. DEPOSITS:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of Details relating to
deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act, because there were no transactions on these items
during the financial year under review.

24. VIGIL MECHANISM:

As per provisions of Section 177(9) and Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report
their genuine concerns/ grievances, and said mechanism is overseen by the Audit Committee of the
Company and the Company has also made provisions for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

25. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Company’s Board has following Committees:

A. Audit Committee: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under, the Board has constituted Audit Committee. The Audit Committee consists of three 
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Directors out of which two are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Audit committee 
is an Independent Director. Committee consists of the following Directors: 

S. No. Name & DIN Status  
(Chairman/ Member) 

Category 

1 Awdhesh Shah  
(DIN- 00184656) 

Chairman Independent/
Non-executive 

2 Ambreesh Tiwari  
(DIN- 01582960) 

Member Independent/
Non-executive 

3 Abhishek Gupta  
(DIN- 01260263) 

Member Promoter/ Executive

During the financial year under review, the Board has accepted all there commendations of 
the Audit Committee.  

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under, the Board has reconstituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three non-executive Directors out of 
which two are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee is an Independent Director. The table sets out the composition of the Committee: 

S. No. Name & DIN Status  
(Chairman/ Member) 

Category 

1 Awdhesh Shah  
(DIN- 00184656)    

Chairman Independent/
Non-executive 

2 Ambreesh Tiwari  
(DIN- 01582960) 

Member Independent/
Non-executive 

3 Vipin Mittal 
(DIN- 08298530) 

Member Independent /
Non-executive 

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under, the Board has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee consists of three Directors out of which two are Independent 
Directors. The Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is an Independent 
Director. Committee consists of the following Directors: 

S. No. Name & DIN Status  
(Chairman/ Member) 

Category 

1 Ambreesh Tiwari  
(DIN- 01582960) 

Chairman Independent/
Non-executive 

2 Awdhesh Shah  
(DIN- 00184656)  

Member Independent/
Non-executive 

3 Sonika Gupta  
(DIN- 01527904) 

Member Promoter/
Executive 
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26. COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING
CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE
OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION
178:

The board has, on the recommendation of the nomination & remuneration committee framed a policy
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration and said policy
is placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.wewinlimited.comand said
policy is also attached/ enclosed with this report. (ANNEXURE- V)

27. REMUNERATION POLICY:

The board has, on the recommendation of the nomination & remuneration committee framed a policy
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration and said policy
is placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.wewinlimited.comand said
policy is also attached/ enclosed with this report. (ANNEXURE- V)

28. DISCLOSURE ON RECEIVING OF REMUNERATION OR COMMISSION FROM ANY HOLDING OR
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: NA

29. DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year:

S. No. Name Designation Ratio to median remuneration 
01. Mr.  Abhishek Gupta 

(DIN: 01260263) 
Managing Director 3.6 % 

02. Mrs.  Sonika Gupta 
(DIN:  01527904) 

Director 3.6 %

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager if any, in the financial year:

During the financial year under review; there was no increase in the remuneration of Managing Director and
Director of the Company. However there was 8.86% increase in the remuneration of Chief Financial Officer
and 60.00% increase in the remuneration of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the company

c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 Percentage increase in median 
remuneration in 2021- 2022 

Median Remuneration of 
employees  

2,16,000 2,16,000 -- 
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d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:

Total number of permanent employees as on 31.03.2022 is 215.

e. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

On an average individual employees remuneration increased by 8% in financial year 2021-22.
However, there was no increase in the remuneration of Mr.  Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 01260263) Managing
Director and Mrs.  Sonika Gupta (DIN: 01527904) Director of the company in the financial year 2021-22.

The increase in remuneration is in line with the market trends, cost of living and to ensure the
retention of skilled staff.

There are no exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

f. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

g. Statement containing the particulars of employees in accordance with Rule 5 (2) of
theCompanies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

S. 
No. 

Name & 
Designat
ion 

Remune
ration 
(Per 
Annum) 

Nature of 
Employme
nt 
whether 
Contractu
al or 
otherwise 

Qual
ifica
tion 

expe
rien
ce 

Date of 
comme
nceme
nt of 
employ
ment 

Age Last 
Employme
nt held 

Relative 
of any 
Director
/Manag
er of the 
Compan
y 

1. Vineeta
Gupta
(Manager
)

13,20,00
0/- 

Permanent MBA 
(HR) 

9 
year
s 

31-Dec-
16 

31 Job in 
private 
company 

(Holds 
36000 
Equity 
shares of 
the 
company 
0.35%) 

Nil 

2. Dhruw
Kumar
Mishra
(Project
Head)

12,00,00
0/- 

Permanent MBA 19 
year
s 

06-Dec-
17 

51 Job in 
private 
company 

Nil 

3. Arti
Gupta

10,20,00
0/- 

Permanent MBA 2 
year
s 

03-Apr-
20 

43 Job in 
private 
company 

Nil 

4. Manish
Prajapati
(Head-
Developm
ent)

8,05,500/
- 

Permanent MBA 15 
year
s 

01-Jul-
15 

46 Job in 
private 
company 

Nil 

5. Syed 8,03,000/ Permanent MBA 16 14-Nov- 32 Job in Nil 
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Mumtaz 
Ahmed 
(Manager
) 

- year
s 

14 private
company 

6. Rahul
Singh
Bais
(Head-
Business)

6,64,500/
- 

Permanent MBA 13 
year
s 

01-Apr-
06 

40 Job in 
private 
company 

(Holds 
9000 
Equity 
shares of 
the 
company 
0.08%) 

Nil 

7. Rajesh
Singh
(Manager
)

6,00,000/
- 

Permanent MBA 11 
year
s 

02-May-
18 

10 
year
s 

Job in 
private 
company 

Nil 

8. Vinay Giri 
(Chief
Financial
Officer)

5,60,130/
- 

Permanent MBA 16 
year
s 

06-Sep-
06 

39 Job in 
private 
company 

(Holds 
9000 
Equity 
shares of 
the 
company 
0.08%) 

Nil 

9. Atul Jain 
(Head-
Finance)

5,52,00/- Permanent B.Co
m 

14 
year
s 

01-Oct-
07 

48 Job in 
private 
company 

Nil 

10. Anjali
Patel
(Head-
HR)

5,45,730/
- 

Permanent MBA 20 
year
s 

01-Apr-
06 

47 Job in 
private 
company 

Nil 

    There were no employees who in terms of remuneration drawn: 
i. if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in

the aggregate, was not less than One Crore and Two Lakh rupees; 
ii. if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that

year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Eight Lakh and Fifty Thousand rupees 
per month; 

iii. if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that
year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in 
excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by 
himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity 
shares of the company. 

30. Annual Listing Fees:

During the financial year under review, the company confirms that the annual listing fees to NSE 
Limited for the financial year 2022-23 has been paid. 

31. SHARES SUSPENSE ACCOUNT AND UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:

There are no shares in Suspense Account and/or in Unclaimed Suspense Account.
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32. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Our corporate governance practices are a reflection of our value system encompassing our culture,
policies and relationships with our stakeholders. At We Win, our board exercises its fiduciary
responsibilities in the widest sense of the term. Our disclosures seek to attain the best practices in
Corporate Governance also endeavor to enhance long term shareholder value and respect minority
rights in all our business decisions. The Report on Corporate Governance as per the requirement of
SEBI LODR 2015 forms part of this Annual Report.

A Certificate from the MD and CFO of the Company in terms of SEBI LODR 2015, inter alia,
confirming the correctness of the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statements, adequacy of the
internal control for financial reporting, and reporting of matters to the Audit Committee, is also
forming part of this Annual Report. (ANNEXURE- VI)

33. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT:

As per Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company was required to prepare/attach a
Management Discussion and Analysis Report as a part of this Board’s Report or addition thereto and
the same is attached as Annexure to this Report. (ANNEXURE- VII)

34. INTER - SE RELATIONSHIP OF DIRECTORS:

S. No. Name & DIN of Director Relation with Directors 
1 Abhishek Gupta 

(DIN: 01260263) 
Spouse of Mrs. Sonika Gupta (DIN: 01527904) Director of 
the company. 

2 Sonika Gupta  
(DIN: 01527904) 

Spouse of Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 01260263), Managing 
Director of the company. 

3 Ambreesh Tiwari 
(DIN: 01582960) 

No Relation with Directors 

4 Awdhesh Shah 
(DIN: 00184656) 

No Relation with Directors 

5 Vipin Mittal 
(DIN- 08298530) 

No Relation with Directors 

6 Rajiv Singh 
(DIN- 02245630) 

No Relation with Directors 

35. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors confirmthat:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of 
the company for that period; 

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
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(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

36. COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE CONSTITUTION OF INTERNAL
COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE

The company has constituted internal complaint committee in terms of requirements of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 at its
registered office.

Further during the financial year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

37. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD U/S 148(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013: NA

38. COMPLIANCES OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

39. DEVIATION IN UTILSATION OF FUND:

The Company has utilized the funds received from IPO for objects stated in the Offer Document
therefore there is no deviation in utilization of fund and as on the date of this report Company has
some outstanding unutilized amount which is invested in fixed Deposits.

40. GENERAL DISCLOSURES:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:
1. Issue of Right Shares.
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
4. Buy Back of Shares.
5. Significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the

going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

41. ISSUE OF BONUS SHARES:

During the year, the Company has made a allotment of Bonus Shares of 67,74,000 (Sixty- Seven 
Lakhs Seventy-Four thousand only) at a face value of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees Ten only) amounting to 
Rs. 6,77,40,000/- (Rupees Six crores Seventy-Seven Lakhs Forty Thousand only) out of free reserves 
created out of profits (i.e. P&L reserves) and the securities premium account of the Company. 

42. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR 
STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: NA 
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43. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE 
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:NA 

44. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation to the continued co-operation received from
the Banks, Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Members/Shareholders during the year
under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the
committed service of the Executives, staff and Workers of the Company and thank them for another
excellent year.

Place: Bhopal  For& on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Dated: 02/09/2022           We Win Limited 

     SD/-   SD/- 
Abhishek Gupta      Sonika Gupta 
(DIN: 01260263)         (DIN: 01527904) 

    Managing Director       Director 
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ANNEXURE-I 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries or 
Associate Companies or Joint Ventures 

Part A Subsidiaries:  
 (Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 
1. Sl. No. 01 
2. Name of the subsidiary NA 
3. The Date since when subsidiary was acquired NA 
4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s

reporting period
NA 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year
in the case of foreign subsidiaries

 NA 

6. Share capital NA
7. Reserves & surplus NA
8. Total assets NA
9. Total Liabilities NA
10. Investments NA
11. Turnover NA
12. Profit before taxation NA
13. Provision for taxation NA
14. Profit after taxation NA
15. Proposed Dividend NA
16 Extent of Shareholding (in percentage) NA

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

31



Part B Associates and Joint Ventures 
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 

Companies and Joint Ventures 

Name of Associate or Joint Venture Surevin Weartech Private Limited 
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2022 
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture
was associated or acquired 

08/03/2018 

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end 
No. 4,000 
Amount of Investment in Associate or Joint Venture 40,000 
Extend of Holding (in percentage) 40% 
4. Description of how there is significant influence Company holds more than 20% (i.e.

40%) of Total Share Capital (i.e. 
1,00,000) of the Associate Company 

5. Reason why the Associate / Joint Venture is not
Consolidated 

NA 

6. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet 

Rs. 6,16,401.02/- i.e. 40% of total 
Net Worth Rs. 15,41,002.7/- 

7. Profit or Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation Rs. (6,21,337.19)/-Loss After Tax 
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation -- 

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Place: Bhopal  For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Dated: 02/09/2022           We Win Limited 

  SD/-      SD/- 
For Sethia Manoj & Co.       Abhishek Gupta           Sonika Gupta 
Chartered Accountants     (DIN: 01260263)          (DIN: 01527904)     
FRN: 021080C       Managing Director    Director 

    SD/-           SD/-          SD/- 
(CA Manoj Sethia)            Vinay Kumar Giri           Ashish Soni 
Partner       Chief Financial Officer    Company Secretary 
M.No: 076091 
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FORM	NO.	MR‐3	

SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	
For	The	Financial	Year	Ended	On	31st	March,	2022	

[Pursuant	to	Section	204(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	Rule	No.	9	of	the	Companies		
(Appointment	and	Remuneration	of	Managerial	Personnel)	Rules,	2014]	

To,	
The	Members,		
We	Win	Limited	(Formerly	known	as	Surevin	BPO	Services	Limited)	
206‐207,	2nd	Floor,	Corporate	Zone,	C‐21	Mall,	
Hoshangabad	Road,	Misrod,	Bhopal,	(M.P.)	‐	462047	

I/We	were	appointed	by	the	Board	of	Directors	of	We	Win	Limited	(Formerly	known	as	Surevin	
BPO	Services	Limited)	{CIN:	L74999MP2007PLC019623}	(hereinafter	called	“the	Company”)	to	
conduct	Secretarial	Audit	for	the	financial	year	from	01st	April,	2021	to	31st	March,	2022	(“the	Audit	
Period”).	 I/We	 have	 conducted	 the	 secretarial	 audit	 of	 the	 compliance	 of	 applicable	 statutory	
provisions	and	the	adherence	 to	good	corporate	practices	by	the	Company.	Secretarial	Audit	was	
conducted	 in	 a	 manner	 that	 provided	 me/us	 a	 reasonable	 basis	 for	 evaluating	 the	 corporate	
conduct/	statutory	compliance	and	expressing	our	opinion	thereon.	

Management’s	Responsibility:	
The	Management	of	 the	Company	 is	 completely	 responsible	 for	preparation	and	maintenance	of	
Secretarial	records	and	for	developing	proper	systems	to	ensure	compliance	with	the	provisions	of	
applicable	Laws,	Rules	and	Regulations.	

Auditor’s	Responsibility:	
Our	 responsibility	 is	 to	 express	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	 secretarial	 records,	 standards	 and	 procedures	
followed	by	the	Company	with	respect	to	secretarial	compliances,	on	the	basis	of	verification	done	
by	us	on	test	basis.		

Further	our	responsibility	is	also	to	express	an	opinion	on	existence	of	adequate	Board	Process	and	
Compliance	–	Mechanism/	Compliance	Management	System,	based	on	these	secretarial	records	as	
shown	to	me/us	during	the	said	audit	and	also	based	on	the	information	furnished	to	me/us	by	the	
officers	and	the	agents	of	the	Company	during	said	audit.	

I/We	have	not	reviewed	the	compliance	by	the	Company	of	applicable	financial	laws	such	as	direct	
and	indirect	tax	laws	and	maintenance	of	financial	records	and	books	of	accounts	in	this	audit	since	
the	 same	have	been	subject	 to	 review	by	 the	 statutory	 financial	 auditors,	 tax	 auditors,	 and	other	
designated	professionals.		

Annexure II
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Based		on	 verification		of		the		Company’s		books,		papers,		minute		books,		forms		and	returns	 filed	
and	 other	 records	 maintained	 by	 the	 Company,	 to	 the	 extent	 information	 provided	 by	 the	
Company,	 its	 Company	 Secretary,	 its	 Officers,	 Agents,	 Functional	 Heads	 and	 Authorized	
Representatives	during	the	conduct	of	Secretarial	Audit,	the	explanations	and	clarifications	given	to	
me/us	and	the	representations	made	by	the	management,	 I/we		hereby		report	 	 that	 	 in	 	my/our	
opinion,	 	 the	 	Company	 	has,	 	during	 	 the	 	Audit	 	Period	covering	the	 financial	year	ended	on	31st	
March,	2022,	generally	complied	with	 the	statutory	provisions	 listed	hereunder	 and	also	 that	 the	
Company	 has	 proper	Board‐processes	 and	 compliance	 ‐	mechanism	 in	place	 to	 the	 extent,	 in	 the	
manner	and	subject	to	the	reporting	made	hereinafter:	

I/We		have		examined		the	 	books,	 	papers,	 	minute	 	books,	 	 forms		and		returns	 	 filed	 	and		other	
records	made	available	to	me/us	and	maintained	by	the	Company	for	the	financial	year	ended	on	
31st	March,	2022	according	to	the	provisions	of:	

(i) The	Companies	Act,	2013	(the	Act)	and	the	rules	made	thereunder;	

(ii) The	Securities	Contracts	(Regulation)	Act,	1956	(‘SCRA’)	and	the	rules	made	thereunder;	

(iii) The	Depositories	Act,	1996	and	the	Regulations	and	Bye‐laws	framed	thereunder;		

(iv) Foreign	Exchange	Management	Act,	1999	and	the	rules	and	regulations	made	thereunder	to	
the	 extent	 of	 Foreign	 Direct	 Investment,	 Overseas	 Direct	 Investment	 and	 External	
Commercial	Borrowings;	

(v) The	following	 Regulations	 and	 Guidelines	 prescribed	 under	 the	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	
Board	 of	India	Act,	1992	(‘SEBI	Act’)	viz.:	

(a) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Substantial	 Acquisition	 of	 Shares	
a nd	Takeovers)	Regulations,	2011;	

(b) The	 Securities	 	 	 and	 	 	 Exchange	 	 	 Board	 	 	 of	 	 	 India	 	 	 (Prohibition	 	 	 of	 	 	 Insider			
Trading)	Regulations,	2015;	

(c) The	 	 Securities	 	 and	 	 Exchange	 	 Board	 	 of	 	 India	 	 (Issue	 	 of	 	 Capital	 	 and	
Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2018;		

(d) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Share	 Based	 Employee	 Benefits)	
Regulations,	2014;	[Not	Applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	Audit	Period].	

(e) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Issue	 and	 Listing	 of	 Debt	
Securities)	 Regulations,	 2008;	 [Not	 Applicable	 to	 the	 Company	 during	 the	 Audit	
Period].	
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(f) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Registrars	 to	 an	 Issue	 and	 Share	
Transfer	Agents)	Regulations,	1993	regarding	the	Companies	Act	and	dealing	with	
Client;		

(g) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Delisting	 of	 Equity	 Shares)	
Regulations,	2009;	[Not	Applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	Audit	Period].	

(h) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Buyback	 of	 Securities)	 Regulations,	
2018;	[Not	Applicable	to	the	Company	during	the	Audit	Period].	

(i) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Listing	 Obligations	 and	 Disclosure	
Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.	

(vi) The	 Management/	 Company	 has	 identified	 and	 confirmed	 following	 laws	 as	 specifically	
applicable	to	the	Company:	

 The	Information	Technology	Act,	2000;
 The	Telecom	Regulatory	Authority	of	India	Act,	1997;

We	have	also	examined	compliance	with	the	applicable	clauses	of	the	following:	

(i) Secretarial	Standards	on	Meetings	of	Board	of	Directors	(SS‐1)	and	Secretarial	Standard	on	
General	Meetings	(SS‐2)	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Company	Secretaries	of	India.	

(ii) The	Listing	Agreement	entered	into	by	the	Company	with	National	Stock	Exchange	of	India.	
The	Company	was	Listed	on	SME	Platform	of	National	Stock	Exchange	i.e.	NSE	Emerge	upto	
07/06/2022	and	then	the	Company	has	entered	into	fresh	Listing	Agreement	with	National	
Stock	Exchange	of	India	and	BSE	Limited	for	listing	of	its	Securities	on	the	Exchange	(Main	
Board).	The	Certificate	has	been	issued	to	the	Company	on	June	13,	2022	and	permitted	to	
dealing	 on	 the	 Exchange	 (Capital	 Market	 Segment)	 w.e.f.	 June	 15,	 2022	 pursuant	 to	
migration	from	SME	Emerge.	

During	the	period	under	review,	the	Company	has	generally	complied	with	the	provisions	of	 the	
Act,	 Rules,	 Regulations,	 Guidelines,	 Standards	 etc.	 mentioned	 above	 subject	 to	 the	 following	
observations	as	mentioned	below:	

1. The	Companies	Act,	2013	(“the	Act”)	&	Rules	made	thereunder:

(a). As	per	information/	declaration	given	by	the	management,	Register	of	Members	with	Index
and	Register	of	Share	Transfer	is	maintained	by	the	Registrar	and	Transfer	Agent	(RTA)	at	
the	office	of	RTA	and	periodic	information	is	sent	to	the	Company.		
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(b). As	per	information/	declaration	given	by	the	management	and	Registrar	and	Transfer	Agent	
(RTA)	 notices	 of	 all	 the	 General	 Meetings	 (including	 AGM)	 in	 which	 Postal	 Ballot	 was	
conducted	by	the	Company	only	through	Remote	e‐voting	system,	have	been	given	to	all	
the	eligible	members,	whose	e‐mail	IDs	was	available/	registered	with	the	Company	and	
Depositories,	 through	 electronic	 means/	 e‐mails	 only	 and	 has	 not	 dispatched	 physical	
notices	to	any	member.	

(c). During	 the	 financial	 year	 under	 review,	 the	 Company	 has	 partially	 complied	 with	 the	
provisions	of	Section	158	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	Rules	made	thereunder.		

(d). During	the	financial	year	under	review,	the	Company	has	missed	to	mention	website	addresses	
in	some	of	the	documents/communication,	as	provided	in	section	12	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	

2. The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Listing	 Obligations	 and	 Disclosure
Requirements)	Regulations	{	“the	Listing	Regulations”}:

(a). As	per	information/documents	provided	by	the	management	and	on	the	basis	of	verification
done	by	us	on	test	basis,	during	the	financial	year	under	review	the	Company	has	complied	
with	the	provisions	of	Regulation	29/30	of	the	Listing	Regulations.		

(b). As	per	information/	clarification	provided	by	the	management,	the	Company	has	not	utilized	
the	funds	received	from	IPO,	for	objects	other	then	the	object	stated	 in	the	Offer	Document	
and	 the	 Company	 has	 filed	 statement	 referred	 to	 in	 Regulation	 32(2)	 of	 the	 Listing	
Regulations	 only	 for	 the	 unutilized	 amount.	 Further	 as	 informed/	 clarified	 by	 the	
management,	as	the	Company	has	not	utilized	the	funds	received	from	IPO,	for	objects	other	
then	the	object	stated	in	the	Offer	Document;	therefore	the	Company	has	neither	prepare	the	
statement	 referred	 to	 in	Regulation	32(5)	of	 the	Listing	Regulations	nor	placed	 the	 same	
before	the	audit	committee	meeting.	

3. Foreign	Exchange	Management	Act,	1999	and	the	rules	and	regulations	made	thereunder
to	 the	 extent	 of	 Foreign	 Direct	 Investment,	 Overseas	 Direct	 Investment	 and	 External
Commercial	Borrowings;

(a). As	 per	 information	 given	 by	 the	management,	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 issued/allotted	 any
security	 to	 any	 Non‐Resident	 of	 India;	 however	 the	 statement	 showing	 shareholding	
pattern	as	on	31/03/2022	{prepared	as	per	Regulation	31	of	the	SEBI	(LODR)	Regulations,	
2015}	 includes/reflects	NRI	 shareholding	 of	 12,000	 shares	 (representing	 total	 0.12%	 of	
total	 shareholding	 of	 the	 Company)	 and	 as	 per	 clarification	 given	 by	 the	management,	
aforesaid	 12,000	 shares	 have	 been	 purchased	 by	 the	 2	 (Two)	NRI(s)	 from	 open	market	
through	trading;	therefore	the	provisions/requirements	of	Foreign	Exchange	Management	
Act,	 1999	 and	 the	 rules/	 regulations	 made	 thereunder	 should	 be	 deemed	 to	 be	 not	
applicable	to	the	Company	for	the	financial	year	2021‐22.	
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4. The	 Information	Technology	Act,	2000	&	 the	Telecom	Regulatory	Authority	of	 India	Act,
1997:

(a).As	per	 information	given	by	 the	management,	during	 the	 financial	 year	under	 review,	 the
Company	has	not	submitted	any	Report/	Return/	Information/	Document/	Detail,	to	any	
Authorities/	 Institution,	 under	 the	 Information	 Technology	 Act,	 2000	 &	 the	 Telecom	
Regulatory	 Authority	 of	 India	 Act,	 1997	 and	 Rules/	 Regulations/	 Guidelines/	 Policies	
made/issued	thereunder	and	the	Company	has	also	not	received	any	show	cause	notice/	
objection/	any	other	order/	Directions	from	any	Authority	in	this	regard.		

(b). 			The	 Company	 has	 obtained	 a	 Registration	 Certificate	 for	 setting	 up	 a	 DOMESTIC	 OSP	 Centre	
under	 the	Other	 Service	 Provider	 (OSP)	 Category,	 from	Telecom	Enforcement,	 Resources	 and	
Monitoring	 Cell,	 Bhopal	 under	 the	 New	 Telecom	 Policy,	 1999	 of	 Department	 of	
Telecommunications,	Government	of	India.		

5. Labour	Laws:

(a). The	 Employee	 Provident	 Fund	 (EPF)	 &	Miscellaneous	 Provisions	 Act,	 1952:	 As	 per
information/documents	provided	by	the	management	and	on	the	basis	of	verification	done	
by	 us	 on	 test	 basis,	 during	 the	 financial	 year	 under	 review,	 the	 Company	 has	
filed/submitted/deposited,	Returns/Challans	of	EPF	on	or	before	due	dates,	Further	due	to	
non‐availability	 of	 the	 adequate	 supportings/information,	 we	 are	 unable	 to	 report	 the	
compliance	in	respect	of	maintenance	of	the	Records/	Registers	under	EPF	Act.	

(b). The	Employee	State	Insurance	(ESI)	Act,	1948:	As	per	 information/documents	provided	
by	 the	management	 and	 on	 the	 basis	 of	 verification	 done	 by	 us	 on	 test	 basis,	 during	 the	
financial	year	under	review,	the	Company	has	filed/submitted/deposited,	Returns/Challans	
of	 ESI	 on	 or	 before	 due	 dates.	 Further	 due	 to	 non‐availability	 of	 the	 adequate	
supportings/information,	we	are	unable	to	report	the	compliance	in	respect	of	maintenance	
of	the	Records/	Registers	under	ESI	Act.	

(c). Labour	Laws	(other	than	EPF	&	ESI	mentioned	above):	Due	to	non	availability	adequate	
supportings/	documents,	we	are	unable	to	report	compliance	of	Labour	Laws	applicable	to	
the	Company,	other	than	EPF	&	ESI	mentioned	above.	

6. During	the	financial	year	under	review,	the	Company	has	partially	complied	with	the	provisions/
requirements	 of	 the	 Act,	 Rules,	 Regulations,	 Guidelines,	 Standards,	 etc.	 mentioned	 above,	 in
respect	 of	 details/	 documents/	 matters	 required	 to	 be	 disclosed/	 placed/	 uploaded	 on	 the
Website	of	the	Company.

7. We	have	reviewed	the	compliance	by	the	Company	of	applicable	Labour/Specific	and	Other	laws
on	test	basis	and	on	the	information	and	supporting	provided	by	Management	from	time	to	time
and	 of	 opinion,	 that	 the	 Company	 has	 generally	 complied	 (except	 to	 the	 extent	 specifically
mentioned	above)	with	 the	provisions	of	 the	Act,	Rules,	Regulations,	Guidelines,	Standards,	 etc
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mentioned	above;	however	 there	are	 some	procedural/	Technical/	Legal	 lacunas	 in	 complying	
with	 some	 of	 the	 Act,	 Rules,	 Regulations,	 Guidelines,	 Standards,	 etc.	 Although	 we	 are	 not	
commenting	 on	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 coverage	 as	well	 as	 calculation	 for	 the	 same	 and	 for	
maintenance	of	Statutory	Records.	

8. Due	to	prevailing	circumstance	of	COVID‐19	pandemic,	the	Reporting	of	all	the	above	mentioned
Act/	Rules/	Regulations/	Guidelines/	Standards	 is	made	only	on	 the	basis	of	verification	of	 the
Company’s	books,	papers,	minutes	books,	 forms	and	 returns	 filed,	documents/	 information	and
other	 records	 furnished	 by/	 obtained	 from	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 officers,	 and	 on	 the	 basis	 of
information	available	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company.

I/We	further	report	that:	

The	Board	of	Directors	of	 the	Company	is	constituted	with	proper	balance	of	Executive	Directors,	
Non‐Executive	Directors	and	Independent	Directors.	The	changes	in	the	composition	of	the	Board	
of	Directors	that	took	place	during	the	period	under	review	were	carried	out	in	compliance	with	the	
provisions	of	the	Act	except	to	the	extent	specifically	mentioned	in	this	Report.	

As	per	information/declaration	given	by	the	management	and	as	per	verification	done	by	us	on	the	
test	 basis,	 adequate	 notices	 along	with	 agenda	 and	 detailed	 notes	 on	 agenda	 were	 given	 to	 all	
Directors,	to	schedule	the	Board	Meetings,	at	least	seven	days	in	advance	and	Board	Meetings	called	
at	shorter	notice	(if	any)	were	generally	in	compliance	with	applicable	provisions	of	the	Act,		and	 a	
system	exists	 for	 seeking	 and	obtaining	further	information	and	clarifications	on	the	agenda	items	
before	the	meeting	and	for	meaningful	participation	at	the	meeting.	

As	 per	 the	 minutes	 of	 the	 meetings	 recorded	 and	 signed	 by	 the	 Chairman/	 Chairperson,	 the	
decisions	of	the	Board	were	unanimous	and	no	dissenting	views	have	been	recorded.	

As	per	information/	declaration	given	by	the	management,	the	Company	has	kept	and	maintained	a	
Register	of	Contract	or	Arrangements	in	which	Directors	are	interested	in	Form	MBP‐4	and	during	
the	financial	year	under	review,	aforesaid	Register	(Form	MBP‐4)	is	not	placed	before	the	Board	in	
any	meeting	 of	 the	 Board	 because	 no	 particular/details	 of	 contacts	 or	 arrangements	 under	 sub‐
section	(2)	of	Section	184	and/or	under	Section	188	have	been	entered	in	aforesaid	Register	(Form	
MBP‐4).	

On	the	basis	of	information	provided	by	the	management,	I/We	further	report	that	during	the	
audit	 period,	 following	 events	 have	 occurred	 which	 are	 deemed	 to	 have	 major	 bearing	 on	 the	
Company’s	affairs	in	pursuance	of	the	above	referred	laws,	rules,	regulations,	guidelines,	standards,	
etc:	

i) The	 Members	 of	 the	 Company	 have	 passed	 resolution	 for	 issue	 of	 Bonus	 Shares	 by
capitalization	 of	 Rs.	 6,77,40,000/‐	 out	 of	 the	 free	 reserves	 created	 out	 of	 profits	 (i.e.	 P&L
Reserve)	 and	 Securities	 Premium	 Account	 through	 postal	 Ballot	 (done	 through	 Remote	 e‐
voting	only)	on	21st	March,	2021,	and	 in	pursuance	of	 the	aforesaid	Resolution,	 the	Board	of
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Directors	 of	 the	Company	 in	 their	meeting	held	 on	05th	April,	 2021,	 have	 allotted	67,74,000	
(Sixty	Seven	Lakhs	Seventy	Four	Thousand)	Bonus	Shares	at	face	value	of	Rs.	10/‐	(Rupees	Ten	
Only)	each.	

I/We	 further	 report	 that	 there	 are	 generally	 adequate	 systems	 and	 processes	 in	 the	 Company	
commensurate	with	the	size	and	operations	of	the	Company,	to	monitor	and	ensure	compliance	with	
applicable	 Laws,	 Rules,	 Regulations,	 Standards	 and	 Guidelines;	 however	 some	 deviations	 were	
observed	 during	 the	 audit	 period,	 but	 now	 the	 Company	 through	 its	 Company	 Secretary	 and/or	
Consultants/	Experts/	Advisors/	Advocates/	Professionals,	 is	striving	to	ensure	timely	compliance	
with	the	different	Acts/	Laws/	Rules/	Regulations/	Standards	and	Guidelines.		

For	S.	Anjum	&	Associates	
Company	Secretaries	

SD/‐	
Shadab	Anjum	
Membership	No.:	FCS	8893	
C.P.	NO:	10253	
Email:	csshadabanjum@gmail.com	

Bhopal										
Dated:	01st	September,	2022	
UDIN:	F008893D000888013	

This	 report	 is	 to	 be	 read	 with	 our	 letter	 of	 even	 date	 which	 is	 annexed	 as	 Annexure	 A	 and	
forms	an	 integral	part	of	this	 report.	

Annexure	‘A’	
To,	
The	Members,		
We	Win	Limited	(Formerly	known	as	Surevin	BPO	Services	Limited)	
206‐207,	2nd	Floor,	Corporate	Zone,	C‐21	Mall,	
Hoshangabad	Road,	Misrod,	Bhopal,	(M.P.)	‐	462047	

My/Our	report	of	even	date	is	to	be	read	along	with	this	letter.	

1. Maintenance	of	secretarial	record	is	the	responsibility	of	the	management	of	the	Company.
My/Our	 responsibility	 is	 to	 express	 an	 opinion	 on	 these	 secretarial	 records	 based	 on
my/our	audit.

2. I/We		have		followed		the		audit		practices		and		processes		as		were		appropriate		to		obtain
reasonable	assurance	about	the	correctness	of	the		contents	of	the	Secretarial	records.			The
verification	was	done	on	 test	basis	 to	ensure	 that	correct	 facts	are	reflected	 in	secretarial
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records.	 I /We	 believe	 that	 the	 processes	 and	 practices,	 I / we	 followed	 provide	 a	
reasonable	basis	for	my/our	opinion.	

3. I/We	have	not	verified	the	correctness	and	appropriateness	of	financial	records	and	Books
of	Accounts	of	the	company.

4. Where		ever		required,		I/we		have		obtained		the		Management		representation		about		the
compliance	of	laws,	rules	and	regulations	and	happening	of	events	etc.

5. The	compliance	of	the	provisions	of	Corporate	and	other	applicable	laws,	rules,	regulations,
standards	 is	 the	 responsibility	 of	 management.	 My/Our	 examination	 was	 limited	 to	 the
verification	of	procedures	on	test	basis.

6. The	 Secretarial	 Audit	 Report	 is	 neither	 an	 assurance	 as	 to	 the	 future	 viability	 of	 the
company	nor	of	the	efficacy	or	effectiveness	with	which	the	management	has	conducted	the
affairs	of	the	company.

For	S.	Anjum	&	Associates	
Company	Secretaries	

SD/‐	
Shadab	Anjum	
Membership	No.:	FCS	8893	
C.P.	NO:	10253	
Email:	csshadabanjum@gmail.com	
Bhopal										
Dated	01st	September,	2022	
UDIN:	F008893D000888013	
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ANNEXURE-III 

Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
 (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

Sr. 
No. 

Name(s) 
 of the relat
party and  
nature of 
relationshi
p 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
Arrange 
ments/ 
transactio
ns 

Duration of 
the contracts
/Arrange 
ments/ 
transaction
s 

Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Justification for 
entering into  
such contracts  
or 
arrangements 
or transactions 

Date(s) 
of appro 
val by 
the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 
advances 
, if any 

Date on which 
the special 
resolution was 
passed in  
General 
meeting as 
required  
under first  
proviso to  
section 188 

1. NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Sr.  
No. 

Name(s) of the 
related party  
and nature of  
relationship 

Nature of  
contracts/ 
Arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of  
the contracts/ 
Arrange ments/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including 
the value, if any 

Date(s)  
of approval 
by the Board 

Amount paid 
as advances, 
if any 

1. NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Place: Bhopal  For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Dated: 02/09/2022           We Win Limited 

    SD/-               SD/- 
     Abhishek Gupta        Sonika Gupta 

 (DIN: 01260263)        (DIN: 01527904)      
 Managing Director             Director 
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ANNEXURE-IV 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

As per CSR Policy Attached. 

Web-Link to the CSR policy: http://www.wewinlimited.com/policies/csr-policy.pdf 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Director 

Designation / 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee 
attended during 

the year 
1 Mr. Abhishek Gupta 

(DIN: 01260263) 
Chairman / 
Promoter  
executive 

1 1

2 Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari 
(DIN- 01582960) 

Member / 
Independent  

Non-executive 

1 1

3 Mr. Awdhesh Shah 
(DIN- 00184656)  

Member / 
Independent  

Non-executive 

1 1

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company:
http://www.wewinlimited.com

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): NA

Note: Every company having average CSR obligation of ten crore rupees or more in
pursuance of sub section (5) of section 135 of the Act, in the three immediately
preceding financial years, shall undertake impact assessment, through an independent
agency, of their CSR projects having outlays of one crore rupees or more, and which
have been completed not less than one year before undertaking the impact study)

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and
amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:
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Sl. 
No. 

Financial Year Amount available for 
set-off from preceding 
financial years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be 
setoff for the financial 

year, if any (in Rs) 
1 NA NA NA
 TOTAL 

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5):    Rs. 4,44,00,000/-
lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.
8,88,000/- .

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: NA

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NA

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b + 7c): Rs.  8,88,000/-.

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 

as per section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5) 
Amount Date of 

transfer 
Name of 
the Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Rs. 8,90,000/- NA NA NA NA NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial 
year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 
Sl 
No. 

Name 
of the 
Project 

Item 
from 
the 
list of 
activiti
es in 
Sched
ule 
VII to 
the 
Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No) 

Location of 
the project 

Proje
ct 
durati
on 

Amou
nt 
alloca
ted 
for 
the 
proje
ct (in 
Rs.). 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
current 
financial 
year  
(in Rs.). 

Amount 
transferr
ed to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
for the 
project 
as per 
Section 
135(6)  
(in Rs.) 

Mode 
of 
Imple
ment
a 
tion – 

Direct 

(Yes/
No). 

Mode of
Implementation - 
Through 
Implementing 
Agency 

Stat
e  

Distr
ict 

Name CSR 
Registra
tion 
Number 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
 TOTAL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the 
financial year:  
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
Sl 
No. 

Name of 
the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 
in 
Schedule 
VII to the 
Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No). 

Location of 
the project 

Amoun
t Spent 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.) 

Mode of 
Implemen
ta 
tion – 

Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of
Implementation -
Through Implementing 
Agency 

Stat
e  

Distri
ct 

Name CSR 
Registratio
n Number 

1 Promoting 
Health 
Care 

Promoting 
Health 
Care 

Yes M.P. Bhopal Rs. 
8,90,0
00/- 

Yes Community 
Action 
Through 
Motivation 
Programme 
(CAMP) 

CSR0001357
0 

 TOTAL

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 8,90,000/- 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 8,88,000/- 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 

per section 135(5) 
8,88,000 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 8,90,000 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2,000 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 

or activities of the previous financial years, if any 
NA 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

2,000 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. 
No
. 

Precedin
g 

Financial 
Year 

Amount 
transferre

d to 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
under 

section 
135 (6) 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
reportin

g 
Financial 
Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any 

Amount 
remaining 

to be 
spent in 

succeedin
g 

Financial 
years 

(in Rs.) 

Nam
e of 
the 

Fund 

Amoun
t (in 
Rs). 

Date of 
transfe

r 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 
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 TOTAL 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of 
the preceding financial year(s): 

(1
) 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. 
N
o. 

Projec
t ID 

Nam
e of 
the 
Proj
ect 

Financi
al year 

in 
which 

the 
Project 

was 
Comme

nced 

Proje
ct 

Durati
on 

Total 
Amoun

t 
Allocat
ed for 

the 
Project 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
Spent 
on the 
Project 
in the 

reportin
g 

financial 
year  (in 

Rs.) 

Cumulati
ve 

amount 
spent at 
the end 

of 
reporting 
Financial 

Year 
(in Rs.) 

Status 
of the 

Project 
– 

Complet
ed/ 

Ongoing 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 
TOTAL 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to
the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:
(asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such

capital asset is registered, their address etc: NA 
(d) Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and

location of the capital asset): NA 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5): NA

Place: Bhopal         For & on behalf of the Board of Directors   
Dated: 02/09/2022          of We Win Limited 

   SD/-        SD/- 
    Abhishek Gupta         Sonika Gupta    

       (DIN: 01260263)             (DIN: 01527904)        
   Chairman of CSR Committee &      Director 

  Managing Director   
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy 

This Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“the CSR Policy”) has been framed by We Win 
Limited (the Company) in accordance with the Section 135, Schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and CSR Rules issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

Company Philosophy for CSR Policy: 

This policy encompasses the company’s philosophy for giving back to society as a corporate 
citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful 
programmes for the welfare & sustainable development of the community at large. 

This policy shall apply to all CSR initiatives and activities to be undertaken by the Company as 
per provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under as applicable from time to 
time. 

Purpose  

To lay down guidelines and ensuring the implementation of CSR initiatives in letter and spirit 
through appropriate procedures and reporting. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

Board of Directors shall constitute the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“the 
Committee”) comprising of three Directors out of which one Director shall be an Independent 
Director. 

Board of Directors of the Company may re-constitute the Committee, as and when required to 
do so, by following the sections, sub-sections, rules, regulations, notifications issued or to be 
issued, from time to time, by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or the Central Government of 
India. The Committee shall exercise powers and perform the functions assigned to it by the 
Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
CSR Rules notified with regard thereto. 

The meetings of the Committee can be convened as and when deemed appropriate to discuss 
and review CSR activities and Policy. A quorum of two members is required to be present for 
the proceedings to take place.  

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee. 

CSR Activities: 

Pursuant to Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Committee has approved the 
following activities as “CSR Activities” to be under take under the CSR policy of the Company. 
The Board of Directors has reviewed the said activities and express its consent to the 
Committee to pursue the said activities under CSR policy of the Company under section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VII and other applicable rules, regulations, notifications 
etc., issued/to be issued from time to time. 

46



Approved CSR Activities: 

1. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health care including
preventive health care and sanitation including contribution to the Swatch Bharat
Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making
available safe drinking water;

2. Promoting education, including primary, secondary and higher secondary education, as
well as special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement
projects;

3. Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other 
facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially 
and economically backward groups; 

4. Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and 
maintaining quality of soil, air and water including contribution to the Clean Ganga 
Fund set-up by the Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga; 

5. Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and
sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion 
and development of traditional art and handicrafts; 

6. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;
7. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognised sports, paralympic sports and

Olympic sports;
8. Contribution to the prime minister's national relief fund or any other fund set up by

the central govt. for socio economic development and relief and welfare of the
schedule caste, tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

9. Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions which are approved by the central govt;

10. Rural development projects;
11. Slum area development;

Exclusion from CSR 

The following activity shall not form part of the CSR activities of the Company:- 

1. The activities undertaken in pursuance of normal course of business of a company.
2. CSR projects/programs or activities that benefit only the employees of the Company

and their families.
3. Any contribution directly/indirectly to political party or any funds directed towards

political parties or political causes.
4. Any CSR projects/programs or activities undertaken outside India.

Budget for CSR Activity& CSR Expenses: 

The Company shall allocate the budget for CSR activities. The minimum budgeted amount for 
a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit of three immediate preceding financial 
years. The Company may allocate more fund/amount than the amount prescribed under 
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the CSR activities for any financial year. The 
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Committee shall calculate the total fund for the CSR activities and recommend to the Board for 
the approval. The Board shall approve the total fund to be utilized for CSR activity for 
respective financial year. 

However if the Company ceases to be covered under sub-section (1) of Section 135 of the Act 
for three financial years, then it shall not be required to, comply with the provisions laid down 
under sub-section (2) to (5) of the said section, till such time it meets the criteria specified in 
sub-section (1) of the Act. 

Transparent Monitoring Mechanism 

The CSR Committee shall prepare a transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring proper 
utilization of funds/implementation of the projects/ programmes /activities proposed to be 
undertaken by the Company. 

The CSR Committee shall have the authority to obtain professional advice from external 
sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the Company as well as 
the powers to call any employee or external consultant or such other person(s) and for such 
purpose as may be deemed expedient for the purpose of accomplishments of overall CSR 
objectives laid down under the Act. 

Review and Reporting  

The CSR Committee will review and provide progress update to the Board of Directors every 
six months/at such other intervals as it may deem fit.  

The Company will report the details of CSR initiatives and activities of the Company in the 
Directors' Report and on the website of the Company, as required under the Regulations. 

Monitoring  

The CSR Committee and persons /entities authorised by it, will conduct due diligence checks 
on the current CSR activities/projects at such intervals as it may deem fit and report 
anomalies, if any, immediately. 

Amendments to the Policy  

The Board of Directors on its own and/or as per the recommendations of CSR Committee can 
amend this Policy, as and when required as deemed fit, any or all provisions of the CSR Policy 
would be subject to revision/amendment in accordance with the Act on the subject as may be 
issued from relevant statutory authorities, from time to time. 
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ANNEXURE-V 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

Introduction:  

This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management has been formulated by the Committee, in compliances with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with applicable rules thereto. 

Objectives of the Committee:  

The Committee shall: 

i. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of the Independent Director and to carry out evaluation of
every Director’s performance and to provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation.

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity.

iv. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this
policy.

v. To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

vi. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

vii. Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of
remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 

viii. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced
by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 

ix. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

x. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

Definitions:  

• “Act”:- Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time
to time. 

• “Board”:-Board means Board of Directors of the Company.

• “Director”:-Directors means Directors of the Company.

• “Committee”:- Committee means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as
constituted or reconstituted by the Board, from time to time. 

• “Company”:- Company means Surevin BPO Services Limited.

• “Independent Director”:- As provided under the Companies Act, 2013, ‘Independent director’
shall mean a non-executive director, other than a nominee director of the Company:  
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a. who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and
experience;  

b. (i) who is or was not a promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate   company;

(ii) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company;  

c.  apart from receiving director's remuneration, has or had no pecuniary relationship with the
Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate Company, or their promoters, or directors, during the
two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

d. none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate Company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two
percent. or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as
may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

e. who, neither himself nor any of his relatives —

i. holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;

ii. is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed; of-

(A). a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its
holding, subsidiary or associate Company; or 

(B). any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, its 
holding, subsidiary or associate Company amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross 
turnover of such firm;  

iii. holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total voting power of the
Company; or

iv. is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that
receives twenty-five per cent or more of its receipts from the Company, any of its promoters,
directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company or that holds two per cent or more of
the total voting power of the Company; or

f. who possesses such other qualification as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory
provisions/ regulations

g. is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the Company;

h. who is not less than 21 years of age.

• “Key Managerial Personnel”:- Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means-

(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;  
(ii) the Whole-Time Director;  
(iii) the Company Secretary;  
(iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and  
(v) such other officer as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions/ 

regulations. 
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• “Senior Management”:- The expression ‘senior management’ means personnel of the Company
who are members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all 
members of management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.  

• “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of
the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013.  

• “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

• “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined 
herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the 
meaning respectively assigned to them therein.  

Guiding Principles 

The Policy ensures that  

i. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully

ii. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks and

iii Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate 
to the working of the Company and its goals.  

Applicability:  

The Policy is applicable to  
i. Directors (Executive and Non Executive)
ii. Key Managerial Personnel
iii. Senior Management Personnel
iv. Employees

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:  

The Board has the power to constitute/ reconstitute the Committee from time to time in order to make 
it consistent with the Company’s policy and applicable statutory requirement.  

Membership:  

a. The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
independent.

b. Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.

c. Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

d. Any member of this committee ceasing to be a director shall also be ceased to be a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Chairman:  

a. Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.
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b. Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee.

c. In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

d. Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual
General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

Frequency of Meetings:  

The Committee shall meet at such regular intervals as may be required.  

Committee Members’ Interests:  

a. A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

b. The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

Secretary:  

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 

Voting:  

a. Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of
Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of
the Committee.

b. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

General Appointment Criteria:  

i. The Committee shall consider the ethical standards of integrity and probity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and
accordingly recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

ii. The Company should ensure that the person so appointed as Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/
Senior Management Personnel shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
there under or any other enactment for the time being in force.

iii. The Director/ Independent Director/ KMP/ Senior Management Personnel shall be appointed as per
the procedure laid down under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under,
or any other enactment for the time being in force.

iv. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing
Director/Whole-time Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that 
the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with 
the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement 
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment 
beyond seventy years.  

Term / Tenure:  

The Term / Tenure of the Directors shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under as amended from time to time.  
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1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person):- The Company shall appoint
or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No
re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

2. Independent Director: - An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive
years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's Report. No
Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an
Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of
three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either
directly or indirectly. At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that
number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves as an Independent Director.

Evaluation:  

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior 
Management at regular interval (yearly).  

Removal:  

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under 
or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations or any other reasonable ground, the 
Committee may recommend to the Board for removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management 
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.  

Retirement:  

The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to 
retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even 
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.  

Criteria for Evaluation of the Board:  

Following are the Criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board:  

1.  Executive Directors: The Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of targets/Criteria
given to executive Directors by the Board from time to time

2.  Non Executive Director: The Non Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of the
following criteria i.e. whether they:

(a) act objectively and constructively while exercising their duties;  

(b) exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the Company;  

(c) devote sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and balanced 
decision making; 

(d) do not abuse their position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose 
of gaining direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person; 

(e) refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence 

(f) inform the Board immediately when they lose their independence, 

(g) assist the Company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.  

(h) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees;  
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(i) participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are 
chairpersons or members;  

(j) strive to attend the general meetings of the Company;  

(k) keep themselves well informed about the Company and the external environment in which it 
operates;  

(l) do not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee of the Board;  

(m) moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the Company as a whole, in situations of conflict 
between management and shareholder’s interest. 

(n) abide by Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, Company’s policies and procedures 
including code of conduct, insider trading etc. 

Policy on Board diversity: 

The Board of Directors shall have the optimum combination of Directors from the different areas/fields 
like production, Management, Quality Assurance, Finance, Sales and Marketing, Supply chain, 
Research and Development , Human Resources etc or as may be considered appropriate. The Board 
shall have at least one Board member who has accounting or related financial management expertise 
and financially literate.  

Remuneration:  

The Committee will recommend the remuneration to be paid to the Managing Director, Whole Time 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel to the Board for their approval. The level and 
composition of remuneration so determined by the Committee shall be reasonable and sufficient to 
attract, retain and motivate directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the 
quality required to run the Company successfully. The relationship of remuneration to performance 
should be clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration should also involve 
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals:  

General:  

1. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for
approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post
approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.

2. The remuneration and commission to be paid to Managerial Person shall be as per the statutory
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

3. Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case
of Managerial Person. Increments will be effective from the date of reappointment in respect of
Managerial Person and 1st April in respect of other employees of the Company.

4.  Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial Person, KMP and any
other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance
shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if
such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of
the remuneration.

Remuneration to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management:  

1. Fixed pay: Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in
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accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there 
under for the time being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites 
including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be 
decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the 
shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.  

2. Minimum Remuneration: If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such
provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government.

3. Provisions for excess remuneration: If any Managerial Person draws or receives, directly or
indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / 
she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the 
Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by 
the Central Government.  

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director:  

1. Remuneration / Commission: The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under for the time
being in force.

2. Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees
for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall
not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the
Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to
time.

3. Limit of Remuneration /Commission: Remuneration /Commission may be paid within the monetary
limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the
Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Minutes of Committee Meeting:  

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the 
Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the 
subsequent Board and Committee meeting. 

Deviations from this policy  

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the 
interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case. 
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ANNEXURE-VI 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

In accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015”), the Board of Directors of We Win Limited (“the 
Company”) has pleasure in presenting the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year ended 
March 31,2022. 

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

We Win Limited (Company’s) philosophy of Corporate Governance is build on a foundation of ethics and transparent 
business operations and is dedicated in conducting its business consistent with the highest standards of business 
ethics and values. Company has adopted the values of good governance and tried it’s best to abide by all the rules 
and regulations as applicable to the Company. Company feels it’s obligation towards its stakeholders including 
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and communities to be honest, fair and forthright. This culture 
inspires trust among all stakeholders and strengthens the Board and management accountability. 

Company believes that good Corporate Governance brings trust and accountability and helps in achieving its 
objective with higher efficiency. The practice of responsible governance has enabled it to achieve sustainable growth, 
while meeting the aspirations of its stakeholders and fulfilling societal expectations. 

This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the report 
contains the details of Corporate Governance systems and processes at We Win Limited. 

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 

The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance norms in terms of constitution of the Board of 
Directors (The Board). The Board of the Company is composed of executive and non-executive independent 
Directors. As on March 31, 2022, the strength of the Board was Six Directors comprising of two executive and four 
non-executive independent. Fifty percent of the Board of the Company is comprised of Independent Director. 
Detailed profile of the Directors is available on the Company’s website at http://www.wewinlimited.com/ 

(a) Composition and Category of directors as on March 31, 2022: 
S 
No. 

Name of the Director and 
Director Identification 
Number (DIN) 

Designation Category

1. Mrs. Sonika Gupta 
(DIN:01527904) 

Chairman Promoter, Executive Director 

2. Mr. Abhishek Gupta
(DIN:01260263)

Managing Director Promoter, Executive Director 

3. Mr. Rajiv Singh
(DIN:02245630)

Non- Executive Non-
Independent Director 

Non- Executive Director 

4. Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari
(DIN:0158296)

Independent Director Non-Executive, Independent Director 

5. Mr. Awdhesh Shah
(DIN: 00184656)

Independent Director Non-Executive, Independent Director 

6. Mr. Vipin Mittal
(DIN:08298530)

Independent Director Non-Executive, Independent Director 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has obtained a Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice certifying that none of the Directors of the 
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or by any such statutory 
authority. 

Independent Directors: 
Declarations 
Company had following three Independent Directors as on March 31, 2022: 
1. Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN:0158296)
2. Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN: 00184656)
3. Mr. Vipin Mittal (DIN:0829850)
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All the Independent Directors of your Company, viz., Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari, Mr. Awdhesh Shah, Mr. Vipin Mittal have 
registered themselves with the databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, in terms of the 
provisions of amended Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2019 and the 
Companies (Creation and Maintenance of Databank of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019. 

The Company has received declarations from all the above named Independent Directors confirming that they meet 
the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6)of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Schedules 
and Rules issued thereunder, as well as clause (b) of sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 16 of the SEBI(LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). 

The Board of Directors, based on the declaration(s) received from the Independent Directors, have verified the 
veracity of such disclosures and confirm that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence 
specified in the SEBI(LODR) Regulations,2015 and are independent of the management of the Company. 

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in compliance with the Act and Rules made there under. The 
Company -issues a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner as provided in the 
Companies Act, 2013. As per regulation 46(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors are 
placed on the Company’s website http://www.wewinlimited.com/ 

Based on intimations/disclosures received from the Directors periodically, none of the Directors of the Company hold 
memberships/Chairmanships more than the prescribed limits. 

(b) CHANGES IN BOARD COMPOSITION DURING THE YEAR: 
1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of

Association of the Company, Mr. Rajiv Singh (DIN 02245630), Director of the Company is liable to retire by 
rotation at the forthcoming 15

th (Fifteenth) Annual General Meeting (AGM), and being eligible, has offered
himself for re-appointment. 

2. Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 01260263), Managing Director was Re-appointed as Managing Director of the
company in continuation of previous employment for a period of 5 years commencing from 01st October 2021
to 30th September 2026 at the 14

th (Fourteenth) Annual General Meeting (AGM).

3. Mr. Awdhesh Shah & Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari, was Re-appointed as Independent Directors of the Company for the
Second term for upto 5 consecutive years with effect from 15th March 2022.

(c) Number of meetings of the board of directors held and dates on which held: 

During the Financial year 2021-22, The Board of the Company met Six (6) times on 05/04/2021, 21/06/2021, 
27/08/2021, 29/10/2021, 31/12/2021 and 05/02/2022, with maximum time gap of less than one hundred and 
twenty days between any two meetings. All the members of the Board were provided requisite information as 
required as per Schedule II Part A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 well before the Board Meeting. 

(d) Attendance of each director at the Board meetings held during financial year 2021-22 and at the 
last Annual General Meeting: 

Name of Directors 
and Director 
Identification 
Number (DIN) 

Board Meetings Date AGM Held on
30   September 
2021 

05 April
2021 

21 June 
2021 

27 August 
2021 

29 October
2021 

31 December 
2021 

05 February 
2022 

Mrs. Sonika Gupta 
(DIN:01527904) 

       

Mr. Abhishek Gupta 
(DIN:01260263) 

       

Mr. Rajiv Singh 
(DIN:02245630) 

x x x   x  x 
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Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari 
(DIN:0158296) 

       

Mr. Awdhesh Shah 
(DIN: 00184656) 

   x     

Mr. Vipin Mittal 
(DIN:08298530) 

x  x x   x x  x 

 Present  x Absent   NA- Not Applicable being not a director at the time of meeting. 

Independent Director’s Meetings: 
During the financial year 2021-22, the Independent Directors met on February 10, 2022 and interalia, 
discussed inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole, 
performance of Chairman of the Company and assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties. 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was conducted on 10th February, 2022 in 
terms of provisions of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Except Mr. Vipin Mittal (DIN: 08298530), all 
the independent directors of the Company were present at the meeting. 

(e) The details of Directorships, relationship inter-se, shareholding in the Company, number of 
Directorships and Committee Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in other public companies as 
on March 31,2022 are detailed below: 

Sl
No 

Name of  the 
Director and
Director 
Identification 
Number(DIN) 

Nature of 
Directorship 

Relationship 
with each 
Other 

Directorship 
held in listed
Companies 
and category
of Directorship 

Direct
orship 
in 
other 
Comp
anies* 

Membership and 
Chairmanship of 
The Committees of the
Board of Companies** 

No. of shares
held in the 
Company along
with % to the
paid up share
capital of 
The Company 

No. of 
membership
s in 
committees 

No. of post
of Chairman
in 
committees 

 

1 Mrs. Sonika 
Gupta 
(DIN:01527904) 

Chairman Spouse of 
Mr. 
Abhishek 
Gupta (DIN: 
01260263), 
Managing 
Director of 
the 
company 

We Win
Limited 

Nil  1 0 3395700 
(33.41%) 

2 Mr. Abhishek 
Gupta 
(DIN:01260263) 

Managing 
Director 

Spouse of 
Mrs. Sonika 
Gupta (DIN: 
01527904) 
Director of 
the 
company 

We Win 
Limited 

Nil 1 1 2544270 
(25.03%) 

3 
. 

Mr. Rajiv Singh 
(DIN:02245630) 

Non- 
Executive 
Non- 
Independent 
Director 

No 
Relation 
with 
Director
s 

We Win
Limited 

Nil 0 0 Nil 

4 Mr. Ambreesh 
Tiwari 
(DIN:0158296) 

Independent
Director 

No Relation 
with 
Directors 

We Win
Limited 

Nil 3 1 Nil 
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5 Mr. Awdhesh 
Shah 
(DIN: 
00184656) 

Independent
Director 

No Relation 
with 
Directors 

We Win 
Limited 

Nil 2 2 Nil 

6 Mr. Vipin Mittal 
(DIN:08298530) 

Independen
tDirector 

No Relation 
with 
Directors 

We Win 
Limited 

Nil 1 0 Nil 

*Excludes directorship in private companies, foreign companies, companies incorporated under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and alternate directorships. 

** In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Membership(s) /Chairmanship(s) of only 
Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees in all public limited companies (including We Win 
Limited) have been considered, excludes memberships and chairmanships in private companies, foreign companies, 
companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

None of the Directors of the Company is: 
a) A Director in more than 10 (ten) public limited companies -As per Section 165 of the Act;
b) a Director in more than 7 (seven) listed companies – As per Regulation 17A of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015; 
c) an Independent Director in more than 7 (seven) listed companies OR 3 (three) listed companies (in case he
/she serves as a Whole Time Director / Managing Director in any listed Company) - As per Regulation 17A of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015; 
d) a Member of more than 10 (ten) Committees and Chairman of more than 5 (five) Committees across all the
Indian public limited companies in which he / she is a Director-As per Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

(f) Web-Link of Familiarisation Programme: 
The details of the familiarization programme of the Independent Directors are available on the website of the 
company http://www.wewinlimited.com/ 

(g) Key Board qualifications, expertise and attributes: 
The Company’s core business(es) include Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) Services (Outbound & Inbound), 
Software Development Services, Website Design & Development and Skill Development & Training etc. 

The following is the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 
context of the Company’s aforesaid business(es) for it to function effectively and those available with the Board as a 
whole. 

1. BPO Services Technical & Software knowledge: As the Company’s Business is Business Process
Outsourcing (BPO) Services, the key Skill required in the Board is Technical & Software Knowledge. 

2. Financial skills: Understanding the financial statements, financial controls, risk management, etc.
3. General management/Governance: Strategic thinking, decision making and protect interest of all
stakeholders 
4. Depth Understanding of the Market conditions.

The details of skills/expertise/competence possessed by Directors are given below: 
S No. Name of the 

Directors/Skills 
BPO Services 
Technical& 
Software 
Knowledge 

Financials 
kills 

General 
management/
Governance 

Depth Understanding 
of the  Market conditions 

1. Mrs. Sonika Gupta
(DIN:01527904)

   

2. Mr. Abhishek Gupta
(DIN:01260263)

    

3. Mr. Rajiv Singh 
(DIN:02245630) 

   

4. Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari 
(DIN:0158296) 

 

59



5. Mr. Awdhesh Shah
(DIN: 00184656)

   

6. Mr. Vipin Mittal 
(DIN:08298530) 

  

III. AUDIT COMMITTEE
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are wide and in line with the regulatory requirements of Section177 
of the Act and Part C of Schedule II and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015),which are as 
follow: 

(1)  oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  

(2)  recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed 
entity;  

(3)  approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;  
(4)  reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  
(a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the 

board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 
(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;  
(c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
(d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;  
(f)  disclosure of any related party transactions;  
(g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;  

(5)  reviewing, with the management, the quarterly / half yearly financial statements before submission to 
the board for approval;  

(6)  reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the 
monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;  

(7)  reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process;  

(8)  approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;  
(9)  scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
(10) valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;  
(11) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  
(12)  reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;   
(13)  reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;  

(14) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  
(15) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board;  

(16) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  

(17) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  

(18)  to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;  
(19) approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;  
(20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.  
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As on March 31, 2022, the Composition of Audit Committee was as follow: 
Name of Member Category Status 
Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656) Non-executive, Independent Director Chairman & Member 

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960) Non-executive, Independent Director Member 

Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN- 01260263) Executive Director/Promoter Member 

There are no changes in the Composition of the Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2021-22. 

All the Members of the Audit Committee possess the requisite qualification for appointment as Members on the 
Committee and also sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal controls. 

During Financial year 2021-22, the Audit Committee Meetings were held Five (5) times on 01/05/2021, 21/06/2021, 
10/08/2021, 29/10/2021 and 05/02/2022. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as Secretary to the 
Audit Committee. The Board has accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee. Details of the 
attendance of the members of Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings held during the Financial Year 
2021-22 are as follow: 

Name of Member 
and  Director 
Identification 
number(DIN) 

Audit Committee Meetings Date 
01 May 2021 21 June 2021 10 August 2021 29 October 2021 05 February 2022 

Mr. Awdhesh Shah 
(DIN- 00184656)     

     

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari 
(DIN- 01582960) 

     

Mr. Abhishek Gupta 
(DIN- 01260263) 

     

 Present x Absent NA-Not Applicable being not a member of the Committee at the time of meeting 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings 

The previous Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the   Company was held on September 30, 2021 and was 
attended by Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN: 00184656), Chairman of the audit committee. 

IV. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements 
mandated in the Act and Regulation 19 read with part D of Schedule II and other applicable provisions of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations,2015), which were as follow: 

(1) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees;  

(2) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;  
(3) devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
(4) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal. 
(5) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of 

performance evaluation of independent directors. 

As on March 31, 2022, the Composition of Nomination and remuneration Committee were as follow: 
Name of Member Category Status 
Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656)     Non-executive, Independent Director Chairman & Member 

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960) Non-executive, Independent Director Member 

Mr. Vipin Mittal (DIN- 08298530) Non-executive, Independent Director Member 

There are no changes in the Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the Financial Year 
2021-22. 

61



During Financial year 2021-22, the Nomination and remuneration Committee met 2 (two) times on 10/08/2021 and 
31/12/2021. Details of the attendance of the members of Nomination and remuneration Committee at the 
Nomination and remuneration Committee meetings held during the Financial Year 2021-22 are as follow: 

Name of Member and Director 
Identification number(DIN) 

Nomination and remuneration Committee Meetings Date 
10 August 2021 31 December 2021 

Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656)   

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960)   

Mr. Vipin Mittal (DIN- 08298530)     x 

 Present x Absent NA- Not Applicable being not a member of the Committee at the time of meeting. 
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

The previous Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company was held on September 30, 2021 and was attended 
by Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN: 00184656), Chairman of the Committee. The Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer acts as Secretary to the Nomination and remuneration Committee. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors has been done by all Directors except Director being evaluated and performance 
evaluation of the Committees of the Board and individual Directors has been done by the entire Board of Directors as 
a whole. 

The Structured Rating sheets for evaluation of Independent Directors, its own performance, and that of its 
committees and individual Directors were placed down before the Directors. Directors assigned the specific ratings in 
Rating Sheets after taking into consideration various aspects and vital feedback was received from them on how the 
Board currently operates and how it might improve its effectiveness. The Board of Directors has express edits 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
(i) Remuneration Policy: 

Pursuant to Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has laid down the Remuneration policy, which states as under: 

The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and 
retain talent. 

Remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees will be ascertained as per Section 
196,197,198 and rules made there under and Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and listing 
agreement/regulation. 

Further, The Remuneration shall take into account the Company's overall performance, contribution for the same & 
trends in the industry in general, in a manner which will ensure and support a high-performance culture 002E 

The Remuneration to others will be such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks. 

Remuneration will involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

Non-Executive Directors are eligible for fixed amount of sitting fees plus out of pocket expenses for attending 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 

Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes & independence of Director Qualifications of 
Independent Director: 
An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, 
law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations or other disciplines 
related to the company's business. 

Positive attributes of Independent Directors: 
An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who 
shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities 
in a bona-fide manner in the interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional 
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obligations for informed and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate 
governance practices. 

Independence of Independent Directors: 
An Independent director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 concerning independence of 
directors." 

Above policy has been also disseminated on the website of the Company at http://www.wewinlimited.com/. 

(ii) Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Director during the financial year ended March 31, 
2022 are given below:- 

Executive
Director 

Salary (p.a) 
(Amount in 
Rs.) 

Pension Perquisite Bonus Stock 
Options 

Performance 
incentive 

Commission Total 
(Amount in 
Rs.) 

Mrs. Sonika 
Gupta 
(DIN:01527904) 

60,00,000/- - - - - - - 60,00,000/- 

Mr. Abhishek 
Gupta 
(DIN:01260263) 

60,00,000/- - - - - - - 60,00,000/- 

No sitting fees were given to any Executive Directors during financial Year 2021-22. 

(iii) Service Contract, notice period, severance fees: 
1. Members of the Company in its 14

th 
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2021 had Re-appointed Mr.

Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 01260263), as Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 05 (five) years,
commencing from 01st October 2021 to 30th September, 2026, in continuation of previous employment.

2. Services of the Managing Director may be terminated by either party, giving the other party Three months’
notice or the Company paying Three months’ salary in lieu thereof. There is no separate provision for
payment of severance pay.

Sitting Fees and Commission to the Non-Executive Directors: 
All Non-Executive, Independent Directors were paid sitting fees for attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors 
and Committees, the details of which for the Financial Year 2021-22 are as under: - 

S.No. Non-Executive Directors Commission Conveyance Payment of sitting fees for attending 
board meetings and Committees 

1 Mr. Awdhesh Shah  
(DIN- 00184656)   

-- -- 20,000/-

2 Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari 
(DIN- 01582960) 

-- -- 24,000/-

3 Mr. Vipin Mittal 
(DIN-08298530) 

-- -- 0

4   Mr. Rajiv Singh 
(DIN:02245630) 

-- -- 0

Total -- -- 44,000/-

During the year under review, there were no other pecuniary transactions with any non-executive director of the 
Company. 

The Company has not granted any stock options to any of its Directors during the Financial Year 2021-22. 
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Details of equity shares of the Company held by the directors as on March 31, 2022 are given below: 

Name Number of Equity Shares 
Mrs. Sonika Gupta (DIN:01527904) 3395700 
Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN:01260263) 2544270 
Mr. Rajiv Singh (DIN:02245630) 0 
Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN:0158296) 0 
Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN: 00184656) 0 
Mr. Vipin Mittal (DIN:08298530) 0 

VI. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (STAKEHOLDERS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE)
The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) are in line with the regulatory 
requirements mandated in Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under and Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015), which are as follow: 

1. Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, splitting of shares, changing joint holding into single
holding and vice versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of those torn, destroyed, lost or defaced or where the
cages in the reverse for recording transfers have been fully utilized.

2. Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal, etc.;
3. attending to requests from the shareholders for demat/ remat of shares;
4. Review the process and mechanism of redressal of Shareholders /Investors grievance and suggest measures

of improving the system of redressal of Shareholders /Investors grievances.
5. considering and resolving grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to

the transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends;
6. Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note of

complaints directly received and resolved them.
7. Oversee the implementation and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for prevention

of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Probation of
insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 as amended from time to time.

8. Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time by way of
resolution passed by it in a duly conducted Meeting,

9. Carrying out any other function contained in the equity listing agreements as and when amended from time
to time.

As on March 31, 2022, the Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee were as follow: 
Name of Member Category Status 
Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960) Non-executive, Independent Director Chairman & Member 

Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656)   Non-executive, Independent Director Member 

Mrs. Sonika Gupta (DIN- 01527904) Executive Director/Promoter Member 

There are no changes in the Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee during the Financial Year2021-
22. 

During Financial year 2021-22, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee met 4 (four) time on 27/07/2021, 
29/10/2021, 24/02/2022 and 31/03/2022.The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as Secretary to the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. Details of the attendance of the members of Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee at the Stakeholder Relationship Committee meeting held during the Financial Year 2021-22 are as 
follow: 

Name of Member and Director 
Identification number (DIN) 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings 
27 July 
2021 

29 October 
2021 

24 February 
2022 

31 March 
2022 

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960)     

Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656)   x x

Mrs. Sonika Gupta (DIN- 01527904)     

 Present x Absent NA- Not Applicable being not a member of the Committee at the time of meeting. 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

The previous Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company was held on September 30, 2021 and was attended 
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by Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN:01582960),Chairman of the Committee. 

The details of Investor Complaints during the Financial Year2021-22 are as follows: 

Complaints outstanding as on 1st April, 2021 0 
(+) Complaints received during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 0 
(-) Complaints resolved during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 0 
Complaints outstanding as on 31st March, 2022 0 

There are no pending share transfers as on March 31, 2022. 

VII. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements mandated in Section135 of 
the Companies Act 2013, which are as follow: 

a) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken
by the company as per the Companies Act, 2013; 

b) To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by the
company; 

c) To monitor the CSR policy of the company from time to time;
d) any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or as

may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

As on March 31, 2022, the Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee were as follow: 

Name of Member Category Status 
Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN- 01260263) Executive Director/Promoter Chairman & Member 

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960)  Non-executive, Independent Director Member 

Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656)  Non-executive, Independent Director Member 

There are no changes in the Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee during the Financial 
Year 2021-22. 

During Financial year 2020-21 the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committement 1 (One) time on 
05/02/2022. Details of the attendance of the members of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee at the 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee meetings held during the Financial Year 2021-22 are as follow: 

Name of Member and Director 
Identification number(DIN) 

Corporate Social Responsibility Meetings Date 
        05 February 2022 

Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN- 01260263)  

Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN- 01582960)  

Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN- 00184656)  

 Present x Absent NA- Not Applicable being not a member of the Committee at the time of meeting. 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

CSR POLICY: 
CSR policy has been also disseminated on the website of the Company at http://www.wewinlimited.com/. 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES: 

As per Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is prepared and same is annexed to 
the Board’s Report as “AnnexureIV”. 

The details of amount budgeted, spent and unspent along with the reasons for not spending the allocated amount are 
included in the said report. 

VIII. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The Annual General Meetings was held as under: - 
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YEAR DATE&TIME LOCATION WHETHER SPECIAL
RESOLUTION(S)WERE PASSED 

2020-21 September 30, 2021 at 
11.00 A.M 

At the Registered Office of the 
Company situated at206-207, 2nd 
Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, 
Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, 
Bhopal, M.P.-462047 

Re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek Gupta 
(DIN: 01260263), as Managing Director of 
the Company in continuation of previous 
employment. 

IX. Postal Ballot held during the financial year 2021-22 and Procedure adopted for it.
During the Financial Year 2021-22 three Special Resolution was passed by the Shareholders of the company through 
Postal Ballot which are as follows: - 
1. Re-Appointment of Mr. Awdhesh Shah (DIN: 00184656) as an Independent Director of the Company.

2. Re-Appointment of Mr. Ambreesh Tiwari (DIN: 01582960) as an Independent Director of the Company.

3. Migration of Equity Shares of the Company from NSE Emerge (SME platform of NSE) to the Main Board of NSE
and BSE.

X. Extra-ordinary General Meeting 
During the year under review, no Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held. 

XI. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company has a functional website i.e. http://www.wewinlimited.com/.  In compliance with Regulation 46 of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a separate dedicated section under ‘Investors’ on the Company’s website gives 
information on various announcements made by the Company, IEPF related Communication, Board of Directors, 
Annual Report, Quarterly/Half yearly/ Nine-months and Annual financial results along with the applicable policies of 
the Company. 

The Quarterly and Annual Financial Results of the Company’s performance are published in numerous leading English 
and Hindi Newspapers. The Financial Results of the Company are also available on the websites of NSE and BSE 
Limited at www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com . 

The Company makes timely disclosures of necessary information to NSE & BSE Limited in terms of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable rules and regulations issued by the SEBI. The Company also files 
electronically the Quarterly and Annual Financial Results, Corporate Governance Report, Shareholding Pattern, etc. 
through NEAPS and BSE Listing Centre. 

Every year Company dispatched Annual Report to the Shareholders alongwith email communication. Reminders are 
also sent to shareholders for registering their email ids, KYC, Dematerialization of shares, notice under IEPF etc as 
per the requirements and applicability under various laws. 

XII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

A. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Name of Company and Corporate 
Identification Number (CIN) 

We Win Limited 
CIN:L74999MP2007PLC019623 

Registrar of Companies (ROC) Gwalior in the state of Madhya Pradesh. 

Registered Office 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, 
Misrod, Bhopal, M.P.-462047 

Annual General Meeting: 
Day/Date/Time/Venue: 

Friday, September 30, 2022 at 11.00A.M. 

206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, 
Misrod, Bhopal, M.P.-462047 

Financial Year April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. 

Book Closure Saturday, September 24, 2022 to Friday, September 30, 2022 

(both days inclusive) 
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Dividend Payment Date The Directors do not recommend any Dividend on Equity Shares for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022. 

Listing on Stock Exchanges The Equity Shares of Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited, Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra- Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051 and Bombay Stock Exchange 
(BSE) Limited., PhirozeJee jeebhoy Towers Dalal Street Mumbai-400001. 
The Company NSE Symbol is WEWIN and BSE Scrip Code is 543535. 
And ISIN Code is INE082W01014. 

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees to NSE & 
BSE where the Company’s Shares are listed. 

B. MARKET PRICE DATA 

Monthly High/Low prices per share during the Financial Year 2021-22 
Months NSE

High(Rs.) Low(Rs.) Volume(No.ofShares)

April, 2021 18.15 18.15 3000 

May, 2021 17.7 17.7 3000 

June, 2021 18.4 16.8 6000 

July, 2021 13.25 13.05 6000

August, 2021 13.7 13.7 3000 

September, 2021 18 18 63000 

October, 2021 35.65 34.95 27000 

November, 2021 32.8 32.3 15000 

December, 2021 39.9 36.1 48000 

January,2022 41.45 39.8 12000

February, 2022 50.35 50.35 3000 

March, 2022 50.35 50.35 3000 

C. The Securities of the Company are not suspended from trading on the stock exchanges. 

D. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, 

C101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli(West),  

Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400083 
Phone: 022- 49186270, 
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
Fax: 022-49186060 

E. Share Transfer System 
SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June, 2018, has mandated that securities of listed 
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form from 1st April, 2019, except in case of transmission and 
transposition of securities. However, it is clarified that, members can continue holding shares in physical form. 
Transfer of securities in demat form will facilitate convenience and ensure safety of transactions for investors. 

For shares transferred in electronic form, after confirmation of sale/purchase transaction from the broker, 
shareholders should approach the depository participant with a request to debit or credit the account for the 
transaction. The depository participant will immediately arrange to complete the transaction by updating the account. 
There is no need for separate communication to register the share transfer. 
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F. Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2022. 
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the end of the year (31-03-2022) 

Demat Physical Total % of Total Shares 

A. Promoters 
(1)Indian 
(a)Individual/HUF 70,78,982 0 70,78,982 69.67

b)Central Govt/State Govt 0 0 0 0 

c)Banks/FI 0 0 0 0

d) Any Other 0 0 0 0

e)Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0

Sub-total(A)(1):- 70,78,982 0 70,78,982 69.67
2)Foreign 

a)NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0

b)Other–Individuals 0 0 0 0

c)Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 

d)Banks/FI 0 0 0 0

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total(A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

70,78,982 0 70,78,982 69.67

B. Public Shareholding 
1.Institutions 0 0 0 0

a)Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 

b)Banks/ FI 0 0 0 0 
c)Central Govt 0 0 0 0 

d)State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 

e)Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0

f)Insurance Companies 12,000 0 12,000 0.11 
g)FIIs 0 0 0 0

h)Foreign Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 

(i)Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 12,000 0 12,000 0.11 

2.Non-Institutions 

b)Individuals 0 0 0 0
Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital upto Rs. 2
Lakh 

8,71,030 0 8,71,030 8.57

Individual shareholders holding 
Nominal share capital in excess of
Rs. 2 Lakh 

20,09,988 0 20,09,988 19.78

NBFCs registered with RBI 0 0 0 0 
Employee trusts 0 0 0 0 

Overseas depositories 0 0 0 0 

c)Others (specify) 0 0 0 0

NRI Individuals (Non Rep.) 12,000 0 12,000 0.11 
NRI (Repatriation) 0 0 0 0 

Hindu undivided family 45,000 0 45,000 0.44 
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Clearing member 0 0 0 0 
Body corporate 1,32,000 0 1,32,000 1.29 
Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) 

0 0 0 0

Directors and their relatives 0 0 0 0 
Sub-total (B)(2):- 30,70,018 0 30,70,018 30.21 

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

30,82,018 0 30,82,018 30.33

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs 

0 0 0 0

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

10,161,000 0 10,161,000 100 

Note: The details given above are as per BENPOS received from M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent for Financial year ended March 31, 2022. 

G. Shares held in Physical and Dematerialized Form: 
As on March 31, 2022, 10,161,000 Equity Shares representing 100.00% of the Company’s Equity Share Capital are in 
dematerialized form. 

NSDL 18,63,700 18.34
CDSL 82,97,300 81.66
Physical 0 0
Total 10,161,000 100.00%

Note: The details given above are as per BENPOS received from M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent for Financial year ended March 31, 2022. 

H. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/or any Convertible instruments, Conversion date and likely 
impact one quity 

The Company has not issued or nor has any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments as on March 31, 
2022. 

I. Disclosure of Commodity Price Risk/Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities: 
There is no Foreign Activities/Transactions during Financial Year 2021-22 and the Company also does not enter into any 
derivative instruments for speculative purposes. 

J. Credit Ratings and any revisions thereto for debt instruments or any fixed deposit programme or any 
     scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad: 

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal involving mobilization of funds in India or abroad during the financial year ended March 31, 2022. Hence, No 
credit Rating is required to be taken by Company. 

XIII. OTHER DISCLOSURES
a) Related Party Transactions

There are no materially significant transactions with its promoters, the directors or the senior management personnel, 
their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company. The disclosure in 
respect of related party transactions is provided in the notes on accounts. All contracts with the related parties entered 
into during the year are in normal course of business and have no potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 
large and are carried out on arm’s length basis at fair market value.  

The policy on materiality of related party transactions as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, has been available on the company's website at 
http://www.wewinlimited.com/. 

b) Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by
stock Exchange or SEBI or other authority on any matter related to capital markets during last three 
years: 

There has not been any non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or strictures were imposed on the 
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Company by the Stock Exchange(s) or the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any statutory authority, 
on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 3 (three) years. 

c) Whistle Blower Policy (vigil mechanism)

The company has established Vigil Mechanism through its whistle Blower Policy approved and adopted by Board of 
Directors in Compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Vigil Mechanism provides a proper platform to the directors and employees to report their genuine concern so 
any instances of illegal or unethical practices, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct 
or ethics policy and disclosure/leak of unpublished price sensitive information to audit Committee or its Chairman. 

The Policy also provides adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s) or employee(s) or any other person 
who avail the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee inappropriate or 
exceptional cases. During F.Y 2021-22, No incidents has been reported under Whistle Blower Policy. No personnel of 
the Company were denied access to the Audit Committee. 

The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company can be accessed at website of the Company at 
http://www.wewinlimited.com/. 

d) Subsidiary Companies OR Material Non-Listed Subsidiary Company:
The Company does not have any Subsidiary or any Material Non-Listed Subsidiary Company. 

e) Details of Utilization of Funds raised through Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutions
Placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015: 

During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2021-22, The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutional placement. 

f) Disclosure about instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any
Committee of the Board which is mandatorily required,  during the Financial Year 2020-21: 

During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2021-22, there were no instances reported/recorded, where the Board of Directors of 
the Company did not accept any recommendation(s) of any of its Committees. 

g) Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company
The Company has paid Total fees of Rs. 1,51,000/-(Rupees One lakh fifty-one thousand only) to M/s. Sethia Manoj & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, statutory auditor of the Company for financial year 2021-22, for all services given by 
them. 

h) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act,2013: 

Your Company is committed to creating and maintaining an atmosphere in which employees can work together, 
without fear of sexual harassment, exploitation or intimidation. Every employee is made aware that the Company is 
strongly opposed to sexual harassment and that such behavior is prohibited. Your Company has formed an Internal 
Complaints Committee (“ICC”) pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the said Act”). The details of complaints with the ICC during the Financial Year 
2021-22 are as follows: 

a. Number of Complaints pending as at the beginning of the Financial Year: NIL
b. Number of complaints filed during the financial year: NIL
c. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NIL
d. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NIL

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 

i) Public, Rights and Other Issues:
There were no Public, Rights and Other Issues during the Financial Year 2021-22. 

j) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report
The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report confirms that the total issued / paid up capital is in agreement with 
the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. 
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k) CEO and CFO Certification:
Mr. Abhishek Gupta, Managing Director and Mr. Vinay Kumar Giri, Chief Financial Officer, have issued the Certificate 
in accordance with Regulation 17(8), read with Part B of Schedule II to the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with regard to Half Yearly and Annual Financial 
Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 

l) Disclosures on Website
The Company maintains a functional website and has disseminated all the required information as per the Act and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

m) Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 forms a part of this Annual Report. 

n) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in Preparation of Financial Statements:
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) in India and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) specifiedunderSection133of the 
Act. 

o) Compliances under Insider Trading Regulations 2015
Securities and Exchange Board of India has issued the Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations, 2015 which came 
into force from 15

th May 2015. The Company has made all the necessary compliances under the said Regulations and
with all the amendments as come into effect thereafter. 

p) Compliance with Secretarial Standards:
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on various 
aspects of corporate law and practices. The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards. 

q) SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES):
The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redressal system. The salient features 
of this system are: 
1. Centralised database of all complaints;
2. Online upload of Action Taken Reports(ATRs) by concerned companies; and
3. Online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.

r) Non-Compliance of any Requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Para C to Schedule V of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations,2015: 

The Company has complied with all the requirements in this regard, to the extent applicable. 

s) Disclosures of compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27
and Regulation 46 (2)(b)to(i) of the SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015: 

Regulation Particulars Compliance 
Status 
(Yes/No/N.A.) 

17 Board of Directors Yes 
17A Maximum number of Directorships Yes 
18 Audit Committee Yes 
19 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes 
20 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Yes
21 Risk Management Committee NA
22 Vigil Mechanism Yes 
23 Related Party Transactions Yes
24 Corporate Governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of Listed entity NA 
24A Secretarial Audit of Company 

Secretarial Audit Report of Material Subsidiary 
Yes 
NA 

25 Obligations with respect to Independent Directors Yes 
26 Obligations of employees, senior management, KMP, Directors and Promoters Yes 
27 Other Corporate Governance Requirements Yes 
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Website
46(2)(a) Details of its business Yes 
46(2)(b) Terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors Yes 
46(2)(c) Composition of various committees of board of directors Yes 
46(2)(d) Code of conduct of board of directors and senior management personnel Yes 
46(2)(e) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/Whistle Blower policy Yes 
46(2)(f) Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors Yes 
46(2)(g) Policy on dealing with related party transactions Yes 
46(2)(h) Policy for determining‘ material’ subsidiaries Yes 
46(2)(i) Details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors Yes 

t) Code of Conduct

Regulation17(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 requires listed companies to lay down a Code of Conduct for 
its directors and senior management, incorporating duties of directors as laid down in the Companies Act,2013.As 
required the said code has been posted on the website of the Company http://www.wewinlimited.com/. All the Board 
members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code for the year ended March 31, 
2022. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director is annexed as “ANNEXURE-A” to this Corporate 
Governance Report. 

u) Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance:
As per Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Certificate issued by M/s. S. Anjum & 
Associates, Company Secretaries, regarding compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance for the Financial 
Year 2021-22 is annexed as “ANNEXURE-B” to this Corporate Governance Report. 

v) Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) / Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
or any such Statutory Authority: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has obtained a Certificate from M/s. S. Anjum & Associates, Company Secretaries certifying that none of 
the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or by 
any such statutory authority. The said Certificate is annexed as “ANNEXURE-C” to this Corporate Governance 
Report. 

w) Annual Secretarial Compliance Report
The submission of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022was not 
applicable for the company being listed on SME Platform. 

XIV. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

a) Shares in Suspense Account:
There are no shares in suspense account. 

b) Shares in unclaimed suspense account
There are no shares in unclaimed suspense account. 

c) Transfer to investor education and provident fund:
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(“IEPF”). 

d) Compulsory Transfer of Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”)
Suspense Account: 

There were no equity shares which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(“IEPF”). 

XV. Compliance Officer:

Mr. Ashish Soni is the Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company. 
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XVI. Address of Correspondence

We Win Limited.
206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall,
Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, Bhopal, M.P.462047

Place: Bhopal  For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Dated: 02/09/2022   We Win Limited 

        SD/-       SD/- 
Abhishek Gupta        Sonika Gupta 
 (DIN: 01260263)          (DIN: 01527904) 
Managing Director     Director 
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ANNEXURE‐A TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR WITH RESPECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE 

COMPANY 

As required by Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (D) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To, 

The Members of We Win Limited, 

I, the undersigned, hereby declare that all the members of the Board and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company have 
affirmed compliance with the code of conduct laid down and adopted by the Company in this regard, during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022. 

Date: September 2nd, 2022    For WE WIN LIMITED 

Place: Bhopal    SD/- 

     Abhishek Gupta 
    (DIN: 01260263) 
    Managing Director 
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 Annexure-B 

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

TO  
THE MEMBERS 
WE WIN LIMITED 
206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, 
Hoshangabad Road, Misrod Bhopal (M.P.)- 462047 

We hereby state that the compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 
27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’) for the year ended on March 31, 2022 is not applicable on the Company as Migration of Equity Shares of 
the Company from NSE Emerge (SME Platform of NSE) to the Main Board of NSE & BSE took place on June 15, 2022, 
prior to that the company was listed on SME Platform of NSE.  

We further state that, as per regulation 15(2) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) exemptions were granted to those who are 
listed on SME platform, therefore Practicing Company Secretaries Certificate on Corporate Governance is not required 
for the Financial year ended on March 31, 2022. 

For S Anjum & Associates 
         Practising Company Secretaries 

  SD/- 
  Shadab Anjum 

   FCS  : 8893, CP    : 10253 
     UDIN : F008893D000888090.   

 Bhopal, 01.09.2022   PR No. : 2009/2022 
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    ANNEXURE-C 

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 
The Members 
WE WIN LIMITED 
206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, Misrod Bhopal (M.P.)- 462047 

We have examined the relevant forms received from the Directors of WE WIN LIMITED  having CIN: 
L74999MP2007PLC019623 and having registered office 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, 
Hoshangabad Road, Misrod Bhopal (M.P.)- 462047 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before 
me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and   Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 
Statutory Authority. 

S. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in
Company * 

1. Mr. ABHISHEK GUPTA   01260263 18/06/2007 
2. Mrs. SONIKA GUPTA   01527904 18/06/2007 
3. Mr. RAJIV SINGH   02245630 14/12/2020 
4. Mr. AWDHESH SHAH   00184656 15/03/2017 
5. Mr. AMBREESH TIWARI  01582960 15/03/2017 
6. Mr. VIPIN MITTAL   08298530 31/07/2019 

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility, for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

      For S Anjum & Associates 
 Practising Company Secretaries 

 SD/- 
 Shadab Anjum 

   FCS  : 8893, CP    : 10253 
  UDIN : F008893D000888090.       

 Bhopal,01.09.2022   PR.No.:2009/2022 
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CEO and CFO Certification 

To 
The Board of Directors, 
We Win Limited, 
Bhopal. 

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of We Win Limited for the
year ended 31st March, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year 2021-22 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company pertaining
to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:

i) There have not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting
during the year 2021-22.

ii) There have not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year 2021-22
and

iii) That there is no instance of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in
the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Bhopal  For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Dated: 02/09/2022       We Win Limited 

SD/-          SD/- 
Abhishek Gupta          Vinay Kumar Giri 
(DIN: 01260263)   (PAN: ANXPG3485F) 

   Managing Director      Chief Financial Officer 
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ANNEXURE-VII 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Management Discussion and Analysis report for the 
year ended on 31st March 2022.  

The Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) is the fastest growing segment of the ITES (Information 
Technology Enabled Services) industry. Factors such as economy of scale, business risk mitigation, 
cost advantage, utilization improvement and superior competency have all lead to the growth of 
the BPO industry. A BPO service provider usually administers and manages a particular business 
process for another company. It either uses new technology or applies an existing technology in a 
new way to improve a particular business process. 

There is huge demand of BPO services in the market due to expected significant growth in BPO 
industry. Many call- centers projects are coming up. The company will have good opportunity to 
secure projects orders. The BPO boom in India is credited to cheap labour costs and India’s huge 
talent pool of skilled, English- speaking professionals. This will create lot of opportunity for the 
Growth of the Company.  

The Company operates broadly in Single segment of Call- Centres.  

During the financial year under review, total Standalone Income (including other income) of the 
Company was Rs. 42,27,02,615/- as against Rs. 36,49,88,201.00/-in the previous year. The 
Company has earned Standalone Profit after tax of Rs. 2,25,40,673/- compared to 
Rs.1,26,14,350.00/-earned in the previous year. Your Directors are continuously looking for 
avenues for future growth of the Company. 

The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the operations 
by a committee. The committee periodically reviews the implementation of management policies 
to ensure that transactions have been accurately recorded and promptly reported.  

There is expected to be good demand for BPO industry because massive investments are planned 
in coming years by government as well as private sector. 

The company has maintained very harmonious & cordial Industrial relations. There is continuous 
emphasis on development of human resources through training. The issues pertaining to 
employees are resolved in harmonious and in cordial manner through regular interactions.  

Place: Bhopal       For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Dated: 02/09/2022   We Win Limited 

     SD/-        SD/- 
Abhishek Gupta      Sonika Gupta 
(DIN: 01260263)   (DIN: 01527904)  
Managing Director        Director 
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Auditor’s Report on Standalone Half Yearly Financial Results and Year to Date  Results of We 

Win Limited (Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited) Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To the Board of Directors of We Win Limited 

 (Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited) 

We have audited the standalone financial results of We Win Limited (Formerly Surevin BPO Services 

Limited) for the half year ended 31/03/2022 and the year-to- date results for the period 01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022, attached herewith, being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirement of 

Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. These 

half yearly financial results as well as the year-to-date financial results have been prepared on the basis 

of the interim financial statements, which are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial results based on our audit of such interim 

financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 

principles laid down in Accounting Standard for Interim Financial Reporting (AS 25), prescribed, under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act,   2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder; or by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India, as applicable and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial results are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts disclosed as financial results. An audit also includes assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. We believe that our audit 

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us these half 

yearly financial results as well as the year to date results: 

i. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in this regard; and

ii. give a true and fair view of the net profit and other financial information for the half year ended

31/03/2022 as well as the year to date results for the period from 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022.

For Sethia Manoj & Co. 

Chartered Accountants  

FRN:021080C 

(CA M a n o j  S e t h i a ) 

Proprietor 

M. No: 076091 

Place: Bhopal  

Dated: 30/05/2022 

UDIN: 22076091AJYCEV1939 

SD/-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of We Win Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of We Win Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise
the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity, and Standalone Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its Loss, Changes in Equity and its Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 

including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 

Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor’s 

Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s

Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
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our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Government of India in

terms of subsection 11 of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Order’), and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a Director in terms of subsection 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

f) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the managerial remuneration has been paid /provided to directors in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure B.
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3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements;

Name of
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Amount Period to Which
Relates

forum where dispute
Pending

Income Tax
Act

Income Tax 821150/- A.Y.2013-14 CIT (Appeals 2)
Bhopal

ii. As per the information given to us, the Company does not foresee any losses on any long-
term contracts and has therefore not made any provision. We have been informed that the
Company has not entered into any derivative contracts;

iii. As at 31.03.2022 as per its record, there were no amounts required to be transferred by the
company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:021080C

(CA Manoj  Seth i a )
Proprietor
M. No: 076091
Place: Bhopal
Dated: 30/05/2022
UDIN: 22076091AJYCEV193

SD/-
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Annexure B

To the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of We Win
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
{Referred to in Para 2 (f) under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

Report of even date}

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of We Win Limited (‘the
Company’), as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 

its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
1. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under subsection 10 of
section 143 of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

2. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

3. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statement in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

However, despite it being a less complex Company, for more effective financial controls it needs to:
a) formally codify the system of internal financial controls,
b) document operations and effectively monitor controls, and
c) more effectively segregate duties.

We have considered the matters identified and reported above and they do not affect our opinion on
the Financial Statements of the Company.

For Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:021080C

(CA Manoj  Seth ia )
Proprietor
M. No: 076091
Place: Bhopal
Dated: 30/05/2022
UDIN: 22076091AJYCEV1939

SD/-
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We Win Limited

1) Corporate information:

We Win Limited (formerly known as Surevin BPO Services Limited) is a public limited company with
its registered office situated at 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road,
Misrod, Bhopal – 462047, Madhya Pradesh, India. It was incorporated 18th June 2007 under the
Companies Act, 1956 vide Corporate Identification Number (CIN) L74999MP2007PLC019623.

Company is primarily engaged in the business of Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
Services including call centres and support centre services. We Win Limited is the world’s biggest

Non-Emergency integrated grievance provider. We provide Next Generation Citizen Experience,
Contact Centre & Digital Transformation services, with the right balance of technical expertise and
vast industry knowledge. We Win Limited is a pan India outsourced customer service enterprise
running strong for 22 years and proudly operating in 8 major states of India. We have more than two
decades of expertise in delivering excellent third party customer service in 20 languages to more than
100 different businesses throughout the country.

We Win Limited became Central India’s first publicly listed BPO company in 2017 under NSE, India 

and has been awarded the best non-grievance customer service provider by the governments of Uttar
Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh and Uttarakhand.

2) Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
amended from time to time.

b) First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

The standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st March 2022
were prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006,
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

As these are the Company’s first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), hence Ind AS 101, “First-Time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards” has been applied. A detailed explanation of effects of
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS on the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 is provided in the notes to accounts of
these financial statements.

c) Basis of measurement
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These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value
or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities
have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed between
deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the
consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle
of 12 months.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or
loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals
of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.

(ii) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make estimates and
judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the date of standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expenses for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its standalone
financial statements:

a) Revenue recognition
Revenue for fixed-price contracts is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The
Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is
used to determine degree of completion of the performance obligation.

b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future
periods.

c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

d) Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets
The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of
allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while
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determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement
to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

e) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past
events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations.
These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.

The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities.Contingent
liabilities are recognised when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the standalone financial
statements.

f) Employee benefits
The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the
Company to use assumptions. These assumptions have been explained under employee
benefits notes to accounts.

g) Impact of COVID-19 (pandemic)
The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of
these standalone financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity
and going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets,
impact on revenue recognition owing to changes in cost budgets of fixed price contracts. The
Company has carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources
of information upto the date of approval of these standalone financial statements and
believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these standalone financial statements
and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the
standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these standalone financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19.

(iii) Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,
2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

a) Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the
asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related
cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in
its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

b) Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a
clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact
in its financial statements.
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c) Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of
Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

(iv) Financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

a) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are
unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

b) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

e) Investment in Associates
Investment in associate is measured at cost less impairment loss, if any.

f) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities that carry a floating rate of interest is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

g) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the
company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.

h) Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)
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The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The
Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/or all trade
receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the allowances for
doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The
provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for
forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the provision matrix. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the
credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(v) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation (other than freehold land) and impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis so as to expense
the cost less residual value over their estimated useful lives based on a technical evaluation. The
estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Type of asset Useful lives in years
Leasehold Land 99
Plant and Equipment 3 to 6
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Vehicles 10
Office Equipment 5

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are
complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(vi) Intangible assets
Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as at the date of acquisition, as applicable, less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets consist of software licences which are amortised over licence period which equates
the economic useful life is 3 years on a straight-line basis over the period of its economic useful life.
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Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
(i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(vii) Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from Business Process Management services.
Arrangements with customers for Business Process Management services are either on a fixed-
timeframe, unit of work or on a time-and-material basis. Revenues from customer contracts
considered for recognition and measurement when the parties, in writing, to the contract, have
approved the contract the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations
under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of
control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”) to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these
products or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue
recognition postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. The Company assesses the services
promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract.

The Company’s contracts may include variable consideration including rebates, volume discounts 
and penalties. The Company includes variable consideration as part of transaction price when there
is a basis to reasonably estimate the amount of the variable consideration and when it is probable
that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is resolved

Revenue on time-and-material contracts and unit of workbased contracts are recognized as the
related services are performed. Fixed-price business process management services revenue is
recognized ratably either on a straightline basis when services are performed through an indefinite
number of repetitive acts over a specified period or using a percentage of completion method when
the pattern of benefits from the services rendered to the customer and Company’s costs to fulfil the 
contract is not even through the period of contract because the services are generally discrete in
nature and not repetitive.

Revenue from other fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts, where the performance obligations are
satisfied over time is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method. Efforts or costs
expended have been used to determine progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship
between input and productivity. Progress towards completion is measured as the ratio of costs or
efforts incurred to date (representing work performed) to the estimated total costs or efforts.
Estimates of transaction price and total costs or efforts are continuously monitored over the lives of
the contracts and are recognized in profit or loss in the period when these estimates change or when
the estimates are revised. Revenues and the estimated total costs or efforts are subject to revision as
the contract progresses. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs
to complete the contract

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based billing and/or
milestone-based progress billings. Revenues in excess of billing classified as unbilled revenue while
billing in excess of revenues classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as unearned
revenues).

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract (i.e., costs that would not been incurred if the contract
had not been obtained) are recognized as an asset if the Company expects to recover them. Certain
eligible, non-recurring costs (e.g. set-up or transition or transformation costs) that do not represent a
separate performance obligation are recognized as an asset when such costs (a) relate directly to the
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contract; (b) generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used in satisfying the
performance obligation in the future; and (c) are expected to be recovered. Such capitalized contract
costs amortized over the respective contract life on a systematic basis consistent with the transfer of
goods or services to customer to which the asset relates.

(viii) Employee benefits

a) Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in
the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Past service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognized
as an expense at the earlier of (a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and
(b) when the entity recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any
asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
The Company provides benefits such as gratuity, pension and provident fund (Company
managed fund) to its employees which are treated as defined benefit plans.

b) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.
The Company provides benefits such as superannuation plans to its employees, which are
treated as defined contribution plans.

c) Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the
expected cost of ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

c) Gratuity and pension
In accordance with Indian law, the Company operates a scheme of gratuity which is a
defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of
an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service.

(ix) Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their
nature.

The costs of the Company are broadly categorised in employee benefit expenses, cost of
equipment and software licences, depreciation and amortisation expense and other expenses.
Other expenses mainly include fees to external consultants, facility expenses, travel expenses,
communication expenses, bad debts and advances written off, allowance for doubtful trade
receivables and advances (net) and other expenses. Other expenses are aggregation of costs
which are individually not material such as commission and brokerage, recruitment and training,
entertainment, etc.
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(x) Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset
or liability during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current income taxes
The current income tax expense includes income taxes payable by the Company. The
current tax payable by the Company in India is Indian income tax payable. Advance taxes
and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting
advance tax paid and income tax provision.

b) Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are
expected to be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.s

(xi) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years
presented.

(xii) Government Grants
Government grants has been recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all the attached conditions will be complied. When grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, as expensed. When grant relates to an asset, it is netted off
with the respective asset.

(xiii) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

93



Particulars Note As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021 As at 01.04.2020

ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,97,002.85  2,18,281.41  2,59,101.40  
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 81,789.57  14,000.00  14,000.00  
(c) Other Intangible Assets 5 9,487.00  9,996.19  21,145.93  
(d) Investments 6 1,100.00  1,100.00  1,100.00  
(e) Investment in Associates 7 400.00  400.00  400.00  
(f) Financial Assets

 Other Financial Assets 8 1,04,692.43  1,16,010.01  1,10,925.00  
(g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 50,275.00  53,096.00  52,508.00  
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 10 84,204.55  92,141.37  1,01,928.57  

(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables 11 9,86,612.82  10,21,005.57  7,93,498.13  
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 7,04,851.27  8,27,919.93  6,85,343.66  
(iii) Short term Loans 13 1,01,757.56  64,093.41  64,779.46  

(b) Other Current Assets 14 2,55,000.83  2,38,408.55  4,04,890.89  
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 15 1,73,574.95  2,05,374.90  1,55,133.43  

TOTAL ASSETS  27,50,748.83  28,61,827.34  26,64,754.47 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 10,16,100.00  3,38,700.00  3,38,700.00  
(b) Other Equity 17 10,86,594.64  15,38,587.91  14,12,444.41  

Liabilities
(1) Non-current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 18 62,206.40  1,08,172.90  1,39,245.23  

(b) Other Non Current Liabilities 19 5,166.92  -   -   
(c) Provisions 20 80,549.74  75,861.61  50,919.52  

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Short Term Borrowings 21 6,262.69  2,30,965.77  3,37,440.51  
(ii) Trade Payables 22 1,10,526.44  1,42,472.33  91,489.48  

(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 95,504.54  1,74,366.76  72,987.12  
(c) Provisions 24 2,87,837.46  2,52,700.06  2,21,528.20  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  27,50,748.83  28,61,827.34  26,64,754.47 

Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

WE WIN LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2022
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For  Sethia Manoj & Co,
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FRN : 021080C

CA . Manoj Sethia
Propietor
M.No.076091

Place : Bhopal
Dated : 30.05.2022
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Particulars Note No.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
I. INCOME

Revenue from operations 25 41,60,868.10   36,13,869.31  
Other Income 26 66,158.05  36,012.70  
Total Income (I + II) 42,27,026.15   36,49,882.01  

II. EXPENSES
Employee benefit expense 27 31,32,183.40   25,78,041.40  
Finance Costs 28 55,504.54  49,122.62  
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,05,521.45   1,21,293.74  
Other expenses 29 6,10,601.13  7,39,078.16  
Total Expenses 39,03,810.52   34,87,535.92  

III. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items or tax (I-IV) 3,23,215.63   1,62,346.09  
IV. Exceptional Items -  -  
V. Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) 3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  

Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax 85,425.50  49,196.40  
(2) Prior Period Tax 21,897.60  -3,113.23  
(3) Deferred Tax 5,926.00  1,751.00  
Total Tax Expense 1,13,249.10  47,834.17  

-  -  
VII. Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 2,09,966.53   1,14,511.92  

Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post-employment 
defined benefit plans

12,335.20  9,292.58  

(ii) Income tax relating to items in (i) -3,105.00  -2,339.00  
IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the period 2,25,406.73  1,26,143.50  

Earnings per equity share: 30
(1) Basic 2.22  1.24  
(2) Diluted 2.22  1.24  

Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

( in Hundreds)`   

WE WIN LIMITED
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

For the year ended 

VI.
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We Win Limited
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XI.
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CA . Manoj Sethia
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M.No.076091
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Dated : 30.05.2022

(Sonika Gupta)
Director

DIN: 01527904

(Vinay Kumar Giri)
Chief Financial Officer
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Particulars Note No.

31.03.2022 
(Audited)

30.09.2021 
(Unaudited)

31.03.2021 
(Audited)

31.03.2022 
(Audited)

31.03.2021 
(Audited)

I. INCOME
Revenue from operations 25 21,13,631.68   20,47,236.42   18,94,469.24   41,60,868.10  36,13,869.31  
Other Income 26 47,330.66   18,827.39  20,029.49   66,158.05  36,012.70  
Total Income 21,60,962.34   20,66,063.81   19,14,498.73   42,27,026.15  36,49,882.01   

II. EXPENSES
Employee benefit expense 27 16,24,670.46   15,07,512.94   14,33,540.37   31,32,183.40  25,78,041.40  
Finance Costs 28 36,023.13   19,481.41  27,601.84   55,504.54  49,122.62  
Depreciation and amortization expense 59,296.40   46,225.05  57,929.18   1,05,521.45  1,21,293.74  
Other expenses 29 3,09,350.86   3,01,250.27  3,95,288.39   6,10,601.13  7,39,078.16  
Total Expenses 20,29,340.85   18,74,469.67   19,14,359.78  39,03,810.52  34,87,535.92  

III. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items or tax (I-II) 1,31,621.49   1,91,594.14  138.95  3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  
IV. Exceptional Items -  -  -   -   -  
V. Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) 1,31,621.49   1,91,594.14  138.95  3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  

Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax 36,034.20   49,391.30  8,372.11   85,425.50  49,196.40  
(2) Prior Period Tax 9,831.17   12,066.43  -3,113.23   21,897.60  -3,113.23   
(3) Deferred Tax 1,126.00   4,800.00  1,626.00   5,926.00  1,751.00  
Total Tax Expense 46,991.37   66,257.73  6,884.88  1,13,249.10  47,834.17  

VII. Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 84,630.12   1,25,336.41  -6,745.93  2,09,966.53  1,14,511.92  
Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post-employment 
defined benefit plans

7,682.81   4,652.39  9,292.58   12,335.20  9,292.58   

(ii) Income tax relating to items in (i) -1,934.00   -1,171.00  3,156.00   -3,105.00   -2,339.00   
IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the period 94,246.93   1,31,159.80  -609.35  2,25,406.73  1,26,143.50  
X. Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face Value Rs 10/- 

each)
1,01,610.00   1,01,610.00  1,01,610.00  1,01,610.00  1,01,610.00  

Earnings per equity share : 30
(1) Basic 0.93  1.29  -0.01   2.22   1.24   
(2) Diluted 0.93  1.29  -0.01   2.22   1.24   

Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Particulars

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09   

    Depreciation and amortisation expenses 97,584.63  1,11,506.54   

    Finance costs 27,917.38  40,308.02   

Capital grant received amortised during the year -2,583.46   -   

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post-employment defined benefit plans 12,335.20  9,292.58   

Changes in working capital:

Trade receivables 34,392.75  -2,27,507.44   

Short Term Loans & Advances -37,664.15   686.05   

Other current assets -16,592.28  1,66,482.34   

Current Tax Assets (Net) 31,799.95  -50,241.47   

Short Term Borrowings -2,24,703.08  -1,06,474.74   

Trade payables -31,945.89  50,982.85   

Other current liabilities -78,862.22  1,01,379.64   

Short-term provisions 35,137.40  31,171.86   

Sub-total 1,70,031.86  2,89,932.32   

Less: Income taxes Paid 85,425.50  49,196.40   

Less: Prior Period Tax 21,897.60  -3,113.23   

Net Cash generated by Operating Activities 62,708.76  2,43,849.15   

Cash Flow From Investing Activities 

Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances -75,796.88  -59,536.81   

Proceeds from Long Term Advances 11,317.58  -5,085.01   

Net income tax (paid) / refunds (Increase in Other Non Current Asset) -59,852.75  9,787.20   

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities -1,24,332.05  -54,834.62   

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds From Long Term Borrowings 7,419.76  59,000.00   

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings -53,386.26   -90,072.33   

Other Long Term Liabilities/Provisions 4,688.13  24,942.09   

Increase in Other Non Current Liabilities 7,750.38  -   

Finance Cost -  -   

Interest on Borrowings -27,917.38  -40,308.02   

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities -61,445.37  -46,438.26   

Net Increase Or Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents -1,23,068.66   1,42,576.27   

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Period 8,27,919.93  6,85,343.66   
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period 7,04,851.27  8,27,919.93   

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period as per B/S 7,04,851.27  8,27,919.93   
Cash in Hand 307.13  994.39   
Balances With Banks 3,15,171.52  2,15,958.26   

Fixed deposits With Bank 3,89,372.62  6,10,967.28   

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period as per B/S 7,04,851.27  8,27,919.93   

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For Sethia Manoj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 021080C

CA Manoj Sethia Abhishek Gupta Sonika Gupta

Proprietor Managing Director Director

M.No: 076091 DIN:01260263 DIN:1527904

Place:Bhopal

Date: 30.05.2022 Vinay Kumar Giri Ashish Soni

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Significant Accounting Policies

We Win Limited

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 

Profit before Tax

( in Hundreds)`   

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated by operating 
activities

SD/- SD/- SD/-

SD/- SD/-
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(1) Current reporting period (As at 31st March 2022)

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained Earnings

Balance at April 01, 2021 3,38,700.00  -  2,22,627.33   -  13,04,582.55  11,378.03  18,77,287.91   
Profit for the Year -  -  -  -  2,09,966.53  2,09,966.53  
Remeasurment of defined 
benefit plans

-  -  -  -  15,440.20  15,440.20  

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the current 
year

-  -  -  -  2,09,966.53  15,440.20  2,25,406.73  

Transfer to Equity Share 
Capital

6,77,400.00  -  -2,22,627.33  -  -4,54,772.67  
-  

-  

Balance at March 31, 
2022

10,16,100.00  -  -  -  10,59,776.41  26,818.23  21,02,694.64   

(2) Previous reporting period (As at 31st March, 2021)

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained Earnings

Balance at April 01, 2020 3,38,700.00  -  2,22,627.33   -  11,90,070.63  -253.55  17,51,144.41   

Profit for the Year -  -  -  -  1,14,511.92  1,14,511.92  
Remeasurment of defined 
benefit plans

-  -  -  -  -  11,631.58  11,631.58  

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the current 
year

-  -  -  -  1,14,511.92  11,631.58  1,26,143.50  

Balance at March 31, 
2021

3,38,700.00  -  2,22,627.33   -  13,04,582.55  11,378.03  18,77,287.91   

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

TOTAL

TOTAL

Equity Share 
Capital

Equity Share 
Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Reserves and Surplus

Other items of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

(Remeasurment 
of defined 

benefit plans)

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   
Other items of 

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income (specify 

nature)
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3 Property Plant and Equipments 

Additions Disposals

(a) Air Conditioners 83,989.59   -   83,989.59   68,305.94   6,368.35   -   74,674.29   9,315.30  15,683.65   

(b) Furniture and Fixtures 2,02,737.10   677.99   -   2,03,415.09     1,46,597.40   14,116.22   -  1,60,713.62   42,701.47  56,139.70   

(c) Vehicles 1,30,115.68   8,177.20   -   1,38,292.88   81,578.71   12,856.62   -   94,435.33   43,857.55  48,536.97   

(d) Office Equipments 2,14,702.93   16,256.42   -   2,30,959.35   1,80,727.29   16,711.81   -   1,97,439.10   33,520.25  33,975.64   

(e) Computers 3,94,583.92   46,360.27   -   4,40,944.19   3,30,638.46   42,697.44   -   3,73,335.90   67,608.29  63,945.46   

 Total 10,26,129.21  71,471.88   -  10,97,601.09  8,07,847.80  92,750.44   -  9,00,598.24  1,97,002.85  2,18,281.41  

As at 31/03/2021

Additions Disposals

(a) Air Conditioners 77,803.39   6,186.20   -   83,989.59   58,986.35   9,319.59   -   68,305.94   15,683.65  18,817.04   

(b) Furniture and Fixtures 1,94,502.32   8,234.78   -   2,02,737.10     1,28,762.57   17,834.83   -  1,46,597.40   56,139.70  65,739.75   

-   

(c) Vehicles 1,30,115.68   -   -   1,30,115.68   64,622.54   16,956.17   -   81,578.71   48,536.97  65,493.14   

-   

(d) Office Equipments 2,07,638.19   7,064.74   -   2,14,702.93   1,60,412.49   20,314.80   -   1,80,727.29   33,975.64  47,225.70   

(e) Computers 3,59,745.78   34,838.14   -   3,94,583.92   2,97,920.00   32,718.46   -   3,30,638.46   63,945.46  61,825.78   

 Total 9,69,805.35   56,323.86   -  10,26,129.21  7,10,703.95  97,143.85   -  8,07,847.80  2,18,281.41  2,59,101.40  

1. Depreciation has been charged as per Schedule II of the  Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") on the basis of useful life of the assets.

As at 01/04/2020

Net Block 

As at 01/04/2020 As at 31/03/2021
Depreciation 

during the year
During the Year

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

As at 01/04/2020
 Assets

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S.No Other 
adjustments

Gross block

 Assets

Gross block Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Written off

As at 31/03/2022
S.No

As at 01/04/2021
During the Year

As at 01/04/2021

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Additional Notes

As at 31/03/2022

As at  31/03/2021

Net Block 

As at 01/04/2021
Depreciation 

during the year
Other 

adjustments

Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Writtenoff

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   

As at  31/03/2022
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4 Capital Work in Progress

  14,000.00 -   -   14,000.00   67,789.57   -   81,789.57  
  14,000.00   -    -    14,000.00   67,789.57   -    81,789.57 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
67,789.57   -  -  14,000.00  81,789.57  

-  -  -  -   -  

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
-  -  5,000.00  9,000.00   14,000.00  
-  -  -  -   -  

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended April 01, 2020 is as follows

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
-  -  14,000.00  -   14,000.00  
-  -  -  -   -  

5 Other Intangible Assets

Additions Disposals

1 Software 1,19,198.23  4,325.00  -  1,23,523.23   1,09,202.04   5,298.28  464.09  1,14,036.23   9,487.00  9,996.19  

Additions Disposals

1 Software 1,15,985.28  3,212.95  -  1,19,198.23   94,839.35   14,362.69  -  1,09,202.04   9,996.19  21,145.93  

Capital Work in Progress

TOTAL

Total

As at 31/03/2020

As at 31/03/2021As at 01/04/2021

As at 31/03/2021

Gross block

As at 01/04/2020 As at  31/03/2021 As at 01/04/2020 During the year
During the Year

Total

S.No

The changes in the carrying value of other intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

S.No  Assets

Gross block

 Assets Other 
adjustments

Net BlockDepreciation

As at 31/03/2021

Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31/03/2022

Written off 
During the Year

Net Block

As at 01/04/2021

Projects temporarily suspended

Written off 
During the 

Year

CWIP

Projects temporarily suspended

As at  31/03/2022 During the year

CWIP

Particulars
Closing Balance as at 

31/03/2021

Other 
adjustments

During the Year

The changes in the carrying value of other intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Note :Site development expenses on leasehold land has been shown as Capital Work in Progress.Land development expenses has been disclosed  as Capital Work in Progress 
in the financial statements.

Projects in progress

CWIP

Projects in progress

( in Hundreds)`   

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Opening balance as 
at 01/04/2020

Addition 
During the 

Year 2020-21

Amount in CWIP for a period of

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   

Total

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   

As at 31/03/2022

Addition During 
the Year 2021-22

Closing 
Balance as at 

31/03/2022

Depreciation
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( in Hundreds)`   
 As At 31.03.2022  As At 31.03.2021  As At 01.04.2020 

6 Investments
Investment in Mutual Funds   1,100.00 1,100.00  1,100.00  

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,100.00   1,100.00  1,100.00  

7 Investment in Associate
Surevin Weartech (P) Limited (40% share)   400.00   400.00 400.00  

TOTAL (Rs.) 400.00   400.00  400.00  

8 Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits   1,04,692.43 1,16,010.01   1,10,925.00   

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,04,692.43   1,16,010.01   1,10,925.00   

9 Deferred tax assets
Difference between WDV as per books of account 
and the Income Tax Act 1961.

1,99,758.81 2,04,215.08 2,01,953.86

Deferred Tax on above 50,275.00 53,096.00 52,508.00

TOTAL (Rs.) 50,275.00   53,096.00  52,508.00  

10 Other Non-Current Assets

The changes in the carrying value of other non-current assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

( in Hundreds)`   

Leasehold Land   55,247.53 -   99 558.06   54,689.47   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Shimla)   13,156.37 -   5 2,631.27   10,525.10   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Lucknow)   6,126.86 -   5 1,225.37   4,901.49   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Bhopal)   17,610.61 -   5 3,522.12   14,088.49   

Total   92,141.37   -    7,936.82 84,204.55   

The changes in the carrying value of other non-current assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

( in Hundreds)`   

Leasehold Land   55,811.28 -   99 563.75   55,247.53   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Shimla)   16,445.46 -   5 3,289.09   13,156.37   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Lucknow)   7,658.57 -   5 1,531.71   6,126.86   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Bhopal)   22,013.26 -   5 4,402.65   17,610.61   

Total   1,01,928.57   -    9,787.20   92,141.37 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Addition During 
the Year

Lease Period (in years) Written off 
During the Year 

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Note 1: Expenditure incurred on leased office at Shimla (HP) Rs. 20,55,682 in FY 2019-20 is stated as Capital Expenditure in Leased premises and is being amortised over the lease 
period of 5 years.

Note 2: Expenditure incurred on leased office at Lucknow (UP) Rs  is stated as Capital Expenditure in Leased premises and is being amortised over the lease period of 5 years.

Note 3: Expenditure incurred on leased office at Bhopal (MP) Rs. 22,38,637 in FY 2019-20 is stated as Capital Expenditure in Leased premises and is being amortised over the lease 
period of 5 years.

Written off 
during the year

Closing Balance as at 
31/03/2022

Closing Balance as at 
31/03/2021

Particulars Opening balance as at 
01/04/2020

Particulars Opening balance as at 
01/04/2021

Addition During 
the Year 

Lease Period (in years)
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11 Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considered good – Unsecured;   9,86,612.82 10,21,005.57   7,93,498.13   

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss -  -  -  

Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 9,86,612.82   10,21,005.57   7,93,498.13   

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good   7,35,187.84   1,23,655.20   59,455.97   43,180.64   25,133.17   9,86,612.82 

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good   7,98,477.90   1,54,058.06   43,316.34   14,083.41   11,069.86   10,21,005.57 

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good   6,64,091.40   81,559.37   30,202.95   10,920.21   6,724.21   7,93,498.13 

12 Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balance With Scheduled Banks

(i) Current Accounts 3,15,171.52   2,15,958.26   2,09,027.40   
(ii) Deposit Accounts 3,89,372.62   6,10,967.28   4,75,487.45   

(b) Cash in hand 307.13   994.39  828.81  

TOTAL (Rs.) 7,04,851.27   8,27,919.93   6,85,343.66   

13 Short Term Loans
Advances to Others 1,01,757.56  64,093.41  64,779.46  
(Unsecured and considered good)

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,01,757.56   64,093.41  64,779.46  

14 Other Current Assets
Security Deposit NSE 250.00   250.00  250.00  
Prepaid expenses 29,034.16   22,645.52  17,834.33  
Retention Money held by Debtors 2,10,017.30   2,10,017.30   3,78,424.38   
Balance with revenue authorities 9,271.72   4,706.37  7,328.76  
Others 6,427.65   789.36  1,053.42  

TOTAL (Rs.) 2,55,000.83   2,38,408.55   4,04,890.89   

15 Current Tax Assets (net)
Balance with Revenue Authorities 1,73,574.95   2,05,374.90   1,55,133.43   

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,73,574.95   2,05,374.90   1,55,133.43   

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on April 01, 2020
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021
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16 Share Capital ( in Hundreds)`   
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

a Authorised Capital
 35,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value increased to 
1,10,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value each

  11,00,000.00 3,50,000.00   3,50,000.00   

  11,00,000.00   3,50,000.00 3,50,000.00   

b Issued Capital
33,87,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value increased to 
1,01,61,000 shares of Rs 10/- each

10,16,100.00  3,38,700.00   3,38,700.00   

10,16,100.00  3,38,700.00   3,38,700.00   

Subscribed and fully paid up Capital
33,87,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value increased to 
1,01,61,000 shares of Rs 10/- each

10,16,100.00  3,38,700.00   3,38,700.00   

10,16,100.00  3,38,700.00   3,38,700.00   

c

d

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
33,87,000.00  33,87,000.00  33,87,000.00   

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year 67,74,000.00  -   -  

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,01,61,000.00  33,87,000.00   33,87,000.00   

e Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company.
March 31, 2022

 No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %

Mr Abhishek Gupta 25,44,270   25.04 8,48,090  25.04 8,48,090 25.04
Mrs Sonika Gupta 33,95,700   33.42 11,31,900   33.42 11,31,900 33.42
Mr Pankaj Gupta 9,65,712   9.50 3,21,904  9.50 4,41,100 13.02
Mr Tushar Gupta 5,15,988   5.07 1,71,996  5.07 -  0.00

74,21,670   24,73,890   73.03 24,21,090 71.48

f  For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

(A) Details of shares issued by way of Bonus in last 5 years
Particulars

Bonus Shares issued in last five years F.Y.2021-22 677.40  

(B) Details of shares issued by way consideration other than cash in last 5 years.
Particulars

Shares issued by way of consideration other than cash NIL

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a par value of Rs 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.

The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and April 01, 2020 is 
set out below :-

Name of the shareholders

March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

No. of Shares Figure in Lakhs
67,74,000

No. of Shares
NIL

Amount 
NIL

Shares held by promoters for the year ended March 31, 2022
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S. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1 Abhishek Gupta   25,44,270 25.04 -   
2 Sonika Gupta   33,95,700 33.42 -   
3 Pushpa Gupta  1,28,300 1.26 1.08%
4 Pankaj Gupta   9,65,712 9.50 -   
5 Arnav Gupta   45,000 0.44 0.44%

Total   70,78,982 

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1 Abhishek Gupta  8,48,090 25.04 -   
2 Sonika Gupta   11,31,900 33.42 -   
3 Pushpa Gupta  10,100 0.29 0.11%
4 Pankaj Gupta   3,21,904 9.50 -3.52%

Total   23,11,994 

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1 Abhishek Gupta  8,48,090 25.04 -   
2 Sonika Gupta   11,31,900 33.42 -   
3 Pushpa Gupta   6,100 0.18 0.15%
4 Pankaj Gupta   4,41,100 13.02 9.78%

Total   24,27,190 

Shares held by promoters for the year ended March 31, 2021

Shares held by promoters as on April 01, 2020
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17 Other Equity
Capital Reserves 

Opening balance -   -   481.50   
Less : Amortization during the year -   -   -   -   481.50   -   

Securities Premuim
Opening Balance 2,22,627.33   2,22,627.33   2,22,627.33  
Add : Addition During the Year -   -   -   
Less: Utilisation for Bonus Issue 2,22,627.33   -   -   2,22,627.33   -   2,22,627.33   

Profit & Loss Account
Opening Balance 13,15,960.58   11,89,817.08   9,52,920.13  
Add: Adjustments on account of 
Depreciation -   -   19,829.46  
Less: Utilisation for Bonus Issue 4,54,772.67   
Add : Net profit after tax 2,25,406.73   10,86,594.64   1,26,143.50   13,15,960.58  2,17,067.49  11,89,817.08   

TOTAL (Rs.) 10,86,594.64   15,38,587.91  14,12,444.41   

As At 31.03.2021 As At 01.04.2020As At 31.03.2022

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

( in Hundreds)`   
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18 Long Term Borrowings
Term Loans
(i) From banks (Secured)

(a) Term Loan-Axis Bank    (1) -  1,04,255.87  1,13,653.59  

(b) Term Loan-Axis Bank    (2) -  1,002.08  14,747.85  

(c) Term Loan-HDFC Bank   (3) 57,189.49  -  -  

(d) Term Loan-HDFC Bank   (4)  5,016.91 62,206.40  -  1,05,257.95   -  1,28,401.44   

(ii) From Others (Secured)
(a) Rajpal Toyota Finance   (5) -  2,914.95  10,843.79  

TOTAL (Rs.) 62,206.40  1,08,172.90   1,39,245.23   

Details of Security given for term loans 

(1) Term Loan - Axis Bank

Collateral Security :  

(2) Term Loan - Axis Bank

(3) Term Loan - HDFC Bank

Collateral Security :  

(4) Term Loan - HDFC Bank

(5) Term Loan - Rajpal Toyota Finance

19 Other Non Current Liabilities
(i) Unutilised Capital Grant from State Government

Capital Grant from MPSEDC - VGF 5,166.92  -  -  

TOTAL (Rs.) 5,166.92  -  -  

20 Provisions
(i) Provision for Employee Benefit

Provision for Gratuity 80,549.74  75,861.61  50,919.52  

TOTAL (Rs.) 80,549.74  75,861.61  50,919.52  

Vehicle Loan secured by Hypthecation of Vehicle, (Rs 14,86,437.00 is hypothecated by Innova Crysta  and Rs. 26,11,806.00 by Toyota Fortuner) 

During the year 2021-22, the term loan from Axis Bank has been taken over by HDFC Bank and the collateral security kept with former has also been transferred to the latter.

Vehicle Loans secured by Hypthecation of Vehicle (Maruti Brezza Rs.8,17,720/-)

a. Equitable Mortgage created on Residential Property in the name of Mr Abhishek Gupta (director), Mrs Sonika Gupta (director) and Mr Sitaram Ram Gupta (erstwhile director),
situated at Flat No T-2/303, Garden Residency, Phase - II, Chunabhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Market Value of Rs 66.50 Lakhs as on  31.12.2017.

b. Equitable Mortage created on Lease hold land in the Name of company, at Plot No C-06, IT Park Village - Badwai,Tehsil Huszur, Dist Bhopal (MP), Market Value of Rs 135 Lakhs
as on 31.12.2017.
c. Lien has been marked on Fixed Deposits of Rs 353 Lakhs belonging to the company

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

 As At 31.03.2021  As At 01.04.2020 

a. Equitable Mortgage created on Residential Property in the name of Mr Abhishek Gupta (director), Mrs Sonika Gupta (director) and Mr Sitaram Ram Gupta (erstwhile director),
situated at Flat No T-2/303, Garden Residency, Phase - II, Chunabhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Market Value of Rs 66.50 Lakhs as on  31.12.2017.

Vehicle Loans secured by Hypthecation of Vehicle.

( in Hundreds)`   

b. Equitable Mortage created on Lease hold land in the Name of company, at Plot No C-06, IT Park Village - Badwai,Tehsil Huszur, Dist Bhopal (MP), Market Value of Rs 135 Lakhs
as on 31.12.2017.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 As At 31.03.2022 

c. Lien has been marked on Fixed Deposits of Rs 353 Lakhs belonging to the company
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21 Short Term Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand

(i) From banks
Axis Bank limited -   1,42,417.16   2,44,109.88   

Details of Security given for short term borrowings

Primary Security :

Collateral Security 

(ii) Current maturities of Long term borrowings
Current maturities of Long term debt 6,262.69  88,548.61  93,330.63  

TOTAL (Rs.) 6,262.69  2,30,965.77   3,37,440.51   

22 Trade Payables
Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,641.44  1,287.83  2,169.62  
Outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 1,06,885.00  1,41,184.50  89,319.86  

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,10,526.44  1,42,472.33   91,489.48  

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 
years

(i) MSME 3,641.44  -  -  
(ii) Others 1,04,842.61   2,042.39   -  

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 
years

(i) MSME 1,287.83  -  -  
(ii) Others 1,05,309.38   5,795.60   30,069.99   

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 
years

(i) MSME 756.85  -  1,412.77   
(ii) Others 51,565.39   2,806.98   34,947.49   

23 Other Current Liabilities
(i) Statutory Remittances 90,981.08  1,64,721.98  64,814.95  
(ii) Expenses Payables 1,440.00  9,144.78  7,672.17  
(iii) Security Deposit 500.00  500.00  500.00  
(iv) Capital Grant from MPSEDC - VGF 2,583.46  -   -   

TOTAL (Rs.) 95,504.54  1,74,366.76   72,987.12  

24 Provisions
(i) Provision for employee benefits 2,85,290.46  2,49,745.06   2,19,728.20   
(ii) Others 2,547.00  2,955.00  1,800.00  

TOTAL (Rs.) 2,87,837.46  2,52,700.06   2,21,528.20   

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022:

Secured by hypothecation charge on entire current assets (present and future) of the company. 

a. Equitable Mortgage created on Residential Property in the name of Mr Abhishek Gupta (director), Mrs Sonika Gupta (director) and Mr Sitaram Ram Gupta (erstwhile director),
situated at Flat No T-2/303, Garden Residency, Phase - II, Chunabhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Market Value of Rs 66.50 Lakhs as on  31.12.2017.

b. Equitable Mortage created on Lease hold land in the Name of company, at Plot No C-06, IT Park Village - Badwai,Tehsil Huszur, Dist Bhopal (MP), Market Value of Rs 135 Lakhs as on 
31.12.2017.
c. Lien on Fixed Deposits of Rs 353 Lakhs belonging to the company

Total

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021:

2-3 years

-   
-   

Total

2-3 years
Total

3,641.44  
1,06,885.00   

-   2,169.62  
-   89,319.86   

-   1,287.83  
9.53   1,41,184.50   

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on April 01, 2020:
2-3 years
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 As At 31.03.2022  As At 31.03.2021 

25 Revenue from operations
Sale of Services 41,57,446.55  36,01,799.98  
Other Operating Revenues 3,421.55  12,069.33  

41,60,868.10  36,13,869.31  

26 Other income
Interest income 32,215.69  36,012.70  

2,583.46  -  
Other Non Operating  Income 31,358.90  -  

66,158.05  36,012.70  

27 Employee Benefits
Salaries & Wages 28,84,721.11  24,06,933.69  
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 2,29,394.09  1,48,877.39  
Staff Welfare Expenses 18,068.20  22,230.32  

31,32,183.40  25,78,041.40  

28 Finance Costs
Interest expense 27,917.38  40,308.02  
Other borrowing costs 27,587.16  8,814.60  

55,504.54  49,122.62  

29 Other expenses
Training Fees -  25,819.42  
Sub Contract Call Centre 47,245.65  14,563.44  
Advertisment  Expenses 5,349.19  3,665.18  
Prinitng & Stationary 2,090.07  1,657.16  
Legal & Professional Expenses 22,208.71  14,205.72  
Business Promotion Expenses 3,412.48  1,608.23  
Rates & Taxes 9,377.15  13,917.40  
Bad Debts -  79,993.54  
Power & Fuel 1,04,015.95  96,518.32  
Rent 2,01,220.30  2,21,508.84  
Repair & Maintenance Expenses 74,786.98  81,816.59  
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 17,752.54  42,160.37  
Communication Expenses 26,554.74  25,404.00  
Office Expenses 15,128.36  24,601.47  
Security Charges 40,101.34  46,322.76  
Membership & Subscription 7,197.67  2,955.74  
Other Administrative Expenses 4,120.02  6,247.61  
Auditor's Remuneration

Company Audit 1,210.00  1,200.00  
Tax Audit 300.00  300.00  
GST Audit -  300.00  

Insurance 11,529.98  7,502.37  
Commision Expenses 7,000.00  5,000.00  
Donations 1,100.00  12,110.00  
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 8,900.00      9,700.00  

6,10,601.13  7,39,078.16  TOTAL (Rs.)

Deferred Income

TOTAL (Rs.)

TOTAL (Rs.)

TOTAL (Rs.)

TOTAL (Rs.)
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 As At 31.03.2022  As At 31.03.2021 

30 Earnings per share

(a) Basic Earning per share
(i) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,25,406.73  1,26,143.50  
(ii) Weighted Average number of shares oustanding 1,01,610  1,01,610  
Basic Earning per share 2.22  1.24  

(b) Diluted Earning per Share
(i) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,25,406.73  1,26,143.50  
(ii) Weighted Average number of shares oustanding 1,01,610  1,01,610  
Diluted Earning per Share 2.22  1.24  

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( in Hundreds)`   
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1 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 

2020
(i) Contingent Liabilities are classified as-
(a) claims against the company not 
acknowledged as debt;

45,571.84    20,789.70  20,789.70  

(b) guarantees excluding financial 
guarantees

3,53,372.74   3,53,372.74  3,53,372.74  

2

3

4 Ratios

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Numerator Denominator
 Year Ended 
31.03.2022 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2021 

Variance

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 4.44  2.94  50.89
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.03  0.18  -81.98

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings available for debt 
service

Debt Service 3.73  2.64  41.54

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes
Average Shareholder’s 
Equity

0.11  0.07  62.91

(e) Inventory turnover Ratio Turnover Inventory Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

(f) Trade Receivables turnover Ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable 4.15  3.98  4.06  

(g) Trade payables turnover Ratio
Purchases of services and 
other expenses

Average Trade Payables 4.83  6.32  -23.60  

(h) Net capital turnover Ratio Revenue Working Capital 2.42  2.32  4.08  
(i) Net profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.05  0.03  55.20  

(j) Return on Capital employed
Earning before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed 0.17  0.10  64.03  

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Numerator Denominator
 Year Ended 
31.03.2021 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2020 

Variance

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 2.94  2.91  1.25

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio
Total Debt (represents lease 
liabilities)

Shareholder’s Equity
0.18  0.27  -33.64

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings available for debt 
service

Debt Service
2.64  3.23  -18.33

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes
Average Shareholder’s 
Equity 0.07  0.13  -47.69

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Turnover Inventory Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable
3.98  5.24  -23.91

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio
Purchases of services and 
other expenses

Average Trade Payables
6.32  8.46  -25.35

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital 2.32  2.90  -19.93
(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.03  0.05  -35.64

(j) Return on Capital employed
Earning before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed
0.10  0.22  -53.10

There is no dividend proposed for, or distributed to the shareholders for the preceding five financial years.

( in Hundreds)`   

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

The quarterly returns and statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are 
in agreement with the books of accounts. Hence no reconciliation is required.

OTHER NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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5 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31.03.2022 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2021 

(i) amount required to be spent during the
year, 8,880.00  8,843.68  
(ii) amount of expenditure incurred, 8,900.00  9,700.00  
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year, -  -  
(iv) total of previous years shortfall, -  -  
(v) reason for shortfall, NIL NIL

(vi) nature of CSR activities,

Promoting Health Care
through Community
Action Through
Motivation Programme
(CAMP)  
[CSR REGN 

Promoting Health Care
through Community Action
Through Motivation
Programme (CAMP)  
[CSR REGN
No:CSR00013570] 

(vii) details of related party transactions, e.g.,
contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSR expenditure as
per relevant Accounting Standard,

 NIL  NIL 

(viii)where a provision is made with respect to
a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year shall be shown
separately.

 NIL  NIL 

6 Related Party Transactions

A List of related parties

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Surevin Weartech Private Limited 40% 40% 40%

B Transactions with related parties - Surevin Weartech Private Limited

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Opening Balance  (Dr.) 65,151.87  53,839.12  92,122.93       
Sub-Contract Income 5,12,499.93  3,65,277.43  4,49,796.24       
Payment Received during the year 5,11,241.30  3,53,964.68  4,88,080.05       
Closing Balance (Dr.) 66,410.50  65,151.87  53,839.12       

C List of key management personnel

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Abhishek Gupta Director Director Director
Sonika Gupta Director Director Director

D Transactions with key management personnel

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Abhishek Gupta 60,000.00  60,000.00  29,400.00       
Sonika Gupta 60,000.00  60,000.00  29,400.00       

E Transactions with other related parties

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
- - - -  

Name of the person and nature of 
relationship

Remuneration 

Name of the person Remuneration 

OTHER NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

WE WIN LIMITED

Name of the Associate Holding

Name of the person Nature of relationship

( in Hundreds)`   

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Particulars Sub - Contract Work ( in Hundreds`  ) 

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   
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7

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,04,851 8,27,920 6,85,344
Trade receivables 9,86,613 10,21,006 7,93,498
Loans 1,01,758 64,093 64,779
Investments 1,500 1,500 1,500
Other Financial Assets 1,04,692 1,16,010 1,10,925
Total 18,99,414 20,30,529 16,56,046
Financial Liabilities: 
Trade and other payables 1,10,526 1,42,472 91,489
Borrowings 68,469 3,39,139 4,76,686
Other financial liabilities 95,505 1,74,367 72,987
Total 2,74,500 6,55,978 6,41,162

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of
each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instruments are disclosed.

The break-up of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost are as follows:

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

OTHER NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Financial Instruments

A.   Financial assets and liabilities

( in Hundreds)`   

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior
management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the
Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be
undertaken. The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarized below.

B.   Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also holds unquoted investments in a wholly owned subsidiary.
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i) Market risk

(a)  Interest rate risk

0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
increase decrease increase decrease

Impact on profit before tax  -322.76  322.76  -285.95  285.95 

ii) Credit risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates on borrowings affected, with all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit
before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to
the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analyzing credit
limits and credit worthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after
obtaining necessary approvals for credit.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables,
unbilled revenue, investments, derivative financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits
and other financial assets. None of the other financial instruments of the company result in material
concentration of audit risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the company’s
financial instruments willfluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in marketinterest rate relates primarily to the
Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices.Financial instruments affected by market
risk include deposits, investmentsand borrowings.

113



iii) Liquidity risk

Financial Liabilities: 
Non Current Borrowings  -  - 62,206 62,206
Current Borrowings 6,263  -  - 6,263
Trade and other payables 1,10,526  -  - 1,10,526
Other financial liabilities 95,505  -  - 95,505

Total 2,12,294  - 62,206 2,74,500

Financial Liabilities: 
Non Current Borrowings  -  - 1,08,173 1,08,173
Current Borrowings 2,30,966  -  - 2,30,966
Trade and other payables 1,42,472  -  - 1,42,472
Other financial liabilities 1,74,367  -  - 1,74,367

Total 5,47,805  - 1,08,173 6,55,978

Financial Liabilities: 
Non Current Borrowings  -  - 1,39,245 1,39,245
Current Borrowings 3,37,441  -  - 3,37,441
Trade and other payables 91,489  -  - 91,489
Other financial liabilities 72,987  -  - 72,987

Total 5,01,917  - 1,39,245 6,41,162

8 Government Grant
(i) Viability Gap Funding

(ii) Rent Subsidy

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank borrowings. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilities:

Maturities
Total Carrying 

value1-2 years > 2 Years

As At March 31, 2022
Maturities

As At March 31, 2021

( in Hundreds)`   

As At March 31, 2020
Maturities

Total 
CarryingvalueUpto 1 year 1-2 years > 2 Years

Upto 1 year

The Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology (Meity), Government of India has notified the ‘India
BPO Promotion Scheme (IBPS)’ under Digital India Programme, whereby it has provided financial support to
eligible BPO/BPM units in the form of Viablility Gap Funding.
Financial support is upto 50% of Expenditure incurred on BPO/ ITES on Capital Expenditure and/or
operational expenditure, subject to an upper ceiling Limit of Rs. 1,00,000 per seat. The company has elected
to utilize the grant towards operational expenditure only.
The company has already received Rs. 10,33,384 in the FY 2021-22 which constitutes 40% of total grant
receivable. The grant received has been apportioned in the remaining period of contract, ie, 4 years. Rs.
2,58,346 has been booked/ credited as income in the Profit & Loss Account for the FY 2021-22. Balance
amount of Rs. 7,75,038 has been shown in the Balance Sheet as current and non-current liabilities. Rs.
2,58,346 is shown under “Other Current Liabilities” and remaining balance of Rs. 5,16,692 under the head of
“Non-current Liabilities” to be booked as income in the subsequent years.

Under the Madhya Pradesh Business Process Outsourcing/ Business Process management (BPO/ BPM)

Industry Investment Policy, 2014 Madhya Pradesh State Electronic Development Corporation Limited

(MPSEDC) has provided various types of Incentives to entities engaged in the BPO/ BPM services.

Company has been eligible for subsidy on rent. The Government provides rent subsidy for hiring of Buildings

on Rent for operating Centres of Rs. 11/ sq. ft. per month of the carpet area subject to a maximum of 75% of

the actual rate, wherein overall limit of the subsidy is limited to Rs. 40 Lakhs for a period of 5 years.

Company has already received Rs. 33,33,333 in the FY 2018-19 which has been adjusted against rent paid

in the same FY and Rs. 5,33,333 is adjusted against rent paid in the FY 2021-22.

Total Carrying 
valueUpto 1 year 1-2 years > 2 Years
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In respect of Defined Benefit Scheme (Based on Actuarial Valuation) of Gratuity:

From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

5,812.29  5,123.61  3,966.03  
11,543.14  10,968.05  9,745.78  

-   -  -  
-   -  -  

-12,335.20   -9,292.58  202.55  

From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

  5,812.29   5,123.61   3,966.03 
  11,543.14   10,968.05   9,745.78 

-     -    -  
-     -    -  

From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

-12,335.20   -9,292.58  202.55  
-     -    -  

-12,335.20     -9,292.58 202.55  

From 01.04.2021 to
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

7.25% per annum 7.25% per annum 6.00% per annum
5.00 % per annum 5.00 % per annum 5.00 % per annum

IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
5.00% per annum 5.00% per annum 33.00% per annum

OTHER NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Interest cost

Employees  Benefits:

Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations:

Period

Present value of the obligation at the
beginning of the period

  80,169.46   73,370.38   59,456.02 

( in Hundreds)`   

Current service cost

Benefits paid (if any)
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Present value of the obligation at the
end of the period 85,189.69  80,169.46  73,370.38  

Key results:

Period

Present value of the obligation at the
end of the period

85,189.69  80,169.46    73,370.38 

( in Hundreds)`   

Fair value of plan assets at end of
period

-     -   - 

Net liability/(asset) recognized in
Balance Sheet and related analysis

85,189.69  80,169.46    73,370.38 

Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit) -85,189.69   -80,169.46    -73,370.38 

Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss:

Period

( in Hundreds)`   

Interest cost
Current service cost
Past Service Cost
Expected return on plan asset

Expenses to be recognized in P&L 

Other comprehensive (income)/expenses (Re-measurement)

17,355.43    16,091.66   13,711.81 

The assumptions employed for the calculations are tabulated:

Period

Discount rate
Salary Growth Rate
Mortality
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant facts.

Past Service Cost

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

-8,189.03  

-17,279.06  -7,986.48  

( in Hundreds)`   

Period

Cumulative unrecognized actuarial
(gain)/loss opening. B/F
Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation

-17,279.06   

-29,614.26   

-7,986.48  

Actuarial (gain)/loss - plan assets
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss
C/F
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From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

85,18,929 @ salary
increase rate : 5%
and discount rate :
7.25%

80,16,946 @ salary
increase rate : 5%,
and discount rate :
7%

73,37,038 @ salary
increase rate : 5%,
and discount rate : 6%

10

11

12

13

14

Sensitivity Analysis: 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate
and expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the
sensitivity analysis presented below may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of
the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:

Period

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Liability with x% increase in Discount
Rate 

76,55,810; x=1.00%
[Change (10)%]

71,76,609; x=1.00%
[Change (10)%]

71,37,811; x=1.00%
[Change (3)%]

Liability with x% increase in
Withdrawal Rate 

87,02,435; x=1.00%
[Change 2%]

81,71,956; x=1.00%
[Change 2%]

73,29,228; x=1.00%
[Change 0%]

Liability with x% decrease in Discount
Rate 

95,47,055; x=1.00%
[Change 12%]

90,24,533; x=1.00%
[Change 13%]

75,47,607; x=1.00%
[Change 3%]

Liability with x% increase in Salary
Growth Rate 

95,60,292; x=1.00%
[Change 12%]

Liability with x% decrease in Salary
Growth Rate 

76,31,187; x=1.00%
[Change (10)%]

71,54,315; x=1.00%
[Change (11)%]

71,34,104; x=1.00%
[Change (3)%]

90,35,017; x=1.00%
[Change 13%]

75,47,607; x=1.00%
[Change 3%]

b) The company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognition as at
1st April 2020 measured as per previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such
intangible assets (see note 6). Accordingly, all items of intangible assets as at 1st April 2020 have been
disclosed at carrying values (net of accumulated depreciation/ impairment as at 31st March 2020).

c) The fair value of the financial assets or the financial liabilities at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be
the new gross carrying amount of that financial asset or new amortised financial liability at the date of
transition to Ind AS. Company has elected not to apply effective interest rate method as defined in Ind AS
109 retrospectively since it is impractical to do as definded in Ind AS 8.

The previous period figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary  to confirm to the 
current period presentation.

d) On transition of financial statements from Previous GAAP to Indian Accounting Standards, no material
differences arose in the carrying values as per previous GAAP and Fair Value as per Ind AS (of the assets
and Liabilities) as on 01.04.2020 and 31.03.2021. Similarly, no material differences arose in Profit After Tax
(PAT) as per previous GAAP and Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS. Hence, reconciliation of
equity and Net Profit is not required.

The Income Tax Deducted at source, of which refund is claimed is disputed by the department and
appellate proceedings are underway. The income tax recoverable for the current as well for the past years
is mentioned in Note 15 includes income tax paid for stay of demand AY 2013-14 and AY 2014-15 are Rs.
32,99,364 and Rs. 12,57,820 respectively.

Non Current investment at Note 7 comprises of Investment in shares of Surevin Weartech (P) limited
amounting to Rs 40,000 valued at cost. The company holds 40% Shares (i.e 4000 Equtiy Shares of Rs. 10
each) of Surevin Weartech (P) Limited.

The sitting fees paid to non-executive directors is Rs. 44,000 for the year ended 31st March 2022 and Rs.
66,000 for the year ended 31st March 2021.

First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards and transition to Indian Accounting Standards

a) The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at April 01, 2020, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying values as the
deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment (see note 3). Accordingly, all the items of property
plant and equipment as at 1st April, 2020 have been disclosed at carrying values (net of accumulated
depreciation/ impairment as at 31st March 2020).

Liability with x% decrease in
Withdrawal Rate 

83,04,585; x=1.00%
[Change (3)%]

78,33,546; x=1.00%
[Change (2)%]

73,44,537; x=1.00%
[Change 0%]
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Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Results as on 31/03/2022 of We Win Limited 

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited) pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To the Board of Directors of We Win Limited 

                     (Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited) 

We have audited the consolidated financial results of We Win Limited (Formerly Surevin BPO Services 

Limited) for the year ended 31/03/2022, attached herewith, being submitted by the company pursuant to the 

requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. These consolidated financial results as have been prepared on the basis of the consolidated interim 

financial statements, which are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these consolidated financial results based on our audit of such consolidated Interim 

financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 

principles laid down in Accounting Standard for Interim Financial Reporting (AS 25) and Accounting 

Standard for Accounting of Associates (AS23) prescribed, under Section 133 of the Companies Act,   2013 

read with relevant rules issued thereunder; or by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as 

applicable   and   other   accounting   principles generally accepted in India. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial results are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts disclosed as financial results. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by management. We believe that our audit provides a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us these 

consolidated financial results: 

i. include the yearly financial results of Associate Company i.e. Surevin Weartech (P) Limited.

ii. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in this regard; and

iii. give a true and fair view of the Consolidated net profit and other financial information for the year ended

31/03/2022.

For Sethia Manoj & Co. 

Chartered Accountants  

FRN:021080C 

(CA M a n o j  S e t h i a ) 

Proprietor 

M. No: 076091 

Place: Bhopal  

Dated: 30/05/2022 

UDIN: 22076091AJYCHH4248 

SD/-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of We Win Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of We Win Limited  (‘the
Company”) and its associates Surevin Weartech Private Limited, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated
Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated
profit, other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group entities to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
entities to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
and business activities within the Group entities to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
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statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of the group companies, none of the
directors of the Group companies is/are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group companies.
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II. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

III. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and Group Companies.

For Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:021080C

(CA Manoj  Seth ia )
Proprietor
M. No: 076091
Place: Bhopal
Dated: 30/05/2022
UDIN: 22076091AJYCHH4248

SD/-
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Annexure A

To the Independent Auditors’ Report on the consolidated financial statements of We Win
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

{Referred to in clause (f) under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Report of even date}

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of We Win Limited (“the 

Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and such
companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its associates companies,
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based
on the criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 

statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 

that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its
associates companies have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential
components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“Guidance Note”)

For Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:021080C

(CA Manoj  Seth ia )
Proprietor
M. No: 076091
Place: Bhopal
Dated: 30/05/2022
UDIN: 22076091AJYCHH4248

UDIN

SD/-
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We Win Limited

1. Corporate Information
We Win Limited (“the company”) and its associate (collectively together with referred to as “the group”)

primarily engaged in the business of Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Services including call
centres and support centre services.

The Company is a public limited company with its registered office situated at 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate
Zone C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad, Road, Misrod, Bhopal – 462047, Madhya Pradesh, India. It was incorporated
18th June 2007 under the Companies Act, 1956 vide Corporate Identification Number (CIN)
L74999MP2007PLC019623.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
amended from time to time.

b) First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
The consolidated financial statements of the group for the year ended 31st March 2022 were
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Group’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard
has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has been affected the previous
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group is provided in
the notes to account.

c) Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current and non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle. Based on the

nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of resources
and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the consideration for such services
rendered, the Group has considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated. The Group considers all highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value to be cash equivalents.

(ii) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management of the Group to make estimates and
judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities
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as at the date of consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses
for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

The Group uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its consolidated financial
statements:

a) Revenue recognition
Revenue for fixed-price contracts is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The
Group uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used
to determine degree of completion of the performance obligation.

b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

d) Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets
The Group uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of
allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is exercised while
determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Group exercises its judgement to
reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

e) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
The Group estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events
and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These
provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

The Group uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are
recognised when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

f) Employee benefits
The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the Group
to use assumptions. These assumptions have been explained under employee benefits notes
to accounts.

g) Impact of COVID-19 (pandemic)
The Group has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these
consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and
going concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact
on revenue recognition owing to changes in cost budgets of fixed price contracts. The Group
has carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources of information
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upto the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements and believes that the
impact of COVID-19 is not material to these consolidated financial statements and expects to
recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated
financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19.

(iii) Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,
2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

a) Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the Group is preparing the
asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related
cost in profit or loss. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its
recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

b) Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification
and the Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

c) Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of
Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

(iv) Financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

a) Cash and cash equivalents
The Group considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.

b) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting
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contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

e) Investment in Associates
Investment in associate company is recognized on the basis of equity method of accounting.
Investment in associates is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-
acquisition change in the investor’s share of the investee’s net assets. The investor’s profit or
loss includes its share of the investee’s profit or loss and the investor’s other comprehensive
income includes its share of the investee’s other comprehensive income.

f) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities that carry a floating rate of interest is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

g) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at
the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.

h) Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)
The Group assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The
Group recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade
receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into
account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and
allowance rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

(v) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation (other than freehold land) and impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis so as to expense the
cost less residual value over their estimated useful lives based on a technical evaluation. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Type of asset Useful lives in years
Leasehold Land 99
Plant and Equipment 3 to 6
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Vehicles 10
Office Equipment 5
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Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete
and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(vi) Intangible assets
Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as at the date of acquisition, as applicable, less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets consist of software licences which are amortised over licence period which equates
the economic useful life is 3 years on a straight-line basis over the period of its economic useful life.

Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
(i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(vii) Revenue recognition
The Group derives revenues primarily from Business Process Management services. Arrangements
with customers for Business Process Management services are either on a fixed-timeframe, unit of
work or on a time-and-material basis. Revenues from customer contracts considered for recognition
and measurement when the parties, in writing, to the contract, have approved the contract the parties
to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is
legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services
(“performance obligations”) to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group has
received or expects to receive in exchange for these products or services (“transaction price”). When 
there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.
The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations
in the contract.

The Group’s contracts may include variable consideration including rebates, volume discounts and 
penalties. The Group includes variable consideration as part of transaction price when there is a basis
to reasonably estimate the amount of the variable consideration and when it is probable that a
significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is resolved

Revenue on time-and-material contracts and unit of workbased contracts are recognized as the related
services are performed. Fixed-price business process management services revenue is recognized
ratably either on a straightline basis when services are performed through an indefinite number of
repetitive acts over a specified period or using a percentage of completion method when the pattern of
benefits from the services rendered to the customer and Group’s costs to fulfil the contract is not even
through the period of contract because the services are generally discrete in nature and not repetitive.

Revenue from other fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts, where the performance obligations are
satisfied over time is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method. Efforts or costs expended
have been used to determine progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between
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input and productivity. Progress towards completion is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred
to date (representing work performed) to the estimated total costs or efforts. Estimates of transaction
price and total costs or efforts are continuously monitored over the lives of the contracts and are
recognized in profit or loss in the period when these estimates change or when the estimates are
revised. Revenues and the estimated total costs or efforts are subject to revision as the contract
progresses. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period
in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based billing and/or
milestone-based progress billings. Revenues in excess of billing classified as unbilled revenue while
billing in excess of revenues classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as unearned revenues).

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract (i.e., costs that would not been incurred if the contract
had not been obtained) are recognized as an asset if the Group expects to recover them. Certain
eligible, non-recurring costs (e.g. set-up or transition or transformation costs) that do not represent a
separate performance obligation are recognized as an asset when such costs (a) relate directly to the
contract; (b) generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying the performance
obligation in the future; and (c) are expected to be recovered. Such capitalized contract costs amortized
over the respective contract life on a systematic basis consistent with the transfer of goods or services
to customer to which the asset relates.

(viii) Employee benefits

a) Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in
the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Past service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognized as
an expense at the earlier of (a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and (b)
when the entity recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any
asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
The Group provides benefits such as gratuity, pension and provident fund (Group managed
fund) to its employees which are treated as defined benefit plans.

b) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.
The Group provides benefits such as superannuation plans to its employees which are
treated as defined contribution plans.

c) Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the
expected cost of ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

c) Gratuity and pension
In accordance with Indian law, the Group operates a scheme of gratuity which is a defined
benefit plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 to 30 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting
occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The Group manages the plan
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through a trust. Trustees administer contributions made to the trust. Certain overseas
branches of the Group also provide for retirement benefit plans in accordance with the local
laws.

(ix) Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their
nature.

The costs of the Group are broadly categorised in employee benefit expenses, cost of equipment
and software licences, depreciation and amortisation expense and other expenses. Other expenses
mainly include fees to external consultants, facility expenses, travel expenses, communication
expenses, bad debts and advances written off, allowance for doubtful trade receivables and
advances (net) and other expenses. Other expenses are aggregation of costs which are individually
not material such as commission and brokerage, recruitment and training, entertainment, etc.

(x) Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or
liability during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current income taxes
The current income tax expense includes income taxes payable by the Group. The current tax
payable by the Group is Indian income tax payable. Advance taxes and provisions for current
income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income
tax provision.

b) Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
received or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(xi) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The Group
did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years presented.

(xii) Government Grants
Government grants has been recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all the attached conditions will be complied. When grant relates to an expense item, it is
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recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, as expensed. When grant relates to an asset, it is netted off with the
respective asset.

(xiii) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Particulars Note As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021 As at 01.04.2020

ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,97,002.85  2,18,281.41  2,59,101.40  
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 81,789.57  14,000.00  14,000.00  
(c) Other Intangible Assets 5 9,487.00  9,996.19  21,145.93  
(d) Investments 6 1,100.00  1,100.00  1,100.00  
(e) Investment in Associates 7 10,089.73  6,164.01  8,649.36  
(f) Financial Assets

 Other Financial Assets 8 1,04,692.43  1,16,010.01  1,10,925.00  
(g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 50,275.00  53,096.00  52,508.00  
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 10 84,204.55  92,141.37  1,01,928.57  

(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables 11 9,86,612.82  10,21,005.57  7,93,498.13  
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 7,04,851.27  8,27,919.93  6,85,343.66  
(iii) Short term Loans 13 1,01,757.56  64,093.41  64,779.46  

(b) Other Current Assets 14 2,55,000.83  2,38,408.55  4,04,890.89  
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 15 1,73,574.95  2,05,374.90  1,55,133.43  

TOTAL ASSETS  27,60,438.56  28,67,591.35  26,73,003.83 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 10,16,100.00  3,38,700.00  3,38,700.00  
(b) Other Equity 17 10,96,284.37  15,44,351.92  14,20,693.77  

Liabilities
(1) Non-current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 18 62,206.40  1,08,172.90  1,39,245.23  

(b) Other Non Current Liabilities 19 5,166.92  -   -   
(c) Provisions 20 80,549.74  75,861.61  50,919.52  

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Short Term Borrowings 21 6,262.69  2,30,965.77  3,37,440.51  
(ii) Trade Payables 22 1,10,526.44  1,42,472.33  91,489.48  

(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 95,504.54  1,74,366.76  72,987.12  
(c) Provisions 24 2,87,837.46  2,52,700.06  2,21,528.20  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  27,60,438.56  28,67,591.35  26,73,003.83 

Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

WE WIN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31.03.2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
We Win Limited

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

( in Hundreds)`   

(Abhishek Gupta)
Managing Director

DIN: 01260263

(Sonika Gupta)
Director

DIN: 01527904

(Vinay Kumar Giri)
Chief Financial Officer

(Ashish Soni)
Company Secretary

For  Sethia Manoj & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 021080C

CA . Manoj Sethia
Propietor
M.No.076091

Place : Bhopal
Dated : 30.05.2022

SD/-
SD/- SD/-

SD/-     SD/-
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Particulars Note No.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
I. INCOME

Revenue from operations 25 41,60,868.10  36,13,869.31  
Other Income 26 66,158.05  36,012.70  
Total Income (I + II) 42,27,026.15  36,49,882.01  

II. EXPENSES
Employee benefit expense 27 31,32,183.40  25,78,041.40  
Finance Costs 28 55,504.54  49,122.62  
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,05,521.45  1,21,293.74  
Other expenses 29 6,10,601.13  7,39,078.16  
Total Expenses 39,03,810.52  34,87,535.92  

III. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items or tax (I-II) 3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  
IV. Exceptional Items -  -  
V. Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) 3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  

Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax 85,425.50  49,196.40  
(2) Prior Period Tax 21,897.60  -3,113.23  
(3) Deferred Tax 5,926.00  1,751.00  
Total Tax Expense 1,13,249.10  47,834.17  

VII. Profit/(loss) for the period (V-VI) 2,09,966.53  1,14,511.92  
VIII. Share of Profit from Associate 3,925.72  -2,485.35  

Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post-employment 
defined benefit plans

12,335.20  9,292.58  

(ii) Income tax relating to items in (i) -3,105.00  -2,339.00  
X. Total Comprehensive Income for the period 2,29,332.45  1,23,658.15  

Earnings per equity share: 30
(1) Basic 2.26  1.22  
(2) Diluted 2.26  1.22  

Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
We Win Limited

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

IX.

XI.

As per our report of even date attached

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

For the year ended 

VI.

( in Hundreds)`   

(Abhishek Gupta)
Managing Director

DIN: 01260263

For  Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 021080C

CA . Manoj Sethia
Proprietor
M.No.076091

Place : Bhopal
Dated : 30.05.2022

(Sonika Gupta)
Director

DIN: 01527904

(Vinay Kumar Giri)
Chief Financial Officer

(Ashish Soni)
Company Secretary

SD/-
SD/- SD/-

SD/- SD/-
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Particulars Note No.

31.03.2022 
(Audited)

30.09.2021 
(Unaudited)

31.03.2021 
(Audited)

31.03.2022 
(Audited)

31.03.2021 
(Audited)

I. INCOME
Revenue from operations 25 21,13,631.68   20,47,236.42   18,94,469.24   41,60,868.10  36,13,869.31  
Other Income 26 47,330.66   18,827.39  20,029.49   66,158.05  36,012.70  
Total Income 21,60,962.34   20,66,063.81   19,14,498.73   42,27,026.15  36,49,882.01   

II. EXPENSES
Employee benefit expense 27 16,24,670.46   15,07,512.94   14,33,540.37   31,32,183.40  25,78,041.40  
Finance Costs 28 36,023.13   19,481.41  27,601.84   55,504.54  49,122.62  
Depreciation and amortization expense 59,296.40   46,225.05  57,929.18   1,05,521.45  1,21,293.74  
Other expenses 29 3,09,350.86   3,01,250.27  3,95,288.39   6,10,601.13  7,39,078.16  
Total Expenses 20,29,340.85   18,74,469.67   19,14,359.78  39,03,810.52  34,87,535.92  

III. Profit/(loss) before exceptional items or tax (I-II) 1,31,621.49   1,91,594.14  138.95  3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  
IV. Exceptional Items -  -  -   -   -  
V. Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) 1,31,621.49   1,91,594.14  138.95  3,23,215.63  1,62,346.09  

Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax 36,034.20   49,391.30  8,372.11   85,425.50  49,196.40  
(2) Prior Period Tax 9,831.17   12,066.43  -3,113.23   21,897.60  -3,113.23   
(3) Deferred Tax 1,126.00   4,800.00  1,626.00   5,926.00  1,751.00  
Total Tax Expense 46,991.37   66,257.73  6,884.88  1,13,249.10  47,834.17  

VII. Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 84,630.12   1,25,336.41  -6,745.93  2,09,966.53  1,14,511.92  
VIII. Share of Profit from Associate Company 888.62   3,037.10  -3,914.31   3,925.72  -2,485.35   

Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post-employment 
defined benefit plans

7,682.81   4,652.39  9,292.58   12,335.20  9,292.58   

(ii) Income tax relating to items in (i) -1,934.00   -1,171.00  3,156.00   -3,105.00   -2,339.00   
X. Total Comprehensive Income for the period 95,135.55   1,34,196.90  -4,523.66  2,29,332.45  1,23,658.15  
X. Paid-up Equity Share Capital (Face Value Rs 10/- 

each)
1,01,610.00   1,01,610.00  1,01,610.00  1,01,610.00  1,01,610.00  

Earnings per equity share : 30
(1) Basic 0.94  1.32  -0.04   2.26   1.22   
(2) Diluted 0.94  1.32  -0.04   2.26   1.22   

Significant Accounting Policies 2
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

We Win Limited

VI.

XI.

As per our report of even date attached

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

IX.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)
WE WIN LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(` in Hundreds) 

For the half year ended on For the year ended 

Place : Bhopal
Dated : 30.05.2022

(Abhishek Gupta)
Managing Director

DIN: 01260263

(Vinay Kumar Giri)
Chief Financial Officer

For  Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 021080C

CA . Manoj Sethia
Proprietor
M.No.076091

(Abhishek Gupta)
Managing Director

DIN: 01260263

(Sonika Gupta)
Director

DIN: 01527904

(Vinay Kumar Giri)
Chief Financial Officer

(Ashish Soni)
Company Secretary

For  Sethia Manoj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 021080C

CA . Manoj Sethia
Proprietor
M.No.076091

SD/-
       SD/-

SD/-

SD/-      SD/-/-
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Particulars

31.03.2022
3

31.03.2021

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

3,23,215.63 1,62,346.09

    Depreciation and amortisation expenses 97,584.63 1,11,506.54

Finance costs 27,917.38 40,308.02

Capital grant received amortised during the year -2,583.46 - 

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post-employment defined benefit plans 12,335.20 9,292.58 

Changes in working capital:

Trade receivables 34,392.75 -2,27,507.44 

Short Term Loans & Advances -37,664.15 686.05 

Other current assets -16,592.28 1,66,482.34

Current Tax Assets (Net) 31,799.95 -50,241.47 

Short Term Borrowings -2,24,703.08 -1,06,474.74 

Trade payables -31,945.89 50,982.85

Other current liabilities -78,862.22 1,01,379.64

Short-term provisions 35,137.40 31,171.86

Sub-total 1,70,031.86 2,89,932.32

Less: Income taxes Paid 85,425.50 49,196.40

Less: Prior Period Tax 21,897.60 -3,113.23 

Net Cash generated by Operating Activities 62,708.76 2,43,849.15

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances -75,796.88 -59,536.81 

Proceeds from Long Term Advances 11,317.58 -5,085.01 

Net income tax (paid) / refunds (Increase in Other Non Current Asset) -59,852.75 9,787.20 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities -1,24,332.05 -54,834.62 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds From Long Term Borrowings 7,419.76 59,000.00

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings -53,386.26 -90,072.33 

Other Long Term Liabilities/Provisions 4,688.13 24,942.09

Increase in Other Non Current Liabilities 7,750.38 - 

Finance Cost - - 

Interest on Borrowings -27,917.38 -40,308.02 

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities -61,445.37 -46,438.26 

Net Increase Or Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents -1,23,068.66 1,42,576.27

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Period 8,27,919.93 6,85,343.66 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period 7,04,851.27 8,27,919.93

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period as per B/S 7,04,851.27 8,27,919.93 
Cash in Hand 307.13 994.39 
Balances With Banks 3,15,171.52 2,15,958.26

Fixed deposits With Bank 3,89,372.62 6,10,967.28

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period as per B/S 7,04,851.27 8,27,919.93 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For Sethia Manoj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 021080C

CA Manoj Sethia Abhishek Gupta Sonika Gupta

Proprietor Managing Director Director

M.No: 076091 DIN:01260263 DIN:1527904

Place:Bhopal

Date: 30.05.2022 Vinay Kumar Giri Ashish Soni

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Profit before Tax

We Win Limited

(` in Hundreds)

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash generated by operating
activities

Significant Accounting Policies

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended

SD/- SD/- SD/-

         SD/- SD/-
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(1) Current reporting period (As at 31st March, 2022)

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained Earnings

Balance at April 01, 2021 3,38,700.00  -  2,22,627.33   -  13,10,346.56  11,378.03  18,83,051.92   
Profit for the Year -  -  -  -  2,13,892.25  -  2,13,892.25  
Remeasurment of defined 
benefit plans

-  -  -  -  -  15,440.20  15,440.20  

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the current 
year

-  -  -  -  2,13,892.25  15,440.20  2,29,332.45  

Transfer to Equity Share 
Capital

6,77,400.00  -  -2,22,627.33  -  -4,54,772.67  -  -  

Balance at March 31, 
2022

10,16,100.00  -  -  -  10,69,466.14  26,818.23  21,12,384.37   

(2) Previous reporting period (As at 31st March, 2021)

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained Earnings

Balance at April 01, 2020 3,38,700.00  -  2,22,627.33   -  11,98,319.99  -253.55  17,59,393.77   

Profit for the Year -  -  -  -  1,12,026.57  -  1,12,026.57  
Remeasurment of defined 
benefit plans

-  -  -  -  -  11,631.58  11,631.58  

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the current 
year

-  -  -  -  1,12,026.57  11,631.58  1,23,658.15  

Balance at March 31, 
2021

3,38,700.00  -  2,22,627.33   -  13,10,346.56  11,378.03  18,83,051.92   

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

TOTAL

TOTAL

Equity Share 
Capital

Equity Share 
Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Reserves and Surplus

Other items of 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

(Remeasurment 
of defined 

benefit plans)

( in Hundreds)`   

( in Hundreds)`   
Other items of 

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income (specify 

nature)
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3 Property Plant and Equipments 

Additions Disposals

(a) Air Conditioners 83,989.59   -   83,989.59   68,305.94   6,368.35    -   74,674.29   9,315.30   15,683.65   

(b) Furniture and Fixtures 2,02,737.10   677.99   -   2,03,415.09     1,46,597.40   14,116.22   -  1,60,713.62   42,701.47   56,139.70   

(c) Vehicles 1,30,115.68   8,177.20   -   1,38,292.88   81,578.71   12,856.62    -   94,435.33   43,857.55   48,536.97   

(d) Office Equipments 2,14,702.93   16,256.42   -   2,30,959.35   1,80,727.29   16,711.81    -   1,97,439.10   33,520.25   33,975.64   

(e) Computers 3,94,583.92   46,360.27   -   4,40,944.19   3,30,638.46   42,697.44    -   3,73,335.90   67,608.29   63,945.46   

 Total 10,26,129.21  71,471.88   -   10,97,601.09   8,07,847.80   92,750.44   -   9,00,598.24   1,97,002.85   2,18,281.41   

As at 31/03/2021

Additions Disposals

(a) Air Conditioners 77,803.39   6,186.20   -   83,989.59   58,986.35   9,319.59    -   68,305.94   15,683.65   18,817.04   

(b) Furniture and Fixtures 1,94,502.32   8,234.78   -   2,02,737.10     1,28,762.57   17,834.83   -  1,46,597.40   56,139.70   65,739.75   

-   

(c) Vehicles 1,30,115.68   -   -   1,30,115.68   64,622.54   16,956.17    -   81,578.71   48,536.97   65,493.14   

-   

(d) Office Equipments 2,07,638.19   7,064.74   -   2,14,702.93   1,60,412.49   20,314.80    -   1,80,727.29   33,975.64   47,225.70   

(e) Computers 3,59,745.78   34,838.14   -   3,94,583.92   2,97,920.00   32,718.46    -   3,30,638.46   63,945.46   61,825.78   

 Total 9,69,805.35   56,323.86   -   10,26,129.21   7,10,703.95   97,143.85   -   8,07,847.80   2,18,281.41   2,59,101.40   

1. Depreciation has been charged as per Schedule II of the  Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") on the basis of useful life of the assets.

4 Capital Work in Progress

  14,000.00 -   -   14,000.00    67,789.57   -   81,789.57   
  14,000.00   -    -    14,000.00   67,789.57   -    81,789.57 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
67,789.57   -   -   14,000.00   81,789.57   

-   -   -   -   -   

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
-   -   5,000.00   9,000.00   14,000.00   
-   -   -   -   -   

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended April 01, 2020 is as follows

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
-   -   14,000.00   -   14,000.00   
-   -   -   -   -   

5 Other Intangible Assets

Additions Disposals

1 Software 1,19,198.23   4,325.00   -   1,23,523.23   1,09,202.04   5,298.28   464.09   1,14,036.23   9,487.00   9,996.19   

( in Hundreds)`   

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

( in Hundreds)`   

S.No  Assets

Gross block Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Written off Net Block 

As at 01/04/2021
During the Year

As at  31/03/2022 As at 01/04/2021
Depreciation 

during the year
Other 

adjustments
As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2022 As at 01/04/2021

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

( in Hundreds)`   

S.No  Assets

Gross block Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Writtenoff Net Block 

As at 01/04/2020
During the Year

As at  31/03/2021 As at 01/04/2020
Depreciation 

during the year
Other 

adjustments
As at 31/03/2021 As at 01/04/2020

Additional Notes

( in Hundreds)`   

Particulars
Opening balance as 

at 01/04/2020

Addition During 
the Year 2020-

21

Written off 
During the 

Year

Closing Balance as at 
31/03/2021

Addition During 
the Year 2021-22

Written off During 
the Year

Closing 
Balance as at 

31/03/2022
Capital Work in Progress

TOTAL

Note :Site development expenses on leasehold land has been shown as Capital Work in Progress.Land development expenses has been disclosed  as Capital Work in Progress in 
the financial statements.

( in Hundreds)`   
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

( in Hundreds)`   
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

( in Hundreds)`   
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended

The changes in the carrying value of other intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

S.No  Assets

Gross block Depreciation Net Block

As at 01/04/2021
During the Year

As at  31/03/2022 As at 01/04/2021 During the year
Other 

adjustments
As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021

The changes in the carrying value of other intangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:
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( in Hundreds)`   
 As At 31.03.2022  As At 31.03.2021  As At 01.04.2020 

6 Investments
Investment in Mutual Funds   1,100.00 1,100.00  1,100.00  

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,100.00   1,100.00  1,100.00  

7 Investment in Associate
Surevin Weartech (P) Limited (40% share)   400.00   400.00 400.00  

TOTAL (Rs.) 400.00   400.00  400.00  

8 Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits   1,04,692.43 1,16,010.01   1,10,925.00   

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,04,692.43   1,16,010.01   1,10,925.00   

9 Deferred tax assets
Difference between WDV as per books of account 
and the Income Tax Act 1961.

1,99,758.81 2,04,215.08 2,01,953.86

Deferred Tax on above 50,275.00 53,096.00 52,508.00

TOTAL (Rs.) 50,275.00   53,096.00  52,508.00  

10 Other Non-Current Assets

The changes in the carrying value of other non-current assets for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

( in Hundreds)`   

Leasehold Land   55,247.53 -   99 558.06   54,689.47   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Shimla)   13,156.37 -   5 2,631.27   10,525.10   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Lucknow)   6,126.86 -   5 1,225.37   4,901.49   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Bhopal)   17,610.61 -   5 3,522.12   14,088.49   

Total   92,141.37   -    7,936.82 84,204.55   

The changes in the carrying value of other non-current assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

( in Hundreds)`   

Leasehold Land   55,811.28 -   99 563.75   55,247.53   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Shimla)   16,445.46 -   5 3,289.09   13,156.37   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Lucknow)   7,658.57 -   5 1,531.71   6,126.86   

Capital Expenditure on Leased Premises (Bhopal)   22,013.26 -   5 4,402.65   17,610.61   

Total   1,01,928.57   -    9,787.20   92,141.37 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Addition During 
the Year

Lease Period (in years) Written off 
During the Year 

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Note 1: Expenditure incurred on leased office at Shimla (HP) Rs. 20,55,682 in FY 2019-20 is stated as Capital Expenditure in Leased premises and is being amortised over the lease 
period of 5 years.

Note 2: Expenditure incurred on leased office at Lucknow (UP) Rs  is stated as Capital Expenditure in Leased premises and is being amortised over the lease period of 5 years.

Note 3: Expenditure incurred on leased office at Bhopal (MP) Rs. 22,38,637 in FY 2019-20 is stated as Capital Expenditure in Leased premises and is being amortised over the lease 
period of 5 years.

Particulars Opening balance as at 
01/04/2021

Addition During 
the Year 

Lease Period (in years) Written off 
during the year

Closing Balance as at 
31/03/2022

Particulars Opening balance as at 
01/04/2020

Closing Balance as at 
31/03/2021
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11 Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considered good – Unsecured;   9,86,612.82 10,21,005.57   7,93,498.13   

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss -  -  -  

Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 9,86,612.82   10,21,005.57   7,93,498.13   

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good   7,35,187.84   1,23,655.20   59,455.97   43,180.64   25,133.17   9,86,612.82 

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good   7,98,477.90   1,54,058.06   43,316.34   14,083.41   11,069.86   10,21,005.57 

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good   6,64,091.40   81,559.37   30,202.95   10,920.21   6,724.21   7,93,498.13 

12 Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balance With Scheduled Banks

(i) Current Accounts 3,15,171.52   2,15,958.26   2,09,027.40   
(ii) Deposit Accounts 3,89,372.62   6,10,967.28   4,75,487.45   

(b) Cash in hand 307.13   994.39  828.81  

TOTAL (Rs.) 7,04,851.27   8,27,919.93   6,85,343.66   

13 Short Term Loans
Advances to Others 1,01,757.56  64,093.41  64,779.46  
(Unsecured and considered good)

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,01,757.56   64,093.41  64,779.46  

14 Other Current Assets
Security Deposit NSE 250.00   250.00  250.00  
Prepaid expenses 29,034.16   22,645.52  17,834.33  
Retention Money held by Debtors 2,10,017.30   2,10,017.30   3,78,424.38   
Balance with revenue authorities 9,271.72   4,706.37  7,328.76  
Others 6,427.65   789.36  1,053.42  

TOTAL (Rs.) 2,55,000.83   2,38,408.55   4,04,890.89   

15 Current Tax Assets (net)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on April 01, 2020
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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16 Share Capital ( in Hundreds)`   
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

a Authorised Capital
 35,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value increased to 
1,10,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value each

  11,00,000.00 3,50,000.00  3,50,000.00  

  11,00,000.00   3,50,000.00 3,50,000.00  

b Issued Capital
33,87,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value increased to 
1,01,61,000 shares of Rs 10/- each

10,16,100.00   3,38,700.00  3,38,700.00  

10,16,100.00   3,38,700.00  3,38,700.00  

Subscribed and fully paid up Capital
33,87,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- par value increased to 
1,01,61,000 shares of Rs 10/- each

10,16,100.00   3,38,700.00  3,38,700.00  

10,16,100.00   3,38,700.00  3,38,700.00  

c

d

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

33,87,000.00   33,87,000.00  33,87,000.00  

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year 67,74,000.00   -   -  

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,01,61,000.00   33,87,000.00   33,87,000.00   

e Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company.
March 31, 2022
 No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %

Mr Abhishek Gupta 25,44,270 25.04 8,48,090 25.04 8,48,090 25.04
Mrs Sonika Gupta 33,95,700 33.42 11,31,900 33.42 11,31,900 33.42
Mr Pankaj Gupta 9,65,712 9.50 3,21,904 9.50 4,41,100 13.02
Mr Tushar Gupta 5,15,988 5.07 1,71,996 5.07 -   0.00

74,21,670 24,73,890 73.03 24,21,090 71.48

f  For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

(A) Details of shares issued by way of Bonus in last 5 years
Particulars

Bonus Shares issued in last five years F.Y.2021-22 677.40  

(B) Details of shares issued by way consideration other than cash in last 5 years.
Particulars

Shares issued by way of consideration other than cash NIL

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total 
shares

% Change during 
the year

1 Abhishek Gupta   25,44,270 25.04 -   
2 Sonika Gupta   33,95,700 33.42 -   
3 Pushpa Gupta   1,28,300 1.26 1.08%
4 Pankaj Gupta   9,65,712 9.50 -   
5 Arnav Gupta   45,000 0.44 0.44%

Total   70,78,982 

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total 
shares

% Change during 
the year

1 Abhishek Gupta   8,48,090 25.04 -   
2 Sonika Gupta   11,31,900 33.42 -   
3 Pushpa Gupta   10,100 0.29 0.11%
4 Pankaj Gupta   3,21,904 9.50 -3.52%

Total   23,11,994 

S. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total 
shares

% Change during 
the year

1 Abhishek Gupta   8,48,090 25.04 -   
2 Sonika Gupta   11,31,900 33.42 -   
3 Pushpa Gupta   6,100 0.18 0.15%
4 Pankaj Gupta   4,41,100 13.02 9.78%

Shares held by promoters for the year ended March 31, 2022

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a par value of Rs 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share.

The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and April 01, 2020 is set out 
below :-

Name of the shareholders
March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020

Figure in Lakhs
67,74,000

Amount 
NIL NIL

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Shares held by promoters for the year ended March 31, 2021

Shares held by promoters as on April 01, 2020
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( in Hundreds)`   

17 Other Equity
Capital Reserves 

Opening balance -   -  481.50   

Less : Amortization during the year -   -   -  -  481.50   -  

Securities Premuim
Opening Balance 2,22,627.33   2,22,627.33  2,22,627.33   

Add : Addition During the Year -   -  -  
Less: Utilisation for Bonus Issue 2,22,627.33  -   -  2,22,627.33  -  2,22,627.33   

Profit & Loss Account
Opening Balance 13,21,724.59  11,98,066.44  9,55,706.68   
Add: Adjustments on account of 
Depreciation -   -  19,829.46   
Less: Utilisation for Bonus Issue 4,54,772.67  -  -  

Add : Net profit after tax 2,29,332.45  10,96,284.37  1,23,658.15  13,21,724.59  2,22,530.30   11,98,066.44   

TOTAL (Rs.) 10,96,284.37  15,44,351.92  14,20,693.77   

As At 31.03.2022 As At 31.03.2021 As At 01.04.2020

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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( in Hundreds)`   

18 Long Term Borrowings
Term Loans
(i) From banks (Secured)

(a) Term Loan-Axis Bank    (1) -  1,04,255.87   1,13,653.59   

(b) Term Loan-Axis Bank    (2) -  1,002.08   14,747.85   

(c) Term Loan-HDFC Bank   (3) 57,189.49   -   -  

(d) Term Loan-HDFC Bank   (4)   5,016.91 62,206.40   -   1,05,257.95  -  1,28,401.44  

(ii) From Others (Secured)
(a) Rajpal Toyota Finance   (5) -  2,914.95  10,843.79  

TOTAL (Rs.) 62,206.40   1,08,172.90  1,39,245.23  

Details of Security given for term loans 

(1) Term Loan - Axis Bank

Collateral Security :  

(2) Term Loan - Axis Bank

(3) Term Loan - HDFC Bank

Collateral Security :  

(4) Term Loan - HDFC Bank

(5) Term Loan - Rajpal Toyota Finance

19 Other Non Current Liabilities
(i) Unutilised Capital Grant from State Government

Capital Grant from MPSEDC - VGF 5,166.92   -  -  

TOTAL (Rs.) 5,166.92   -  -  

20 Provisions
(i) Provision for Employee Benefit

Provision for Gratuity 80,549.74   75,861.61  50,919.52  

TOTAL (Rs.) 80,549.74   75,861.61  50,919.52  

Vehicle Loan secured by Hypthecation of Vehicle, (Rs 14,86,437.00 is hypothecated by Innova Crysta  and Rs. 26,11,806.00 by Toyota Fortuner) 

During the year 2021-22, the term loan from Axis Bank has been taken over by HDFC Bank and the collateral security kept with former has also been transferred to the latter.

Vehicle Loans secured by Hypthecation of Vehicle (Maruti Brezza Rs.8,17,720/-)

a. Equitable Mortgage created on Residential Property in the name of Mr Abhishek Gupta (director), Mrs Sonika Gupta (director) and Mr Sitaram Ram Gupta (erstwhile director), situated at
Flat No T-2/303, Garden Residency, Phase - II, Chunabhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Market Value of Rs 66.50 Lakhs as on  31.12.2017.

b. Equitable Mortage created on Lease hold land in the Name of company, at Plot No C-06, IT Park Village - Badwai,Tehsil Huszur, Dist Bhopal (MP), Market Value of Rs 135 Lakhs as on 
31.12.2017.
c. Lien has been marked on Fixed Deposits of Rs 353 Lakhs belonging to the company 

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

 As At 31.03.2021  As At 01.04.2020 

a. Equitable Mortgage created on Residential Property in the name of Mr Abhishek Gupta (director), Mrs Sonika Gupta (director) and Mr Sitaram Ram Gupta (erstwhile director), situated at
Flat No T-2/303, Garden Residency, Phase - II, Chunabhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Market Value of Rs 66.50 Lakhs as on  31.12.2017.

Vehicle Loans secured by Hypthecation of Vehicle.

b. Equitable Mortage created on Lease hold land in the Name of company, at Plot No C-06, IT Park Village - Badwai,Tehsil Huszur, Dist Bhopal (MP), Market Value of Rs 135 Lakhs as on 
31.12.2017.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 As At 31.03.2022 

c. Lien has been marked on Fixed Deposits of Rs 353 Lakhs belonging to the company 
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21 Short Term Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand

(i) From banks
Axis Bank limited -  1,42,417.16  2,44,109.88  

Details of Security given for short term borrowings

Primary Security :

Collateral Security 

(ii) Current maturities of Long term borrowings
Current maturities of Long term debt 6,262.69  88,548.61  93,330.63  

TOTAL (Rs.) 6,262.69   2,30,965.77  3,37,440.51  

22 Trade Payables
Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,641.44   1,287.83   2,169.62   
Outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 1,06,885.00   1,41,184.50   89,319.86   

TOTAL (Rs.) 1,10,526.44   1,42,472.33  91,489.48  

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 
years

(i) MSME 3,641.44  -  -   
(ii) Others 1,04,842.61   2,042.39  -   

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 
years

(i) MSME 1,287.83  -  -   
(ii) Others 1,05,309.38   5,795.60  30,069.99   

Particulars Less than 1 
year

1-2 years More than 3 
years

(i) MSME 756.85   -  1,412.77   
(ii) Others 51,565.39   2,806.98  34,947.49   

23 Other Current Liabilities
(i) Statutory Remittances 90,981.08  1,64,721.98   64,814.95   
(ii) Expenses Payables 1,440.00  9,144.78   7,672.17   
(iii) Security Deposit 500.00  500.00   500.00   
(iv) Capital Grant from MPSEDC - VGF 2,583.46  -   -   

TOTAL (Rs.) 95,504.54   1,74,366.76  72,987.12  

24 Provisions
(i) Provision for employee benefits 2,85,290.46   2,49,745.06  2,19,728.20  
(ii) Others 2,547.00   2,955.00  1,800.00  

TOTAL (Rs.) 2,87,837.46   2,52,700.06  2,21,528.20  

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022:

Secured by hypothecation charge on entire current assets (present and future) of the company. 

a. Equitable Mortgage created on Residential Property in the name of Mr Abhishek Gupta (director), Mrs Sonika Gupta (director) and Mr Sitaram Ram Gupta (erstwhile director), situated at
Flat No T-2/303, Garden Residency, Phase - II, Chunabhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Market Value of Rs 66.50 Lakhs as on  31.12.2017.

b. Equitable Mortage created on Lease hold land in the Name of company, at Plot No C-06, IT Park Village - Badwai,Tehsil Huszur, Dist Bhopal (MP), Market Value of Rs 135 Lakhs as on
31.12.2017.
c. Lien on Fixed Deposits of Rs 353 Lakhs belonging to the company

Total

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021:

2-3 years

-   
-   

Total

2-3 years Total

3,641.44   
1,06,885.00   

-   2,169.62   
-   89,319.86  

-   1,287.83   
9.53   1,41,184.50   

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on April 01, 2020:
2-3 years
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( in Hundreds)`   

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
25 Revenue from operations

Sale of Services 41,57,446.55  36,01,799.98  
Other Operating Revenues 3,421.55  12,069.33  

41,60,868.10  36,13,869.31  

26 Other income
Interest income 32,215.69  36,012.70  

2,583.46  -  

Other Non Operating  Income 31,358.90  -  

66,158.05  36,012.70  

27 Employee Benefits
Salaries & Wages 28,84,721.11  24,06,933.69  
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 2,29,394.09  1,48,877.39  
Staff Welfare Expenses 18,068.20  22,230.32  

31,32,183.40  25,78,041.40  

28 Finance Costs
Interest expense 27,917.38  40,308.02  
Other borrowing costs 27,587.16  8,814.60  

55,504.54  49,122.62  

29 Other expenses
Training Fees -  25,819.42  
Sub Contract Call Centre 47,245.65  14,563.44  
Advertisment  Expenses 5,349.19  3,665.18  
Prinitng & Stationary 2,090.07  1,657.16  
Legal & Professional Expenses 22,208.71  14,205.72  
Business Promotion Expenses 3,412.48  1,608.23  
Rates & Taxes 9,377.15  13,917.40  
Bad Debts -  79,993.54  
Power & Fuel 1,04,015.95  96,518.32  
Rent 2,01,220.30  2,21,508.84  
Repair & Maintenance Expenses 74,786.98  81,816.59  
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 17,752.54  42,160.37  
Communication Expenses 26,554.74  25,404.00  
Office Expenses 15,128.36  24,601.47  
Security Charges 40,101.34  46,322.76  
Membership & Subscription 7,197.67  2,955.74  
Other Administrative Expenses 4,120.02  6,247.61  
Auditor's Remuneration

Company Audit 1,210.00  1,200.00  
Tax Audit 300.00  300.00  
GST Audit -  300.00  

Insurance 11,529.98  7,502.37  
Commision Expenses 7,000.00  5,000.00  
Donations 1,100.00  12,110.00  
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 8,900.00  9,700.00  

For the period ended

TOTAL (Rs.)

TOTAL (Rs.)

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Deferred Income

TOTAL (Rs.)

TOTAL (Rs.)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6,10,601.13  7,39,078.16  TOTAL (Rs.)
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( in Hundreds)`   

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021 

30 Earnings per share

(a) Basic Earning per share
(i) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,29,332.45  1,23,658.15  
(ii) Weighted Average number of shares oustanding 1,01,610  1,01,610  
Basic Earning per share 2.26  1.22  

(b) Diluted Earning per Share
(i) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,29,332.45  1,23,658.15  
(ii) Weighted Average number of shares oustanding 1,01,610  1,01,610  
Diluted Earning per Share 2.26  1.22  

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended
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1 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments: ( in Hundreds)`   

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 

2020
(i) Contingent Liabilities are classified as-
(a) claims against the company not 
acknowledged as debt;

45,571.84    20,789.70  20,789.70  

(b) guarantees excluding financial 
guarantees

3,53,372.74   3,53,372.74  3,53,372.74  

2

3

4 Ratios

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Numerator Denominator
 Year Ended 
31.03.2022 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2021 

Variance

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 4.44  2.94  50.89
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.03  0.18  -81.98

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings available for debt 
service

Debt Service 3.73  2.64  41.54

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes
Average Shareholder’s 
Equity

0.11  0.07  62.91

(e) Inventory turnover Ratio Turnover Inventory Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

(f) Trade Receivables turnover Ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable 4.15  3.98  4.06  

(g) Trade payables turnover Ratio
Purchases of services and 
other expenses

Average Trade Payables 4.83  6.32  -23.60  

(h) Net capital turnover Ratio Revenue Working Capital 2.42  2.32  4.08  
(i) Net profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.05  0.03  55.20  

(j) Return on Capital employed
Earning before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed 0.17  0.10  64.03  

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Numerator Denominator
 Year Ended 
31.03.2021 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2020 

Variance

(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 2.94  2.91  1.25

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio
Total Debt (represents lease 
liabilities)

Shareholder’s Equity
0.18  0.27  -33.64

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings available for debt 
service

Debt Service
2.64  3.23  -18.33

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes
Average Shareholder’s 
Equity 0.07  0.13  -47.69

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Turnover Inventory Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average Trade Receivable
3.98  5.24  -23.91

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio
Purchases of services and 
other expenses

Average Trade Payables
6.32  8.46  -25.35

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working Capital 2.32  2.90  -19.93
(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.03  0.05  -35.64

(j) Return on Capital employed
Earning before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed
0.10  0.22  -53.10

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

OTHER NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

There is no dividend proposed for, or distributed to the shareholders for the preceding five financial years.

The quarterly returns and statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are 
in agreement with the books of accounts. Hence no reconciliation is required.
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5 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
( in Hundreds)`   

Particulars
 Year Ended 
31.03.2022 

 Year Ended 
31.03.2021 

(i) amount required to be spent during the
year, 8,880.00  8,843.68  
(ii) amount of expenditure incurred, 8,900.00  9,700.00  
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year, -  -  
(iv) total of previous years shortfall, -  -  
(v) reason for shortfall, NIL NIL

(vi) nature of CSR activities,

Promoting Health Care
through Community
Action Through
Motivation Programme
(CAMP)  
[CSR REGN 

Promoting Health Care
through Community Action
Through Motivation
Programme (CAMP)  
[CSR REGN
No:CSR00013570] 

(vii) details of related party transactions, e.g.,
contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSR expenditure as
per relevant Accounting Standard,

 NIL  NIL 

(viii)where a provision is made with respect to
a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year shall be shown
separately.

 NIL  NIL 

6 Related Party Transactions

A List of related parties

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Surevin Weartech Private Limited 40% 40% 40%

B Transactions with related parties - Surevin Weartech Private Limited

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Opening Balance  (Dr.) 65,151.87  53,839.12  92,122.93       
Sub-Contract Income 5,12,499.93  3,65,277.43  4,49,796.24       
Payment Received during the year 5,11,241.30  3,53,964.68  4,88,080.05       
Closing Balance (Dr.) 66,410.50  65,151.87  53,839.12       

C List of key management personnel

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Abhishek Gupta Director Director Director
Sonika Gupta Director Director Director

D Transactions with key management personnel
( in Hundreds)`   

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
Abhishek Gupta 60,000.00  60,000.00  29,400.00       
Sonika Gupta 60,000.00  60,000.00  29,400.00       

E Transactions with other related parties
( in Hundreds)`   

As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2021 As on 01.04.2020
- - - -  

WE WIN LIMITED

Name of the Associate Holding

Name of the person Nature of relationship

(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Particulars Sub - Contract Work ( in Hundreds`  ) 

OTHER NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Name of the person and nature of 
relationship

Remuneration 

Name of the person Remuneration 

148



7

( in Hundreds)`   
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,04,851 8,27,920 6,85,344
Trade receivables 9,86,613 10,21,006 7,93,498
Loans 1,01,758 64,093 64,779
Investments 1,500 1,500 1,500
Other Financial Assets 1,04,692 1,16,010 1,10,925
Total 18,99,414 20,30,529 16,56,046
Financial Liabilities: 
Trade and other payables 1,10,526 1,42,472 91,489
Borrowings 68,469 3,39,139 4,76,686
Other financial liabilities 95,505 1,74,367 72,987
Total 2,74,500 6,55,978 6,41,162

i) Market risk

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also holds unquoted investments in a wholly owned subsidiary.

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

OTHER NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior
management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the
Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be
undertaken. The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarized below.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices.Financial instruments affected by market
risk include deposits, investmentsand borrowings.

Financial Instruments

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of
each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instruments are disclosed.

A.   Financial assets and liabilities

The break-up of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost are as follows:

B.   Financial risk management objectives and policies
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(a)  Interest rate risk

0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
increase decrease increase decrease

Impact on profit before tax  -322.76  322.76  -285.95  285.95 

ii) Credit risk

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables,
unbilled revenue, investments, derivative financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits
and other financial assets. None of the other financial instruments of the company result in material
concentration of audit risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the company’s
financial instruments willfluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in marketinterest rate relates primarily to the
Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates on borrowings affected, with all other variables held constant, the Company’s
profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to
the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analyzing credit
limits and credit worthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after
obtaining necessary approvals for credit.
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iii) Liquidity risk

( in Hundreds)`   

Financial Liabilities: 
Non Current Borrowings  -  - 62,206 62,206
Current Borrowings 6,263  -  - 6,263
Trade and other payables 1,10,526  -  - 1,10,526
Other financial liabilities 95,505  -  - 95,505

Total 2,12,294  - 62,206 2,74,500

Financial Liabilities: 
Non Current Borrowings  -  - 1,08,173 1,08,173
Current Borrowings 2,30,966  -  - 2,30,966
Trade and other payables 1,42,472  -  - 1,42,472
Other financial liabilities 1,74,367  -  - 1,74,367

Total 5,47,805  - 1,08,173 6,55,978

Financial Liabilities: 
Non Current Borrowings  -  - 1,39,245 1,39,245
Current Borrowings 3,37,441  -  - 3,37,441
Trade and other payables 91,489  -  - 91,489
Other financial liabilities 72,987  -  - 72,987

Total 5,01,917  - 1,39,245 6,41,162

8 Government Grant
(i) Viability Gap Funding

(ii) Rent Subsidy

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank borrowings. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilities:

As At March 31, 2020
Maturities

Total 
CarryingvalueUpto 1 year

As At March 31, 2022
Maturities

Total Carrying 
valueUpto 1 year 1-2 years > 2 Years

1-2 years > 2 Years

The Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology (Meity), Government of India has notified the ‘India
BPO Promotion Scheme (IBPS)’ under Digital India Programme, whereby it has provided financial support to
eligible BPO/BPM units in the form of Viablility Gap Funding.
Financial support is upto 50% of Expenditure incurred on BPO/ ITES on Capital Expenditure and/or
operational expenditure, subject to an upper ceiling Limit of Rs. 1,00,000 per seat. The company has elected
to utilize the grant towards operational expenditure only.
The company has already received Rs. 10,33,384 in the FY 2021-22 which constitutes 40% of total grant
receivable. The grant received has been apportioned in the remaining period of contract, ie, 4 years. Rs.
2,58,346 has been booked/ credited as income in the Profit & Loss Account for the FY 2021-22. Balance
amount of Rs. 7,75,038 has been shown in the Balance Sheet as current and non-current liabilities. Rs.
2,58,346 is shown under “Other Current Liabilities” and remaining balance of Rs. 5,16,692 under the head of
“Non-current Liabilities” to be booked as income in the subsequent years.

As At March 31, 2021
Maturities

Total Carrying 
valueUpto 1 year 1-2 years > 2 Years
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In respect of Defined Benefit Scheme (Based on Actuarial Valuation) of Gratuity:

( in Hundreds)`   
From 01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022
From 01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
From 01.04.2019 to 

31.03.2020

5,812.29  5,123.61  3,966.03  
11,543.14  10,968.05  9,745.78  

-  -  -   
-  -  -   

-12,335.20  -9,292.58  202.55  

( in Hundreds)`   
From 01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022
From 01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
From 01.04.2019 to 

31.03.2020

( in Hundreds)`   
From 01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022
From 01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
From 01.04.2019 to 

31.03.2020
 5,812.29  5,123.61  3,966.03 

 11,543.14  10,968.05  9,745.78 
-   -  -  
-   -  -  

Interest cost

OTHER NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Employees  Benefits:

Period

Present value of the obligation at the
beginning of the period

 80,169.46  73,370.38  59,456.02 

Period

WE WIN LIMITED
(Formerly Surevin BPO Services Limited)

Actuarial (gain)/loss
Present value of the obligation at the
end of the period

Interest cost
Current service cost

Period

Present value of the obligation at the
end of the period

85,189.69  80,169.46  

Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit) -85,189.69  -80,169.46  

80,169.46   73,370.38 

Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations:

85,189.69  80,169.46  73,370.38  

Key results:

Current service cost
Past Service Cost
Benefits paid (if any)

 73,370.38 

Fair value of plan assets at end of
period

-   -   -  

Net liability/(asset) recognized in
Balance Sheet and related analysis

85,189.69  

 -73,370.38 

Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss:

Past Service Cost
Expected return on plan asset
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( in Hundreds)`   
From 01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022
From 01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
From 01.04.2019 to 

31.03.2020

-12,335.20  -9,292.58  202.55  
-   -  -  

-12,335.20   -9,292.58 202.55  

From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

7.25% per annum 7.25% per annum 6.00% per annum
5.00 % per annum 5.00 % per annum 5.00 % per annum

IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
5.00% per annum 5.00% per annum 33.00% per annum

From 01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

From 01.04.2020 to 
31.03.2021

From 01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020

85,18,929 @ salary
increase rate : 5% and 
discount rate : 7.25%

80,16,946 @ salary
increase rate : 5%,
and discount rate :
7%

73,37,038 @ salary
increase rate : 5%,
and discount rate : 6%

10

11

12

Liability with x% decrease in Discount
Rate 

95,47,055; x=1.00%
[Change 12%]

90,24,533; x=1.00%
[Change 13%]

75,47,607; x=1.00%
[Change 3%]

Period

Discount rate

The assumptions employed for the calculations are tabulated:

Salary Growth Rate

The sitting fees paid to non-executive directors is Rs. 44,000 for the year ended 31st March 2022 and Rs.
66,000 for the year ended 31st March 2021.

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Period

Other comprehensive (income)/expenses (Re-measurement)

71,54,315; x=1.00%
[Change (11)%]

71,34,104; x=1.00%
[Change (3)%]

Liability with x% increase in Discount
Rate 

76,55,810; x=1.00%
[Change (10)%]

71,76,609; x=1.00%
[Change (10)%]

71,37,811; x=1.00%
[Change (3)%]

Liability with x% increase in
Withdrawal Rate 

87,02,435; x=1.00%
[Change 2%]

81,71,956; x=1.00%
[Change 2%]

73,29,228; x=1.00%
[Change 0%]

Liability with x% increase in Salary
Growth Rate 

95,60,292; x=1.00%
[Change 12%]

90,35,017; x=1.00%
[Change 13%]

75,47,607; x=1.00%
[Change 3%]

Liability with x% decrease in Salary
Growth Rate 

76,31,187; x=1.00%
[Change (10)%]

17,355.43   16,091.66  13,711.81 

Cumulative unrecognized actuarial
(gain)/loss opening. B/F -17,279.06  -7,986.48  -8,189.03   
Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation

Expenses to be recognized in P&L 

Actuarial (gain)/loss - plan assets
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss
C/F -29,614.26  -17,279.06  -7,986.48   

Mortality
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant facts.

Sensitivity Analysis: 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate
and expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the
sensitivity analysis presented below may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of
the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:

Period

Liability with x% decrease in
Withdrawal Rate 

83,04,585; x=1.00%
[Change (3)%]

78,33,546; x=1.00%
[Change (2)%]

73,44,537; x=1.00%
[Change 0%]

The Income Tax Deducted at source, of which refund is claimed is disputed by the department and
appellate proceedings are underway. The income tax recoverable for the current as well for the past years is
mentioned in Note 15 includes income tax paid for stay of demand AY 2013-14 and AY 2014-15 are Rs.
32,99,364 and Rs. 12,57,820 respectively.

Non Current investment at Note 7 comprises of Investment in shares of Surevin Weartech (P) limited
amounting to Rs 40,000 valued at cost. The company holds 40% Shares (i.e 4000 Equtiy Shares of Rs. 10
each) of Surevin Weartech (P) Limited.
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CIN: L74999MP2007PLC019623 

WE WIN LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Surevin BPO Services Limited) 

206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, Bhopal (M.P.) 462047 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be presented at the entrance) 

15th Annual General Meeting, Date 30th September, 2022 

Folio No. / DP ID No. / Client ID No.: 

Name of First named Member/ Proxy/ 

Authorised Representative: 

Name of Joint Member(s), if any: 

No. of Shares held: 

I/We certify that I/We am/are member(s)/proxy for the member(s) of the Company. 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company being 

held on Friday, the 30th day of September, 2022 at 04:00 PM at the Registered Office of the 

Company Situated at 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, 

Bhopal (M.P.) 462047. 

Signature of First holder/ Proxy/ Authorised Representative: 

Signature of 1st Joint Holder: 

Signature of 2nd Joint Holder: 

Notes: 

1. Please sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the Attendance Verification Counter at the

Meeting Venue.

2. Only Member(s)/ Proxy holder will be allowed to attend the Meeting.
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CIN: L74999MP2007PLC019623 
WE WIN LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Surevin BPO Services Limited) 
206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, Bhopal (M.P.) 462047 

Form No. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN: L74999MP2007PLC019623 
Name of the Company: WE WIN LIMITED 
Registered office: 206-207, 2nd FLOOR, CORPORATE ZONE, C-21 MALL, HOSHANGABAD 

ROAD, MISROD, BHOPAL (M.P.) - 462047 

I/ We being the member(s) holding ……………….... shares of the above named company, hereby 
appoint 
1. Name: ……………………………………..
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: …………………………………..., or failing him 
2. Name: ………………………………………..
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: …………………………..…..., 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 15th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 30th day of September, 2022 at 04:00 
P.M. at the registered office of the Company at 206-207, 2nd Floor, Corporate Zone, C-21 Mall, 
Hoshangabad Road, Misrod, Bhopal (M.P.) 462047 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of 
such resolutions as are indicated below: 

RESOLUTION NO. 

Ordinary Business: 

Item No. 01: Adoption of Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements and the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor’s thereon; 
Item No. 02: Appointment of Director in place of Director who retires by Rotation; 

Special Business: 

Item No. 03: Borrowing Powers of the company and creation of Charge/Providing of Security; 
Item No. 04: Approval to deliver document through a particular mode as may be sought by the 
member; 
Item No. 05: Approve the Employee Stock Option Scheme i.e. “We Win Limited ESOP 2022”; 

Signed this ………… day of….......… 2022 
Signature of Shareholder 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited 
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting. 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Name of the Member(s): 
Registered address: 
E-mail Id: 
Folio No/ Client Id: 
DP ID: 
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